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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and the
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years.

UTRAEENBEREAMBEE ZREE

BhEE -BERIFEREGSE

RESULTS £
As at As at As at As at As at
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
RIZZ=F RIZZZE  RIBZT-F  RIBIRE  RIZ-AE
AB=+H NB=+H NE=1+H NE=TH NAE=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TEL FER TEL
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(B&H) (EE7) (wER) (=7 (EER7)
Results E7 |
- Revenue - 166,077 136,241 71,486 42,734 35,925
- Profit/(Loss) —%H/ (58 13,686 10,681 (22,767) (274,163) (63,662)
- Loss per share -5REE
Basic (in HK cents) 2 (B (2.68) (3.40) (15.20) (110.89) (40.71)
Diluted (in HK cents) B (B (2.68) (3.40) 15.20) (110.89) (42.65)
(restated) (restated)
EE) (=5
Financial Position HMHERR
- Non-current assets —FRBEE 259,854 214,968 188,914 184,615 436,512
- Current assets -MPEE 39,484 24,889 56,329 41,053 58,809
- Current liabilities -nEak 132,228 75,911 99,598 118,415 110,412
- Non-current liabilities -EREaE 75,320 81,609 73,013 73,506 107,126
- Equity o i 91,790 82,337 72,632 33,747 277,783
Financial Ratios MEE
— Current assets/Current liabilities -REEE/TBERE 0.3 03 06 0.3 05
- Assets/Equity -BE/ R 33 2.9 34 6.7 1.8
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ITHEER SRS
CEQ'’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”), | am hereby
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as, the “Group”) for the year ended

30 September 2023 for your review.
OVERVIEW

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$166 million during the
year, of which the natural gas business recorded a segment revenue
of approximately HK$155 million, accounting for approximately
93% of the Group’s revenue. The Group recorded a profit of
approximately HK$13.7 million for the year (2022: HK$10.7 million).
The increase in profit was mainly attributed to (i) the increase in
revenue of approximately HK$29.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately 21.9%, which was primarily attributable to the
increase in sales of natural gas of approximately HK$29.5 million;
and (ii) the increase in gross profit of approximately HKD7.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 34.4%.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In the previous year, all the COVID-19 restrictions were lifted in the
middle of the financial year, where upon industrial activities gradually
recovered. During the year, no COVID-19 restrictions were imposed
and industrial activities were normal. This resulted in the volume of
sales on natural gas increased by approximately 17%.

Even though the external economic environment continues to be
weak, since the target customers for the Group’s key business
of natural gas supply are mainly domestic business, we remain
In the
natural gas business, the Group holds the thirty-year exclusive

optimistic about the prospects of the natural gas business.

right to supply natural gas in Yichang, Hubei which will be expired
up to 2041 to 2044. With this advantage, the number of potential
customers has increased correspondingly with the continuous
expansion of the industrial parks.

Looking forward, the management believes that the economy will
recover in an orderly manner in the coming year, which is expected
to have a positive impact on the Group’s two core businesses.
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CEQ'’s Statement

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Natural gas operations

Industrial customers welcome the supply and demand brought about
by the domestic economic recovery, which will lead to an increase
in natural gas consumption, and the revenue of this segment will
continue to grow.

Sales and leasing business

During the year, the Group acquired certain new equipment to
launch new leasing projects. It is believed that the country’s booming
economy will drive an increase in infrastructure construction and
renovation projects, which will lead to increase in leasing business
income.

Management will be more cautious and conservative in seeking new
potential merger and acquisition, business integration and expansion
in order to sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to
express my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all staff and
the Directors, as well as the support for the Company from all our
customers, creditors, business partners and the shareholders of the
Company. We will adhere to a proven management strategy, grasp
market trends and opportunities, and endeavor to bring greater value
to our shareholders and make new contributions to the community.

Wang Wenzhou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 December 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$166,077,000 for
the year ended 30 September 2023 (“YE2023”) as compared with
approximately HK$136,241,000 for the year ended 30 September
2022 (“YE2022"), gross profit of approximately HK$27,261,000
for YE2023 against approximately HK$20,287,000 for YE2022
and net profit of approximately HK$13,686,000 for YE2023 as
compared to net profit of approximately HK$10,681,000 for YE2022.
The increase in profit was mainly attributed to (i) the increase in
revenue of approximately HK$29.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately 21.9%, which was primarily attributable to the
increase in sales of natural gas of approximately HK$29.5 million;
and (ii) the increase in gross profit of approximately HKD7.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 34.4%.

An analysis of the performance of the Group including the revenue
and results of natural gas operations, sales and leasing business and
independent advisory before allocation of the corporate overheads
is set out in note 10 “Segment Information” to the consolidated

financial statements.

For YE2023 the Group generated revenue from sales of natural
gas, pipeline installation services, sales of materials and leasing
of materials of approximately HK$149,692,000, HK$4,332,000,
HK$929,000 and HK$99,000 respectively, compared to
approximately HK$120,162,000, HK$4,437,000, nil and nil for
YE2022. The revenue generated from sales and leasing business
and independent financial advisory business was in aggregate of
HK$11,025,000 and nil for YE2023 respectively as compared to
YE2022, it recorded HK$11,622,000 and HK$20,000, in aggregate,
respectively.

The total operating expenses, including selling and distribution costs,
general and administrative expenses, for YE2023 was approximately
HK$42,923,000 as compared to approximately HK$41,691,000 for
the YE2022, representing an increase of 3% which was causing to
increase in safety cost provision made for natural gas operations
in accordance to PRC Laws as well as the increase in depreciation
charged upon reversal of impairment on non-current assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continuea)

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$4,921,000
for YE2023 (YE2022: approximately HK$2,603,000), which mainly
consisted of interest on bank and other borrowings and non-
convertible bonds. The increase was mainly came from an increase
in interest on bank and other borrowings and non-convertible bonds
due to additional bans and non-convertible bonds raised during
YE2023.

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

The Group acquired Yichang Biaodian, which is engaged in natural
gas supply operation, in 2016. The performance of Yichang Biaodian
significantly improved from the following reasons:

(i With the planning under the guiding ideology of the “14th
in 2021,
promotes the utilization of clean resources, and pipeline

Five-Year Plan” the central government vigorously
natural gas has become the best choice for new enterprises
to use as heating energy; since 2017, Yaojiagang Chemical
Industry Park has been successively rated as key supporting
parks of circular transformation by the National Development
and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Finance;
has been rated as pilot parks for third-party governance
of environmental pollution by the National Development
and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment; the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology’s green industrial parks and China’s smart
chemical park pilot demonstration units. Yaojiagang Chemical
Industry Park has been promoting the advantages of green
industrial parks for many years, and the effect of attracting
investment is remarkable, driving the demand for industrial
pipeline natural gas in the region; and
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ERECIS S

Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS (continuead)

(if) In recent years, many large chemical companies have settled
in the park to establish production bases. As the companies
have formulated and adapted to the operating model under
the new crown epidemic, the overall production capacity of
new and old customers has been efficiently recovered and
achieved ideal growth.

By considering the reasons as aforesaid, the management of the
Group performed impairment testing in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”) on the
assets that belong to Yichang Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the value in use (“VIU”) calculation
for impairment assessment based on a valuation prepared by an
independent valuer are those regarding the expected average
revenue growth rate, expected average net profit margin and
discount rate for the next five years:

- Expected average revenue growth rate and expected
average profit margin for the next five years were based on
past practices and management’s expectations on market
development; and

- Discount rate was estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the cash generating unit (“CGU”), i.e.
Yichang Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the impairment assessment in 2023
changed from that of 2022:

- In 2023, the expected revenue growth rate estimated for
the next five years was 3%. In 2022, the expected revenue
growth rate estimated for the next five years was 8%; and

- In 2023, the expected average positive net profit margin
In 2022, the
expected average positive net profit margin estimated for the

estimated for the next five years was 9%.

next five years was 7%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS (continuea)

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted for the
calculation of the VIU of the CGU. In accordance with HKAS 36,
the recoverable amount should be the higher of () the fair value
less costs of disposal; or (i) the VIU. After assessing both the VIU
and the fair value, the valuation opted for the VIU because it was
the higher between the two figures. VIU is based on the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate of 12.6% (2022:
13.1%) that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU. There is no change to the
valuation method adopted in 2022 and 2023.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of Yichang
Biaodian was approximately HK$203,362,000 and reversal of
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$22,471,000,

HK$17,172,000 and the HK$158,000 respectively in 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operations are being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank and other borrowings and external financing. The
Group follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital.
The management will continue to closely monitor the financial
position of the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Bank and other borrowings

The bank and other borrowings assigned RMB56,871,000
(equivalent to HK$62,160,000) carry an interest at a fixed rate, with
an effective interest rate of 5% to 10.5% per annum. The bank
borrowings are pledged with natural gas supply exclusive rights
of Yichang Biaodian and a property owned by Mr. Xiong Songgan
(“Mr. Xiong”) and his spouse. The bank borrowings are also jointly
guaranteed by Mr. Xiong and the non-controlling shareholders of
Yichang Biaodian. Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei
Biaodian, which owns 20.92% of Yichang Biaodian.

Other borrowings are secured by the pledge of property, plant
and equipment of Yichang Biaodian and Shanghai Senchou and
guaranteed by the certain non-controlling shareholders of Yichang
Biaodian.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)
As at 30 September 2023,

(@) the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$9,385,000 (as at 30 September 2022:
approximately HK$4,998,000).

(b) the Group’s total borrowings comprised (i) bank and other
borrowings; (i) due to directors; (i) non-convertible bonds;
(iv) lease liabilities; and (v) due to related parties totalling
approximately HK$106,870,000 (as at 30 September 2022:
HK$81,496,000).

(c) the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 106% (as at
30 September 2022: 93%). The gearing ratio was calculated
as the Group’s borrowings net of cash available divided by
total equity of the Group.

(d) the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.3 (as at
30 September 2022: 0.33). The management will continue to
closely monitor the financial position of the Group to maintain
its financial capacity.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS/MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Acquisition of Machinery

On 25 November 2022, RERIERE (L8 BRAZ (Senchou
Ltd.*) (“Shanghai
Senchou”) has completed the acquisition of certain machinery with

Environmental Technology (Shanghai) Co.,

price of RMB24,270,000 from an independent third party vendor
included in the contracts signed with the vendor on 29 March 2022
and 3 August 2022 as announced on respective dates. Deposits
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of RMB7,289,000
(equivalent to HK$8,239,000) as at 30 September 2022 are utilized
on that date. Details of the acquisition of machinery are disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 29 March 2022 and 3 August
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LITIGATION

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian had
disputes with one of its suppliers regarding the quality of work
performed by such supplier. Legal proceedings were initiated by the
supplier (the “Yichang Plaintiff”).

On 18 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation agreement
which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian agreed
with the repayment terms in relation to the amount of RMB8,787,000
(equivalent to HK$10,413,000). However, Yichang Biaodian did not
repay all the outstanding amount as scheduled in civil mediation
agreement. Thus, the Yichang Plaintiff exercised its rights to apply
for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian for settlement of
amount overdue. On 19 May 2022, the Yichang Plaintiff and Yichang
Biaodian signed another mediation agreement which set out that
the outstanding balance would be repaid in 25 monthly installments
of RMB300,000 from June 2022 to July 2024, and it would be
guaranteed by Mr. Xiong Songgan, a key management personnel
of Yichang Biaodian. If Yichang Biaodian fail to repay as scheduled,
default interest would be charged at 12% per annum on the
outstanding balance owed to the Yichang Plaintiff since 1 May 2019.
The directors of the Company considered that as the full amount of
the remaining debts of RMB2,787,000 (equivalent to HK$3,046,000)
claimed by Yichang Plaintiff are fully provided as liability of the Group
as at 30 September 2023 and Yichang Biaodian repaid the amount
owed to Yichang Plaintiff as scheduled, no further liability will be
incurred.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged (i) natural gas supply exclusive rights amounted
to approximately HK$90,771,000 and property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$40,303,000 for bank and other borrowings
of approximately HK$62,160,000 (as at 30 September 2022:
natural gas supply exclusive rights amounted to approximately HK$
80,976,000 for bank borrowings of HK$21,873,000); (i) a property
amounted to approximately HK$1,707,000 (as at 30 September
2022: HK$1,949,000) to an independent third party for obtaining an
advance of RMB100,000 as at 30 September 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 September 2023 (2022: Nil).

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the management believes that the economy will
recover in an orderly manner in the coming year, which is expected
to have a positive impact on the Group’s two core businesses.

Natural gas operations

Industrial customers welcome the supply and demand brought about
by the domestic economic recovery, which will lead to an increase
in natural gas consumption, and the revenue of this segment will
continue to grow.

Sales and leasing business

During the year, the Group acquired certain new equipment to
launch new leasing projects. It is believed that the country’s booming
economy will drive an increase in infrastructure construction and
renovation projects, which will lead to increase in leasing business
income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT (continued)

Management will be more cautious and conservative in seeking new

potential merger and acquisition, business integration and expansion

in order to sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 30 November 2023, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
its leased motor vehicle at consideration of HK$1,200,000.

On 19 December 2023, the Company and Leeds Securities
Investment Limited (“Placing Agent”) entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the Placing Agent, on a best effort
basis, up to 91,172,000 new ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.01 each (“Placing Shares”) to not less than six (6)
placees at the placing price of HK$0.69 per Placing Share who
and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be independent
third parties. The Placing Shares will be allotted and issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the directors of the
Company at the annual general meeting held on 14 April 2023.
None of the placees will become a substantial shareholder
of the Company immediately upon completion of the placing.
Details of the placing are disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 19 December 2023.

On 26 December 2023, the Company announced that it has
come to the attention of the board of directors of the Company
that the Group’s 25% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian,
amounting to RMB14.70 million (the “Frozen Equity”), is
currently frozen by LUFEE RAMERZEZEE (Shanxi Province
Changzhi Municipal Supervision Commission)* (the “Freeze
Action”). The Group has engaged a PRC legal counsel (the
“PRC Legal Counsel”) to provide relevant legal advice to the
Group in relation to the Freeze Action and the Frozen Equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(c)

(Continued)

As advised by the PRC Legal Counsel, the ordinary course of
business of Yichang Biaodian will not be restricted or adversely
affected by the Freeze Action. During the period of the Freeze
Action, however, the Group is unable to undertake any filing
related to changes in ownership of the Frozen Equity or the
registration of any pledge of the Frozen Equity. The Group is
advised by the PRC Legal Counsel that the risk of impacting
the Group’s entitlement to dividends of Yichang Biaodian is
relatively low, given that Yichang Biaodian has not received any
notice or notification or other legal documents explicitly freezing
the dividends, bonuses and other proceeds to which the Group
is entitled. The Board has instructed the PRC Legal Counsel to
obtain further information and relevant documents, enquire the
reasons for the Freeze Action and to advise on the potential
legal consequences for the Group in relation to the Freeze
Action.

As the Freeze Action is at the preliminary stage, the directors
cannot estimate the financial effect on the Group.

On 27 December 2023, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding with ZE$BHER
BIR/AF (Hualing Energy Co., Ltd.)*, in relation to potential
cooperation for the development of electric vehicle charging
station business. Details are disclosed in the Company’s

announcements dated 27 December 2023.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Placing of new shares

On 19 December 2023, the Company entered into a placing

agreement with Leeds Securities Investment Limited. Pursuant to

the placing agreement, the Company appointed the Placing Agent

to procure not less than six placees who are independent third

parties to subscribe for up to 91,172,000 placing shares at a price of

HK$0.69 per placing share.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 September 2023, the Group employed 61 staff members
(at 30 September 2022: 58 staff).
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications

Remuneration is determined

and experience of the individual employee. Remuneration includes
monthly salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme and share
option scheme. The Group’s remuneration policies and packages
are reviewed by management on regular basis. The Company has
established a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The
Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the
event of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version
shall prevail.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Wenzhou (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”), aged 51, has over 28 years of
experience in textile industry and in-depth knowledge in products
operation, import and export trading and supply management. He
also has practical experience in corporate operation management.
Prior to joining the Company, he was a general manager of Shanghai
An Lin Trading Limited* (E/8ZMEBFBRAE) and he also
worked as a general manager at Shanghai Lan Hao Clothing Limited”

(EBERREBRAD).
Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”),
Director since 30 April 2018. He holds a degree in Business

aged 58, has been the executive

Management from Wuhan University, a degree in Civil Engineering
from China University of Petroleum and a degree in Economic
Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Wu was the
engineering manager and the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Guangda Construction Decoration Engineering Company* (_Ei&7
KEBFEEHHFITIZAT). Since 2001, Mr. Wu has been the general
manager and the chairman of Shanghai Guangda Basic Engineering
Co., Ltd (E/EEAXERTREABRAR). Furthermore, Mr. Wu is
the director of China Civil Engineering Society ([ + A T2 £
®)and a construction technology committee member of Chinese
Institution of Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering — China
Civil Engineering Society (FEI+ AT E2E+ HEBERETTHE
E). Mr. Wu has vast experience in business management and
construction business development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Wu Chunyao

Mr. Wu Chunyao (“Mr. Wu”), aged 29, has over 10 years of
experience in business management, operation and provision of
consultation services. He was a unit manager of Beijing Bozheng
Xinda Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.* Gt RIBEEE R EREBA
FR/AE]) from 2012 to 2014. He also works as a vice president of
Shanghai Chunfeng Financial Information Services Co., Ltd.* (E/&
EIE2RMEERBEABRAST). From 2015 to 2016, Mr. Wu was a
general manager of Hunan Zhihao Information Consulting Service
Co., Ltd.* CHEE EERAEARBERAF).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Chen Long

Mr. Chen Long (“Mr. Chen”), aged 35, has over 9 years of experience
in business operation and corporate financial management. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Chen was the chief executive officer of
Fortune Joy International Acquisition (a company proposed to be
listed on the Nasdaqg with symbol XYGJU) since 2022. Mr. Chen
also serve as a director of Zhongming Capital Holdings (Shenzhen)
Limited* (R B AR ORI ERBRRF).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 43, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014,
Mr. Leung has been serving as an independent non-executive
director of KNT Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1025) since 31 January
2019. Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in
Accounting and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada.
Mr. Leung is the general manager of TL Property Consultants
International Ltd. (“TLP”), a consultancy group principally engaged in
asset management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had
worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8
years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky (“Dr. Chung”), aged 49, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 June 2021. Dr. Chung
obtained a doctor degree in Queen’s University of Brighton on 2012.
Dr. Chung possess over 19 years of experience in trading, corporate
finance, technology application and human resources management.
Dr. Chung was an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of remuneration committee and member to each of the
audit committee and nomination committee of Dragon King Group
Holdings Limited from 14 November 2022 to 28 February 2023, the
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8493). Dr. Chung has worked in various organisation including
Technology, Media and Telecommunications companies. Dr. Chung
was a director of TVNET.HK since 2004 and a chairman of China
Dragon Foundation Creature Fuel Technology (International) Limited
from 2007 to 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Cheng Chak Ho

Dr. Cheng Chak Ho (“Dr. Cheng”), aged 53, holds a doctoral degree
of Philosophy in Economics from the University of Brighton, a
Master degree in Urban Design from the University of Hong Kong,
a Master of Science in Engineering (Mechanical Engineering) and
a Master of Business Administration in Finance. He has over 29
years of experiences in various kinds of valuation included but
not limited to real estate valuation, business valuation, plant and
machinery valuation and forensic valuation. He has been involved
in over 100 IPOs and M&A cases over the last ten years. He
is an independent non-executive director of Polyard Petroleum
International Group Limited (stock code: 8011), a company listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 1 April 2021 and he was an independent non-
executive director of North Mining Shares Company Limited (stock
code: 0433), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 12 April 2001 to 1 April 2022.
He is a Fellow of Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
Certified Management Accountants Australia, Association of
International Accountants, Institute of Public Accountants, Institute
of Financial Accountants, The Royal Society of Medicine, The
Royal Statistical Society, Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, The Hong Kong Institute
of Environmentalists, The Society of Operations Engineers, and
Institution of Plant Engineers. He is also Member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Surveyors, The Certified Public Accountants
Association, The Society of Chartered Environmentalists, Hong Kong
Institute of Engineers, the China Real Estate Appraisers and Agents,
American Society of Civil Engineers, The Institute of Engineering and
Technology, The American Society For Microbiology, The Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers, Institute of Industrial and
Systems Engineers, American Society of Mechanical Engineers,
Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators and the Society of Petroleum
Engineers.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael (“Mr. Ngai”), aged 35, is the company
secretary and one of the authorised representatives of the Company
with effect from 1 July 2021. Mr. Ngai has over ten years of
experience in legal industry and had obtained his Bachelor of Laws
and postgraduate certificate in laws from City University of Hong
Kong in 2011 and 2012, respectively. He is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong, and currently a partner of Khoo & Co., and the principal
of Michael Ngai & Co. He also serves as a company secretary of
various companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ngai had
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
YE2023.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Nip Chi Kin
Mr. Nip Chi Kin (“Mr. Nip”), aged 43, is the Financial Controller of

the Group since June 2018. He had over 23 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and financial field.
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E5EHRS
Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 150 to 151.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
reporting period are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for payment
or distributions of dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company.
No distribution reserves of the Company was recorded as at
30 September 2023 (as at 30 September 2022: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wu Guoming
Mr. Wu Chunyao
(appointed on 30 October 2023)
Mr. Duan Fanfan
(resigned on 30 October 2023)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chen Long
(appointed on 21 October 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho
(appointed on 30 October 2023)
Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester
(appointed on 3 October 2022 and resigned on 2 August 2023)
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continuea)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Mr. Wu Chunyao and Dr. Cheng
Chak Ho will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. No
director has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation). The non-executive Director has a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years commencing
on the date of respective appointment. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors as a service contract with the Company
for a term of one year commencing on the date of their respective
appointment but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at an annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

As at 30 September 2023, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (Continued)

Interests in the Company

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the
Directors and chief executives of the Company:

7

EENRZ HHHENZED

&
REAT 2%

TREJEABDEFRESITHRAEMFAR
AERMN - BRARNDRESZHFEMHBER !

Corporate Percentage of
Directors/chief executive Interests Long (L) or short (S) position interests
BEE BREITBRAE RE)EE FRL)THKE(S) =Rl
Mr. Wu Guoming 16,237,500 L 3.56%
SEBELE
Mr. Wang Wenzhou 5,400,000 L 1.18%
EFxELEE
L: Long position L 5=

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 September 2023, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of SFO, and so far as is known
to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, no person
(other than a Director or a chief executive of the Company) had, or
was deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
on 20 August 2020 and refresh the scheme mandate limited of the
Share Option Scheme pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company on
16 June 2022. The Share Option Scheme is a long-term incentive
scheme of the Company to reward its employees, Directors and
other eligible participants for their contributions to the Group and
to assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high-calibre
employees and other eligible participants who are instrumental to the
growth and development of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include: (a) any
employee or proposed employee (whether fulltime or part-time
and including any executive Director), consultants or advisers of or
to the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (b)
any non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested
entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity; (d) any customer of the Group or
any invested entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any
invested entity; and (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group
or any invested entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any invested entity, and any company
wholly owned by one or more persons belonging to any of the above
classes.

Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in
accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force for a period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuead)

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options (excluding for this purpose options which have lapsed)
which have been or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 45,586,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme and 2% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
end of Reporting Period and the date of approval of this report. The
maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, which period may
commence from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuead)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer; (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of a share.

As at the date of this report, no share option had been granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 52.3% of the revenue of the Group and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 19.6% of the total
revenue.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 86.8% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for about 44.7% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Loan agreements

On 18 January 2023, Yichang Biaodian granted to each of E&
EEFERABREAT (Yichang Meiyan Energy Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang
Meiyan”) and B &#iABERBR AR (Yichang Platinum Port
Energy Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Platinum”) a shareholder’s loan (each
a “Shareholder’s Loan”, collectively the “Shareholder’s Loans”)
in the amount of RMB10 million. The Company published an
announcement in relation to the Shareholder’s Loans on 23 July
2023. As at the date of the announcement dated 23 July 2023, the
Shareholder’s Loans have been fully repaid.

As at the date of the Shareholder’s Loans, Yichang Meiyan and
Yichang Platinum held respectively 24.49% and 19.59% of the total
issued share capital of Yichang Biaodian, which is a subsidiary of
the Group. As such, Yichang Meiyan and Yichang Platinum, being
substantial shareholders of Yichang Biaodian, were both connected
person of the Company, and each of the Shareholders’ Loans
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company acknowledges that it has failed to publish an
announcement in relation to the Shareholder’s Loans at the relevant
time. The Company deeply regrets its non-compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules but the Company would like to stress that the
delay in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules was inadvertent and
unintentional.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
23 July 2023.

For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the
event of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version
shall prevail.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 September 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 September 2023, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which competed
or might compete with the business of the Group nor had any other
conflict of interest with the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in pages 29 to 31 to this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the reporting period.
Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duties.
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AUDITORS

The Company has appointed RSM Hong Kong as the auditors of
the Company for the Year with effect from 30 January 2019. There
has been no change in auditors since the date of appointment. RSM
Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution to
reappoint RSM Hong Kong and to authorize the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Wenzhou
DIRECTOR

29 December 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 30 September 2023 except
for the following deviation:

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company did not appoint
a chairman from 19 April 2018. The Board will keep reviewing
the current structure from time to time and appoint candidate
with suitable knowledge, skill and experience as chairman of the
Company, if identified.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required
Standard during the year ended 30 September 2023.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules,
and considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of Directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.

During the year ended 30 September 2023, the Board’s composition
and the individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder meetings
during the year ended 30 September 2023 are set out in the table

EEXg

FABAREFE ((EFg) BB RFAE
EREREEAANF -BEFEERETAEE
AEBZEL HAGEFEREBEBMI
EXEHELAEREF ZRBR AR 1B
BEFREAEENEEERR £XHRF
e Rk RREE

BE_T_-"FNB=THLFE EFZ
HREREUEERBE_Z_=ZFAA=1
HIEERFEFEER EFE59T3
RIERAEEREN TE:

below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings held

during the tenure of his/her office in the year

FAHERY EREASTEERY

Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ANERK
Exged HMESE REZEE BRZEE e
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Wang Wenzhou, IXBEE 1/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
Chief Executive Officer THEH TER TER TER
Mr. Wu Guoming REBLE 1/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
B TER TER
Mr. Duan Fanfan BRMEE (RZBZ=F 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
(resigned on 30 October 2023) +B=+H##ED) TER TEH TER
Mr. Wu Chunyao REREE RZ22=F N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 30 October 2023) +B=+H%EZA) TER TEA TEH TER TEA
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chen Long i e o) St -5 1/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
(appointed on 21 October 2022) +BZ+-HEZA) TEA TEH TER
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHITES
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RENEE 2/4 2/2 2/2 474 01
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky R =Nk 4/4 2/2 2/2 474 11
Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester MB%!& (RZBZZF 2/3 0/1 0/1 2/4 17
(appointed on 3 October 2022 and +H HEZMEK
resigned on 2 August 2023) AZEZZENAZHEMR
Dr. Cheng Chak Ho i /g/fxﬁ:l: M-B-=F N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 30 October 2023) +B=+H%EZA) TER TEA TEH TER ~EA
N/A:  Not applicable TER: T~EA
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2023, the Board held four
Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business
direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers
were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means
of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 20 to 24 in this annual report.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 September 2023 and up
to the date of this report, Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Mr. Wu Guoming,
Mr. Wu Chunyao, Mr. Chen Long, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin,
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky and Dr. Cheng Chak Ho engaged
in business activities in their respective fields as continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain
informed and relevant. Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin has participated
in continuous professional development programs required by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Directors
also participated in other trainings and professional developments
such as attending seminars, studying reading materials relating to
the Group or its industries and businesses; rules and regulations;
business management; or the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) did not hold meetings during the year
ended 30 September 2023. The Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including
that for the executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration
paid to executive directors and senior management of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
The remuneration paid and payable to the Directors for the year
ended 30 September 2023 is set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration paid and payable to the senior management
excluding directors by band for the year ended 30 September 2023
is set out below:

FriMsEE

Remuneration of band

TR B

THRHAEEREERT HRESIE
ERMBETHESTEZEE TRAEEEE
F URERBAMESRIREZEME
EHRARBERN ZEREFT NEERELR
EEBETRENEERERERNERF-

ANERKRHFNEES

BE_TZ_=-—FNA=tHLEFEE ANE
BRFHNEES (HNEZEE) UERTE
ZoFMEEECERKILERER (B1F
HITES) 2#FMER REAEBERTES
RERERREZHINKT R BRETE
ez eS|l EfmNEZE G - HEHE B
BEZ—SRNEFETRREAHNATEEKS
REEBNFMEERE - BE_T_=FNA
“tTHLEFE EARBANEEZHMEN
A MB|RRWEIS.

BE_T_=—"FNA=+tHLEEE Bk
BASREERE CEEES) FHINI%ER
B85

Number of
Individuals

A®

HK$0 — HK$500,000 077t - 500,0007# 7T
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarised as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for identifying potential new directors and making
recommendations to the Board for decision. A director appointed by
the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after his/her appointment. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, one third of the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at each annual general meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year ended
30 September 2023 and work performed included reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors and the nomination of new
Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors, reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 30 September 2023, the Audit Committee
held four meetings and work per formed included reviewing the
Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its risk management
and internal control systems, and corporate governance matters for
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$1,050,000 and approximately HK$599,000,
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong Kong
to the Group were in relation to certain agreed upon procedures
services during the year.

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$1,050,000 and approximately HK$1,360,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong Kong
to the Group were in relation to certain agreed upon procedures
services during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
financial reporting. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made
are prudent and reasonable.

They are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparation of the consolidated financial statements
and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 146 to 149.

The auditors did not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has net current liabilities of HK$92,744,000
as at 30 September 2023 and the Group had operating cash outflow
of HK$3,926,000 for the year then ended. In addition, as at 30
September 2023, the Group had capital commitments amounting to
HK$4,167,000. Besides, the Group was in default of non-convertible
bonds of approximately HK$750,000 which was overdue as of
30 September 2023. These events and conditions indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon measures
taken by the directors to improve the Group’s financial position, cash
flows and profitability and the financial supports from two Directors
of the Company, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group as explained below.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The Directors have estimated the Group’s cash requirements
by preparing a Group cashflow forecast for the eighteen-month
period ending 31 March 2025. Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), a
shareholder and a director of the Company, and Mr. Wang Wenzhou
(“Mr. Wang”), a director of the Company, as at 30 September 2023,
have agreed to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that the
Group will be able to meet all current obligations as they fall due
for the foreseeable future. Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to
pledge their properties as collaterals, if necessary, to borrow funds to
provide financial support to the Group.

However, the auditors were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy themselves that Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang
had the financial resources to provide the required level of financial
support to the Group. Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to pledge
their properties to provide financial support to the Group. Based
on the market valuations of the properties, the auditors considered
that it was uncertain whether Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang would be able
to borrow funds using their properties as collateral at the level
necessary to support the Group’s liquidity requirements. In addition,
they were unable to ascertain whether Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang had
any personal liabilities which would affect their credit standing and
ability to borrow against the pledged properties. Accordingly, the
auditors were unable to determine the appropriateness of preparing
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast doubt

regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the

Directors have given careful consideration to the future liquidity

and performance of the Group and its available sources of finance

to continue as going concern. In the opinion of the Directors, the

Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations

and to meet it financial obligations as and when they fall due in the

foreseeable future, based on the cash flow projections of the Group

and after taking into consideration the following:

(1)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

implementing stronger measures aiming at improving the
liquidity and financial position of the Group, including but not
limited to closely monitoring the operating costs;

reviewing and shortening the reporting intervals and
improving follow up measures on receivables collection. As at
30 November 2023, approximately HK$1,751,000, or 11% of
our trade receivables as at 30 September 2023 was settled;

negotiating with non-convertible bondholders to extend the
maturity date of the bonds once mature;

negotiating with the Group’s suppliers and related companies
to extend the payment terms;

the Directors of the Company, Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang will
continue to provide financial support to the Group including
the availability to pledge various properties in Tianjin and
Shanghai, the PRC. According to a preliminary valuation
summary prepare by an independent valuer, these properties
worth over RMB48,000,000. They have undertaken not to
require the Company to repay the loans until such time when
repayment will not affect the ability of the Group to repay
other creditors in the normal course of business; and

looking for new bank facilities and other borrowings from
other banks and financial institutions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The management considered that the proposed measures
mentioned above, if successful, could improve the Group’s liquidity
and therefore could help to address the audit matter. However, as
the management’s assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern for the purposes of preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 September
2023 has to take into consideration of the future conditions and
circumstances and could only be made at the end of the relevant
reporting period, the management is unable to ascertain at this
moment whether the audit matter can be removed in the next
financial year purely based on the Company’s measures above.

The audit committee has discussed with the Company, reviewed the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2023, and agreed with the going concern basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and to finalise and implement the
action plans for addressing the disclaimer of opinion.

The audit committee has also discussed with the Auditors and
reviewed the disclaimer of opinion and the basis of disclaimer of
opinion.

The Board has,
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and

through the Audit Committee, conducted a

internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board also acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management, financing reporting, and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance

and internal audit functions.

To this end, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered
to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Besides, management continues to allocate resources for the risk
management and internal control systems to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function to an independent external assurance provider, who
has conducted a review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 30 September 2023. The Board considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

The Board, through the Audit Committee,
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing

leads and provides

their implementation by management, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound risk

management and internal control systems are in place.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuead)

The Board reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
on the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions.

The Board, through delegation of its authority to an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) working group, is also responsible for
reviewing the Company’s corporate social responsibility strategies,
principles and policies; setting guidelines, direction and overseeing
practices and procedures; and monitoring progress on the
Company’s corporate social responsibility and related activities.

The following highlights the key risk management measures under
the Group’s “Three Lines of Defence” model and enhancements
made by the Group for the period.

1st line of defence - Risk management

° Management conducted an annual Internal Control Self-
Assessment for the period. Management confirmed that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have
been established and complied with.

° Various policies, procedures and guidelines are in place with
defined authority for effective segregation of duties, controls
and risk management, and they are subject to regular review.

° The Group’s anti-bribery and anti-corruption guidelines
are in place to set out minimum standards in recognizing
circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
involving corruption or unethical business conduct, to help
avoid conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to encourage
everyone in the Group to seek appropriate guidance promptly
when needed.

° The Group’s whistleblowing policy is in place to facilitate
internal reporting of any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and victimization.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuea)

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight

° The Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Policy
is developed to outline the principles, governance, roles
and responsibilities, and approach within a coherent risk
management framework that addresses and prioritizes risks
that are material and relevant to the Group’s corporate goals.

° The Group’s ERM Framework aims to help management
assess and manage risks arising from and associated with
new business activities and environments, including emerging
risks. An integrated risk assessment approach was adopted
to address risks across various subsidiaries of the Group, to
assess those risks on an integrated group-wide basis.

3rd line of defence - Independent assurance

° The external assurance provider takes up the internal audit
function, who is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems and reporting the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

For internal audit, a risk-based approach is adopted. The three
years’ work plan of external assurance provider for internal audit, is
subject to review annually, covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s operations, businesses and service units. The results of
these audit activities are communicated to the Audit Committee and
key members of senior management of the Group. Audit issues are
tracked, followed up for proper implementation, and their progress
are reported to the Audit Committee and senior management of the
Group (as the case may be) periodically. The external assurance
provider for internal audit provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the senior management of the
Group on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continuead)

The Group’s ERM Policy is established by the Board as an effective
and adequate approach to be applied across the Group to manage
the risks associated with its business and operations. This policy
is designed to enhance enterprise risk management of the Group
through a holistic and integrated framework so that all material risks
faced by the Group are identified and appropriately managed to:

(i) promote consistent risk identification, measurement, reporting
and mitigation;

(i) set a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion in risk reporting;

(i) develop and communicate policies on enterprise risk
management and controls aligned with the business strategy;
and

(iv) enhance reporting to provide transparency of risks across the
Group.

The Company has adopted policies and procedures for assessing
and, where prudent, improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems, including requiring the
management of the Group at least annually to assess whether
the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively in the belief that this will enhance the corporate
governance of the Company and its business practices in the future.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the Code of Conduct to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael, the company secretary of the Company,
has complied with the relevant professional training under Rules 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 September 2023.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Wang Wenzhou is the compliance officer of the Company. His
biographical details are set out in Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management on page 20 of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting the
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including the Company and the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the Group’s current and future operations, the
level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, liquidity position and capital
requirement of the Group, general market conditions and any other
factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains a non-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at
www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.
hk or in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at
Room 8083, 8/F., Wanchai Central Building, 89 Lockhart Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Directors, company secretary or other
appropriate members of senior management respond to enquiries
from shareholders promptly. The Chief Executive Officer, chairmen
of board committees (or their respective delegates) and external
auditors attend the annual general meeting and are available
to answer questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders may
also access the Company’s corporate website for the Group’s
information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution was passed at the annual general meeting held
on 14 April 2023 to adopt the amended articles of association of
the Company for the purposes of, among others, (i) bringing the
existing Articles of Association in line with the amendments made
to Appendix 3 of the GEM Listing Rules and applicable laws of the
Cayman lIslands; (i) providing flexibility to the Company in relation
to the conduct of general meetings by allowing the Company
to hold hybrid or electronic general meetings of shareholders;
and (i) making other consequential and housekeeping changes.
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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PREAMBLE

As an investment holding company, Global Strategic Group
Limited (the “Company”) with its subsidiaries (collectively, “the
Group”) engages in a wide range of businesses, including the
natural gas supply and pipeline installation, and provision of
leasing business of the steel support axial force servo system in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The past years have witnessed a profound reshaping of the
world, impacting individuals and societies on an unprecedented
scale. In addition to health and safety, other emerging crises,
such as climate change, environmental degradation, resource
scarcity, and economic stability, are still imminent.

Entering 2023, the world is gradually emerging from the
unprecedented challenges posed by the COVID-19 Pandemic
(the “pandemic”). The return to a new normal in production
and daily life brings a growing energy demand, exceeding
the patterns of the past two years. This juncture presents
an invaluable opportunity for the Group to not only meet the
rising energy needs but also to elevate the quality of life for
individuals by ensuring a secure, diversified, and dependable

energy supply.

Meanwhile, China attaches great importance to its response to
climate change and has adopted several policies and actions
to accelerate energy transition, including the “Energy in China’s
New Era” ((HTEFCHYREISEIREEE)) and “Energy Production
and Consumption Transition Strategy” ((BERAEEFHE £
BYB%)) . The Group is committed to staying in line with national
and international goals and seizing the opportunity to satisfy
the immediate energy demands while reducing its impacts on
the environment and its exposures to climate change.

During the past year, the Group remained steadfast in its
mission of creating a positive impact on the society, advancing
sustainable practices, and delivering shared values to its
stakeholders. The Group has incorporated the principle of
sustainability into its strategy and business operations, aiming
to enhance its sustainability performance while fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibility.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

In compliance with the requirement under Appendix 20 -
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(“ESG Guide”) of the GEM Listing Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”), the Group is pleased to present
its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
for the financial year from 1 October 2022 and ended 30
September 2023 (“FY2023” or “the year under review”), which
demonstrates the Group’s approach and performance in terms
of ESG management and corporate sustainable development

for FY2023 under “Comply or Explain” provision.

Boundary Setting

Adopting the operational control approach, the Group defines
the scope of this ESG Report based on the discrete analysis
of its business operations in FY2023. The Group includes in
the reporting boundary the headquarter office in Hong Kong,
its Sales and leasing business in Shanghai and its Natural gas
operations in Yichang the PRC, which represented the majority
of the Group’s annual revenue. The Group considers these
operating segments as relatively significant after an in-depth
analysis of its business impacts from economic, environmental,
and social perspectives. Given the application of the Materiality
principle, the operations of Independent financial advisory are
not included.

For corporate governance-related information, please refer to
the Corporate Governance Report of the Group’s 2023 Annual
Report.

Reporting Principles

This report has been prepared against the Reporting Principles
outlined in the ESG Guide of the Stock Exchange. Given the
reporting principles that underpin the preparation of the ESG
report, the main ESG performance of the Group in FY2023 has
been determined and presented by following the principles of
Materiality, Quantitative, Balance, and Consistency.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continuea)
Reporting Principles (Continued)
Materiality:

The Group emphasised the principle of Materiality to identify
the ESG issues that have the most significant impacts and
are most relevant to the Group’s operations. In FY2023, the
Group conducted its annual materiality assessment through
online questionnaires and communicating with its well-selected
stakeholder representatives to collect their expectations and
feedback for ESG issues. The assessment results were then
handed to the board of directors (the “Board”) for review. The
outcomes that were approved and verified by the leaders of
the Group form the base of the content of this ESG report and
guide the sustainability strategy and actions of the Group in
the future. For more information, please refer to the section on
Materiality Assessment.

Quantitative:

To demonstrate the principle of Quantitative, the environmental
and social performance of the Group are organised and
disclosed in terms of various Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”), including emissions, consumption of natural
resources, and employment information, ensuring that
stakeholders have a deep understanding of the Group’s ESG
performance. The relevant sources of the assumptions and
conversion factors used are listed clearly in the footnote of the
corresponding performance tables.

Balance:

To present an unbiased and complete picture of its ESG
performance to the readers and stakeholders, the Group
adheres to the principle of Balance to transparently reveal its
sustainability performance for both outstanding achievements
and areas for improvement in FY2023.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continuea)
Reporting Principles (Continued)
Consistency:

The Group maintains the disclosure framework and
methodology for data calculation over these years to allow
peer benchmarking and meaningful comparison across
years. In case of any significant changes in the disclosure
standards or other key reporting elements, clear explanations
will be provided in the corresponding sections to facilitate the

understanding of the readers and stakeholders.
Information Disclosure

The information presented in the ESG report was collected
from various sources, including official documents, statistics,
and internal policies across the Group’s subsidiaries. It also
incorporates verifiable evidence of the implementation of ESG
practices in the Group, feedback from staff collected through
online surveys that included both quantitative and qualitative
questions aligned with the reporting framework and verified
data relating to the Group’s annual performance in business
operations and sustainable development. A complete index
table is available at the end of the ESG report for the reader’s
convenience to check its integrity.

The Group will publish the ESG Report in respect of the
financial year ended 30 September 2023 on the websites of
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk) at the same
time as its Annual Report is published. The ESG Report will
be accessible under the “Investor Relations” section of the

Company’s website.

This Report is prepared in both English and Chinese. Should
there be any conflict or inconsistency, the English version shall
prevail.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

Over the years, Global Strategic has adhered to the highest
standards and strived to maintain a strong corporate
governance and management system. To deliver long-term
sustainable value to all stakeholders, the Group regularly
strengthens its practices and measures under the oversight
and monitoring of the Board. The Group’s business operations
and activities are conducted in line with its core values,
including care, integrity, respect, collaboration, transparency,
and commitment. The sustainability-focused approach guides
the Group’s risk management and opportunities identification,
with regular stakeholder engagement contributing to
continuous improvements of the Group.

As the highest authority holding ultimate responsibilities for
the oversight of all ESG-related issues, policies and reporting,
the Board holds the overall accountability to oversee the
execution of the Group’s sustainability strategy in a top-
to-bottom manner. With rich experience and insight, the
Board acknowledged the significance of identifying and
addressing ESG-related risks and opportunities, particularly
those associated with climate-related issues. Among its
responsibilities, the Board conducts regular reviews of the
Group’s internal policies, including the Code of Conduct and
Operation Manual, to ensure their alignment with evolving ESG
objectives and standards.

The Board strictly supervises the overall governance
processes and delegates specific areas of responsibility to the
standing committees to enhance the efficient discharge of its
obligations. The Management, composed of leaders across
the organisation, is responsible for managing and integrating
sustainable strategy and policies into daily operations and
reporting the updates on the material ESG issues in the Group

to the Board.
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lll. APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued) . AIFHEERAMR @

ESG Management Structure
ESGE A#EIE

The Board EE5&

Assumes leadership and advisory role for
overseeing the performance and operations of the
Group

e Oversees all ESG-related issues and performance
in accordance with the Group’s core value

e Approves the Group’s sustainability strategy and
targets

* Responds to solving stakeholder expectations

e Reviews management updates and enterprise risk
assessment

EEESERARMEENAENLAAE

o REEBENZOERE EEEPTA HESGHERE—E KR
a

o HMESHEMNAFEEEBEAER

o BEHRNEREEHNFEAEMERE

o ETEEEBMAEERRITMG

Standing Committees THAEZEE

Assist the Board in discharging its duties and
responsibilities

Enhance the Board’s understanding and knowledge
of the ESG landscape

Formulate forward-looking plans through
monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure
and opportunities identified

Recommend opportunities to strengthen the goals
and targets based on the operational experience
learning and feedback

BEERERITHE

RESEFEHRE HEREBRBH T EMDH
2R 38 B R A0 5T 1k 38 5l 8 78 Bl B L B ol O RO 442 288 > A6
TE R ST &

R EE P2 MR ER > B IN8 B RANERN
e

Management 2 [E

Oversees the enactment of sustainability initiatives across the Group.

e Delivers the strategic direction and targets to be approved by the Board

e Monitors regularly the progress of implementation of the sustainability aspiration plans

e |Instils the corporate culture across the organisation

EERELENAFEZRERNGE
s ABBLTANBRETESTHA

s EHREANFELEBSAINEHRES

o AEREMABRBEREBEEXE

Business Units ¥ #5ZBF9

Execute the policies according to the top-down instructions.

e Share the cumulative experiences in sustainability building throughout the Group

e Report on the material ESG-related risks and opportunities in daily operations

RiFE LM T A0S < MITHRE

s NEREEERENFBURSEMNRELR

s REHREZETHIRG HEREBEBNEREBRNES
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)

The Group understands that paving the way toward a more
sustainable future requires robust corporate governance and
responsible practices. Relying on the top-down management
approach, the Group could strengthen the accountability
of the Board and management, delivering long-term value
for stakeholders and ensuring the strategic objectives are
effectively achieved.

Over the years, the Group has undertaken dedicated efforts to
minimise its adverse environmental and social impacts during
its operations. To ensure the Group’s sustainable strategy and
practices align with the latest ESG-related policies, the Group
has assigned the Finance Department to conduct regular
reviews, and external consultants are engaged to convey
the latest industrial best practices to the Board, ensuring the
leadership is fully aware of evolving sustainable development
trends and responds to potential ESG risks promptly.

As the Group understands the importance of setting goals to
motivate actions, the Group has set a series of ESG-related
targets to measure the progress and performance of the
Group. Due to its business nature which mainly focuses on the
operations of natural gas intermediate services, the Group has
set a set of environmental targets which are specified in the
later section of this ESG report. The Board is responsible for
keeping track of the completion of targets according to well-
defined KPIs, ensuring these targets are aligned with the overall
mission of the Group, and adjusting the business strategies as
needed. Under the leadership of the Board, the management
regularly reviews the Group’s governance framework to ensure
the implementation of the sustainable practices fulfils the legal
requirements and stakeholders’ expectations. Details of the
Group’s management approaches in both the environmental
and social aspects are elaborated under different sections of
this ESG report.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (continuea)

Board Statement
Dear valued stakeholders,

At Global Strategic, we have unswervingly sought a sustainable
business model and incorporated our ESG leadership across
our business approach and operations. On behalf of the Board,
| am pleased to present the ESG Report of the Group for the
financial year ended 30 September 2023, demonstrating our
progress and performance against our ESG goals and our
commitment to sustainability actions.

Our Approach and Strategy

As the largest domestic gas supplier in Yichang, the Group is
committed to bringing a positive impact to the whole society
while providing a stable and reliable gas supply. We recognise
that responsible business practices are essential for long-
term success and, more importantly, for the well-being of our
communities. We embrace sustainable practices across our
value chain, from supply chain management to operational
efficiency. Through robust governance measures, we ensure
accountability, compliance, and ethical conduct in every facet
of our business.

AEFEERAR @

MM EERE
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)

Board Statement (Continued)
Our Approach and Strategy (Continued)

Our approach to ESG is rooted in a proactive engagement
with stakeholders, fostering transparent communication and
collaboration. Under the oversight of the Board, we identify
and prioritise ESG-related risks that may that may have a
significant impact on business operations through annual
stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment. In
particular, significant attention is given to climate-related risks,
which may bring profound implications for both the Group and
the local communities. By integrating insights from stakeholder
engagements and materiality assessments, the Board ensures
that our focus on ESG risks aligns with the expectations of our
diverse stakeholder groups and reinforces our commitment
to sustainable and responsible business practices. For
a comprehensive understanding of our ESG landscape
and to enhance the effectiveness of our risk identification
and prioritisation efforts, please refer to the Stakeholders
Engagement and Materiality Assessment section.

Meanwhile, our overall strategy is a roadmap for innovation,
resilience, and responsible resources management. By
investing in clean energy solutions, advancing technology-
driven initiatives, and prioritising operational safety, we
are dedicated to leading the industry towards a more
sustainable future. We also collaborate with local communities,
governments, and industry partners to deliver holistic and
impactful ESG outcomes.

Furthermore, a well-defined division of labour has been
established for various material ESG matters in shared
responsibility to effectively fulfil our corporate responsibilities.
Maximising the working capacity of the Standing Committee,
audits on the implementation of ESG measures will be
performed as needed. At the same time, the Board will review
the outcomes and make well-informed decisions.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (continuea)

Board Statement (Continued)
Our Aspirations

Beyond economic success, we envision the Group as a
catalyst for positive change. We aspire to be recognised
not only for our products but also for the enduring positive
impacts we bring to the environment and society. In FY2023,
we reviewed our ESG targets to ensure that we adhere to the
national and international sustainability goals as well as the
overall mission of the Group. In addition to the group-level
targets, the designated person in charge of each subsidiary
is responsible for developing specific annual targets with the
validation of the Board.

During the year under review, the Board and its standing
committee focus on monitoring the progress against these
targets and the implementation of the relevant practices.
In addition, the Board monitors the progress in achieving
our aspirations by overseeing corresponding performance
disclosure in the ESG Report annually.

Our Climate Resilience

With the increasing global climate-related crisis, there is
a growing concern about combating climate change and
achieving carbon neutrality. As a company majoring in the
natural gas business, we recognise that climate change may
pose significant impacts on our business operations. As such,
we set up and regularly review our environmental targets based
on science and the “30.60" national pledge to ensure we stay
ahead of emerging climate-related issues. The Board is also
dedicated to maintaining a proactive and adaptive approach to
secure the long-term sustainability of Global Strategic.
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APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY (Continued)

Board Statement (Continued)
Our Climate Resilience (Continueq)

Our commitment to climate resilience is an ongoing journey
of improvement. We are committed to mitigating our
environmental impacts through investments in renewable
energy and energy efficiency. Simultaneously, we proactively
adapt to the changing climate by conducting rigorous risk
assessments and implementing strategies to enhance our
resilience. Reckoning that climate change mitigation is a
shared responsibility, our collaboration with stakeholders,
including governments, NGOs, and local communities, reflects
our commitment to developing comprehensive strategies that
address climate challenges and contribute to the global fight
against climate change.

Looking ahead, as the pandemic control has been retrieved
and the Group have accumulated rich experience in operation
under the new normal, we reaffirm our unwavering commitment
to ESG leadership. We remain confident that through collective
efforts, the Group will continue to be a driving force for
continuous improvement, leading the energy transition and
making meaningful contributions to the world.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude towards our dedicated staff,
loyal business partners, understanding shareholders, valuable
customers and other stakeholders for continuously supporting
us on the way to transitioning towards a more sustainable
enterprise.

Wang Wenzhou
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

29 December 2023
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT IV. FlmmtBRERNZ2E

The Group recognised stakeholder engagement as an essential AEBTHIFDEEAENZHAZHE
component of its journey towards responsible and sustainable EREETNMARECERENEE
corporate governance. Through actively engaging with key PR D o BB TRRE F B MBS
stakeholders, the Group gains the opportunities to demonstrate B O AEEERSRTNEHE L&
transparency, facilitate open and informed dialogues and share AHAMABHEEURDPZEAFERE
its sustainability commitments and achievements. As each 7R E AL L o AR & @ F 2 A8 R & Bl B
stakeholder holds a unique perspective and plays a distinct role EEFNEEEMEEFENAE K
in sustainable development, the Group values every chance EEEEs—XREBMNGMEBAERR
to hear from the stakeholders and make efforts to address B S W O EE T HIREE

emerging issues.

Regular engagement is arranged for the Group to update AEETHENGEBE B U KE
new ESG objectives and performance with key stakeholders MEFHEBMNESGHZHRE RN [
while collecting their feedback and expectations to enhance WEF mAMEN R EEIEELUIEE
the development of sustainability approaches. The results EEFEERN A LT B D484
shared in the following section show the meaningful feedback THIERR-BET B/ #Em BT
that the Group received from the key stakeholders, including MAREANEEFN T EBAEHEER
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, government, MR -AEEBBETEFN mEREEN
and the general public. The Group maintains stable HEEBEREE BREEtEMMRT
connections with the stakeholders through their preferred BEMNRE BEW TR

channels for communication in a proactive manner, which are
also summarised in the table below.

Stakeholder group Engagement channels Topics of interest/concern
F=HERAE BERE REE B EE
Shareholders ° Annual report ° Business strategies and financial
g e IR performance

e Annual general meetings o  EFREKUBRIR

e REHAFKE e Corporate governance

e Corporate website e IEEA

] NSIFED o Business sustainability

e Direct communication o  EBUFEM

s HEHER e Human Resource Allocation

s ANEREE
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (continuea)

Stakeholder group

Engagement channels

IV. FlmERENSHE @

Topics of interest/concern

5 AE B & BEERE R BRI EE
Employees ° Interviews ° Rights and benefits
(== e MM o EFREH
° Training sessions ° Employee compensation
o IEFIRE e  [EEM=E
° Internal memos ° Training and development
s  RNEETEE e HIlRERE
° Working hours
o TERH
° Occupational health and safety
s HBEXRRHEZE
° Communication effectiveness
o EBEBWME
Customers ° Direct communication and emails e Products and service quality
B s EHEBBKEI e EmkBRHEE

° Complaint hotlines

e  KIFAAZ

° Opinion boxes

e TR

o Customer surveys
s ERFAE

o Service safety and stability
e RBLZEURETEME
o Protection of privacy

s  MEBRE
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Stakeholder group Engagement channels

IV. FlEtHEAERNZ2E @

Topics of interest/concern

F 5 4B B & BEERE R BRI EE
Suppliers ° Business meetings ° Fulfilment of promises
HEER s EBaZ o BITAKEE
o Tenders o Payment schedule
s KRE o  fIRmEREE
° Regular updates on business and
product requirements
s TEHEMEBREMRBN
Government ° Statutory filings and notification o Compliance with law and regulations
BT o ERXHEFERBM o BYIEBER

° Regulatory or voluntary disclosures
e EHESNBRIKRE
° Tax return

o  IMINEAIRE

General public ° Community activities
RAR e  HEEH

o Corporate donations
o {PEIRHE

Materiality Assessment

Since the identified ESG risks and opportunities for the Group
vary across different stakeholders with specific backgrounds
and concerns, materiality assessment is a fundamental step
for the Group to gather and evaluate the feedback of the
stakeholders and integrate these insights into the Group’s
strategy. As such, the Group conducts regular materiality
assessments to maintain continuous engagement with its
stakeholders.

° Fulfilment of tax obligation
s RBIUMHBEML

° Environmental protection
o  IRIBRE

° Fair employment opportunities
e ATHMEKE

o Environmental awareness

o  IRIBRERH

BB

AR AR mEREENE RN EM
KRR > B ) 2 Ay 2 EARRTRY
ESGR M Bt AEER It &

BHFERAEBEWREM DA =8
MERE WREERERMASEEER
WEESH AEBTHETEZMT
fir ) RIS A miBRAE @ EE -
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continueqd)

In FY2023, the Group actively engaged with the key
stakeholders and invited well-selected stakeholder
representatives to participate in a materiality assessment
survey conducted by a third-party consultancy agency.
Through collecting responses on the questionnaire, which
is designed according to the Group’s overarching mission
and business development, the Group eventually formulated
a materiality assessment matrix below, representing the
concerns expressed by its stakeholders on ESG matters
and empowering the Group to devise more effective ESG
management strategies and plans.

The Group adopted a stepwise process for topic identification,
prioritisation, and validation to ensure that relevant
sustainability topics are being managed and reported in
accordance with their materiality.

(1) Identification

With reference to the internationally recognised reporting
frameworks, a list of 28 fundamental sustainability topics
was identified under the latest sustainability landscape,
which were recognised as having potential environmental
and social impacts through the Group’s operations.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continueqd)

(1)

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

68

Identification (Continued)

GHG Emissions

B E SRR FER

Energy Management

fEREE

Water & Wastewater Management
KERMEEKERE

Solid Waste Stewardship
BB RE =Y B 12

Climate Change Mitigation & Adaptation

RIBECEEERE
Renewable and Clean Energy
AREMNERER
Labour Practices
BT
Employee Remuneration and Benefits
12 B Fr B R AR A R
Occupational Health and Safety
HERRELSD
Employee Development and Training
B B3 R K153l
Green Procurement
e
Engagement with Suppliers
BHERNREER
Environmental and Social

Risk Management of Supply Chain
HEENIREHERGEE
Supply Chain Resilience
fH & 5 ¥ 0 20 /=L B 19 2 FE 14
Product/Service Quality and Safety
ER/IRBEEEHZR
Customer Privacy and Data Security
BEENRRENBEZS
Marketing and Promotion

S E

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

IV. FmfEfERNSR @
EE WG (@)

(1) #5 (%)

Intellectual Property Rights

GEFIE T3

Labelling Relating to Products/Services

BlE S/ RBERMNRERE

Business Ethics & Anti-corruption

FEEENRER

Internal Grievance Mechanism

P BB ER 5 1 1)

Participation in Philanthropy

NABEEHNRE

Cultivation of Local Employment

23 & i 3

Support of Local Economic Development

S FHAMKHEER

Business Model Adaptation and Resilience to
Environmental, Social, Political and Economic
Risks and Opportunities

FEBUHIRIEG i BUATKHE RIEH %8
B9 38 FE 1 R AR

Management of the Legal & Regulatory
Environment (regulation-compliance
management)

FREERESCNEHNE
)

Critical Incident Risk Responsiveness

SREE B = R R FE ¥ Ak

Systemic Risk Management (e.g., Financial

12 CERERE

Crisis)

ARERBRER (B> /e
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) IV. FlmtHRABENZ2HE »

Materiality Assessment (Continued) EEMFG @)
(2) Prioritisation (2 #HF
To determine the materiality of the selected ESG topics, A EFEESGEENEE S
an online evaluation survey was distributed among well- BiE—RET -SHREEAEB &
selected stakeholder representatives, including general EEBRSEBRAHANELART
staff, senior management, directors, business partners, ABF mERAE BB 24 L
and professional organisations, to give their ratings AT HESGEBETRET
against the list of ESG issues. The material topics were TR - AEEREHINEESR
analysed, prioritised, and then mapped on the materiality BETONMEEERHER TR
matrix below to reflect their level of importance. UTEEMBERIE > MR
HEE %o

Stakeholder Engagement Materiality Matrix
FHIERAE N2 REEE S T IERE

16
26\0 o o 20
[ o/27 o/g\S o 21
3 18 15 25
° o o
S
X [l 12
S =
o
S Yo oV Oy O, o9
5B
+ OO
X i< 11 oo
i §g o75%10 %o
o= \ 13
g 14
oXx
£x
SR
2
E 23 0 24 =
29 o4
02
o1
06
5-0 03
Importance to the Group
HAEERNEEY
O Environmental Impacts #1582 O Employment and Labour Practices &% T &R
O Operating Practices &3Z 18 O Community Investment &% &

O Leadership & Governance BE N E A
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Materiality Assessment (Continueqd)

2

3

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Prioritisation (Continued)

According to the outcome of the materiality analysis
matrix, the Group identified five ESG issues that were of
great significance to both the Group and its stakeholders,
namely “Business Ethics and Anti-corruption”, “Internal
Grievance Mechanism”, “Business Model Adaptation

and Resilience to Environmental, Social, Political and

Economic Risks and Opportunities”, “Systemic Risk

Management” and “Occupational Health and Safety”.

Validation

The results of the materiality assessment that was
reviewed and validated by the Board enabled the Group
to objectively pinpoint and prioritise the most significant
and relevant sustainability issues, as well as establish
appropriate and effective management policies and
internal control systems to address ESG matters.

IV. FmfEfERNSR @

EEME (&)
(2) #HF &)
RBEEEME DT ERENER > &

(3
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued)

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

Launched in 2015 by the United Nations, the 17 SDGs are a
set of goals, targets, and indicators to guide countries and
organisations in creating a sustainable world by 2030. Besides
the top material issues, the Group believes that its sustainability
work should also contribute to and make progress towards
most of the SDGs. In FY2023, the Group identified five SDGs
that have material alignment to its business and ESG strategy,
as shown below:

v
g
KT
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IV. FIZMERAENZE @

XFARFESRER

BEBR2015FH 17O &%
BREERER—ZR7ER - EREBENIE
T EHEEESEMABRETE MU
FE2030F ZHIRIE—EAIREZEREN
HRBBAEEMNEREEIIN AE
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) V.

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)

(Continued)

Referencing the evaluation result of its stakeholders’ opinions,
“Goal 3: Good Health and Well-being”, “Goal 8: Decent Work
and Economic Growth”, “Goal 9: Industry, Innovation, and

Infrastructure”, “Goal 10: Reduced Inequalities” and “Goal 11:

Sustainable Cities and Communities” were taken as the most

concerned goals for the Group’s sustainability development.

In response to the concerns of its stakeholders, the Group is

committed to laying more emphasis and resources on these

goals.

Goal 3: Good Health and Well-being

BiR= : RiFfEREE

GOOD HEALTH
AND WELL-BEING

' .

RiF .

RERSEH

4 -
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BiRe

The Group aspires to be the safest natural gas-related company with
zero accident rate.

FEFITSHEREZ - EWETNXRAREMEE-

Implement robust occupational health and safety protocols
Provide occupational health and safety training to all staff

Promote the safe use of gas to the public
Increase the frequency of pipeline safety inspection
Collaborate with local healthcare organisations

BB WRERENZ2HE
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) IV. FlmmtBRAENZ2E @

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) IHAUFERRERE (&)

(Continued)

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMIC GROWTH

i

{SETL(ER
K

o

INDUSTRY, INNOVATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

Ak, QUFRAD
Hilhig

Goal 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth

BEN  BEIEMKSEELER

The Group aspires to promote inclusive economic growth and provide

decent work for all.

FEEBRONRECIULSEER AFEARHEERI (-

e Ensure the equal pay for work of equal value

e Provide decent job opportunities for all women and man, young people and
disabled people

e Regularly review and adjust compensation structures

e [ncrease the number of employees from communities of concern in the
workforce

o HE(RIE L[EB

e HMBEBR FRANBEREALRERBEMNIERS

o EHAEBWAEIMNAEE

o BIMTRPRENIHRNE T AH

Goal 9: Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure

BEA EX -AINRMERRE

The Group aspires to support the local development with a focus on

affordable and equitable access in view of increasing energy demand.

BRADERNERER *ERUSZFEMER

BRI BN A FREERER -

e Develop reliable, sustainable and resilient infrastructure

e Allocate resources in exploration on innovative technologies

e |nvest in upgrading current infrastructures

e Collaborate with suppliers to adopt circular economy practices in the
sourcing of raw materials

e MEMSR AIRHENAIUENERRE

o DEEIRERREIF B AM

s BREARIRA BRI

s HEEESIF ERMERBHERRBIRKE
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) IVv. FZHEAENZE @

Supporting the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) TIFAFERRERBE (&)
(Continued)

Goal 10: Reduced Inequalities
BiE+ HORFE
.I REDUCED The Group aspires to reduce inequalities and creates a workplace that
INEQUALITIES values diversity and inclusion.
— FEBTSHORFS EEERSBCABMNIESRH-
4 — } e Develop and implement comprehensive diversity and inclusion programs
A 4 e Ensure transparency in hiring and promotion processes
* Provide training programs that address unconscious bias and other
10 WDREE diversity-related topics
e Regularly review and update compensation structures to ensure equal pay

A

— for equal work
(=) s FIEMLEMEEMNZ TIEMBEEE
v s BREEROZFRENEHE
o RMHEEERRREREMEZ TEABHEELEI
o EMBRANBEHFHEEE  HELRRE TR

Goal 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities

B AIEERTHtE

The Group aspires to create positive legacy and sustainable futures

for the communities where it operates.

FEEITESAELEFRENTERIEEBAY E @M =Ml FHFER KRR

e Provide local job opportunities and pay taxes on time

e Create safe, resilient and sustainable human settlements

e Promote high-efficiency energy use and improve service quality for
increasing urban population

e Support initiatives for the preservation of cultural heritage and historical
landmarks within urban areas

o IRMHACHN LK S W AR ANTR

e BIEZE -FRMUMAFENABTE

o BEMRRSMAA  BEMEMNEmALNESREZES

o ZFF{RAE M & )L B A N FE L AR AV 2R 45
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IV. STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (Continued) IV. FlZtHRABENZHE =

Stakeholders’ feedback

As the Group strives for excellence, stakeholders’ feedback
is appreciated, especially on topics listed as the highest
importance in the materiality assessment and its ESG approach
and performance. Readers can share their views with the
Group at info@globalstgr.com.hk.

ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

Given the growing concerns about climate change and
other environmental crises, the Group has incorporated
environmental responsibility into its sustainable strategy
and business operations to show its commitment, aiming to
reduce its carbon footprint, mitigate environmental impact,
and contribute to a more sustainable world. Recognising
the importance of long-term sustainability, the Group has
formulated internal policies, procedures, and guidelines to
standardise the environmental actions and strictly control the
organisation’s emissions and energy consumption.

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices
and performance on emissions, use of resources, the
environment and natural resources, as well as climate change
in FY2023. For detailed quantitative information regarding
different categories of emissions and the use of resources,
please refer to Table E1 and Table E2 in the APPENDIX —
PERFORMANCE TABLE.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. IRIZEE ®
(Continued)
A.1 Emissions A1 B
Law compliance ZEEEH

In FY2023, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and found no disregard to national or local
influential laws in relation to GHG emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste, including but not limited to:

° Environmental Protection Law of the People’s

Republic of Ching;

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution;

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution;

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IBIKEERERMAR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 3R
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Law compliance (Continued)

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Wastes; and

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Conserving Energy.

In FY2023, air pollutants emitted from the Group including
sulphur oxides (“SOx”), nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and
particulate matter (“PM”) were mainly generated from the
vehicles for transportation and operations. Meanwhile,
the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions were primarily
attributed to the combustion of fossil fuels and the
consumption of electricity in its business operations.
Non-hazardous wastewater discharged by the Group
primarily consisted of domestic and industrial wastewater,
while no significant amount of hazardous waste or non-
hazardous solid waste was recorded during the year
under review. The Group’s total emissions in FY2023
are summarised in Table E1 in the section APPENDIX —
PERFORMANCE TABLE.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT
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HERELARS

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Air and GHG Emissions

In FY2023, the total air emissions of the Group, which
were primarily from vehicle use for transportation and
operations, increased significantly as compared with
that of the financial year ended 30 September 2022
(“FY2022”). The rise in air emissions was primarily due to
the increase in gasoline consumption in vehicle used for

business opportunities during the reporting year.

At Global Strategic, the direct emissions (Scope 1) were
from the consumption of gasoline for transportation.
Regarding the indirect emissions, electricity consumption
was the primary source of Scope 2 emissions, while
business air travel, freshwater and wastewater treatment
arose in daily operations were the main contributors to
Scope 3 emissions.

In FY2023,
unchanged, with Scope 2 emissions from electricity

the GHG emissions pattern remained

consumption being the dominant contributor (71%). The
total GHG emissions in FY2023 remained substantially
constant compared to FY2022, with a slight decrease in
Scope 2 emissions and significant increase in Scope 1
and Scope 3 emissions.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIEEFE®
(Continued)
A.1 Emissions (Continued) Al HERRYD (2
Air and GHG Emissions (Continued) R BEREHNK (&
1% 1%
| 20%
28%
GHG Emission Pattern GHG Emission Pattern
in FY2022 in FY2023
—ECCHERERE ZE=HERERE
\ HeniE=t / HeniE=
79% \ / 71%
Scope 1 #HE— Scope 2 #E_ ® Scope 3 HE= Scope 1 fBE— Scope 2 #BE " Scope 3 #E=

To reduce the direct emissions from vehicles transport,
the Group continued its efforts to monitor and control
the vehicles use for transportation through measures and
approaches including:

° Progressively replace energy-intensive vehicles in
the fleet with more environmentally friendly models
to improve energy efficiency;

° Strictly enforce fleet maintenance schedules to keep
vehicles in optimal working condition and minimise
emissions from poorly maintained engines;

AR EBEREWMEENEZS
BoAEREBES HHEHE
B ERETERMES IR
BN A EAE ¢
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V.

(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Air and GHG Emissions (Continued)

IRIR

B1E @

Al iR (&

Promote fuel-efficient driving practices among
drivers, including prohibiting idling engines,
maintaining steady vehicle speeds and ensuring

proper tire inflation;

Explore the opportunities in using more efficient
energy source alternatives;

Adopt remote work and telecommuting to reduce
unnecessary transportation or travel;

Establish scientific, standardised reporting and
tracking systems to monitor and record emissions
data for better decision-making and benchmarking;
and

Cooperate with suppliers and logistics partners to
optimise transportation emissions throughout the

supply chain.

For indirect emissions, detailed measures taken by the

Group to reduce its GHG emissions through electricity

conservation are described in A.2 Use of Resources of

this report.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Solid Waste and Wastewater
Non-hazardous waste

In FY2023, the non-hazardous wastewater and solid
waste generated by the Group were mainly domestic
wastewater and municipal solid waste from daily
operations. The amount of wastewater generated by the
Group during the year under review decreased by 61%
compared to FY2022. To keep its good performance up,
the Group is committed to further controlling its waste
discharges and strive for better waste generation and
disposal management.

With the promotion of the concept of circular economy
and the national waste classification regulation, the
Group promotes the “3R principle — Reduce, Reuse and
Recycle” through implementing waste reduction policies
and practices to minimise the generation of solid waste at
the source, including:

° Train employees on proper waste management
practices and the importance of waste reduction
and recycling;

° Provide reusable cups and cutleries in the offices to
minimise the use of disposable items;

° Establish a comprehensive recycling scheme for
recyclable material including paper, cardboard,
plastics, glass and metals;

° Arrange separable bins for collecting recyclable and

non-recyclable solid wastes; and

° Collaborate with professional third parties to collect,
clean, process and recycle the sorted solid waste.
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HERELARS

V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Solid Waste and Wastewater (Continueqd)
Non-hazardous waste (Continued)

In FY2023, the Group launched several “waste less”
initiatives to enhance its solid waste management
practices and promote environmentally responsible
disposal methods in the organisation, resulting in cost
savings and improved corporate sustainability.

During the year under review, the wastewater discharged
from the Group primarily comprised commercial
wastewater originating from offices and industrial
wastewater from pipe installation operations. The Group
complied with the local laws and regulations regarding
wastewater discharge and formulated a specific
wastewater discharge management method to eliminate
the water quality impact of the wastewater. Municipal
wastewater from offices is directly discharged into the
sewer, while industrial wastewater is scientifically treated
and tested on wastewater quality before discharge
to ensure its compliance with statutory requirements,
including the concentrations of suspended solids, COD
(Chemical Oxygen Demand), BOD (Biological Oxygen
Demand) and other parameters.

Meanwhile, since wastewater discharge relies heavily
on the amount of freshwater that the Group consumes,
the Group has also implemented effective measures to
reduce water consumption in its daily operations, which
are further described in section A.2 Use of Resources.

V.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.1 Emissions (Continued)

Solid Waste and Wastewater (Continued)

Hazardous wastes

The hazardous wastes disposed of by the Group were
principally comprised of iron oxide and waste mineral
oil from gas pipe installation. The Group adopts clear
protocols and conducts regular inspections to strictly
monitor the proper handling procedures of hazardous
waste at each stage to ensure the secure management of
hazardous waste. After collection, all hazardous wastes
will be treated and disposed of by authorised professional
agencies. In FY2023, the Group did not generate or
record any significant amount of hazardous waste.

Noise

The noise generated by the Group mainly came from the
operation of construction equipment, such as bulldozers,

during pipe installation activities.

In accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from
Environmental Noise and other applicable regulations, the
Group has implemented measures to control noise during
the operations. The Group also designated specialised
personnel responsible for conducting routine inspections
of the equipment to detect and rectify malfunctions
promptly, thereby avoiding excessive noise. Furthermore,
the Group has established noise-proof equipment rooms

to mitigate and prevent noise pollution.

In FY2023, the Group did not receive any substantial
complaints or fines related to noise emissions from its

neighbourhood nor the authorities.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

In FY2023,
Group were electricity, water, gasoline and paper. Due to

the primary resources consumed by the

its business nature, the use of packaging materials was
not material to the Group’s operations. Table E2 in the
chapter APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE illustrates
the amount of different resources used by the Group in
FY2023.

Electricity

In FY2023, the total electricity consumption of the Group
amounted to 157 kWh’000 with an intensity of 2.57
kWh’000/employee. Daily operations in the offices and
working sites were the primary sources of the electricity
consumption of the Group. During the year under
review, due to the effective management of electricity
consumption, a slight decrease of 12% in total electricity
usage was recorded.

In pursuit of better management of electricity
consumption, the Group adopted several measures and
approaches to ensure all subsidiaries and departments
of the Group adhere to its electricity-saving principles,
including:

° Turn off all idling electronic equipment, including air
conditioners and multimedia systems, when leaving;

° Adopt temperature control for air-conditioners
and maintain a constant indoor air temperature of
25-26°C;

o Affix
places of the workplace to encourage resource

“Saving electricity” labels in prominent

conservation;
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

Electricity (Continued)

° Replace high electricity consumption equipment
with energy-saving ones, such as LED lights;

° Adjust the lighting and ventilation system according
to the working area during night production; and

° Arrange regular inspection and maintenance
of electrical appliances to ensure their optimal
operations.

Other energy resources

During the year under review, the consumption of other
energy resources mainly came from gasoline used by the
Group for transportation purposes. In FY2023, 15,900
litres of gasoline were consumed by the Group, doubling
the amount consumed in FY2022.

Recognising the detrimental environmental impacts
of fossil fuel consumption, the Group has remained
steadfast in its efforts to control and reduce the
use of such fuels by embracing cleaner and more
environmentally friendly alternatives. During the year
under review, the Group put more emphasis on
sustainable solutions by enhancing the energy efficiency
of its vehicle fleet and actively exploring opportunities
to accelerate the transition towards these cleaner
alternatives.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Water

In the natural gas business, freshwater was mainly used
for filter cleansing and examination of facilities during the
operations. As the Group obtained water from municipal
supplies, the Group did not face any problems in sourcing
water that is fit for its purposes in FY2023. During the
year under review, the Group used around 183 m?® of
water, which was 61% less than that in the previous year.
The reduction was mainly attributed to the practices and
initiatives aimed at promoting water conservation and
sustainability.

To further strengthen water conservation efforts, the
Group is committed to fulfilling its responsibility to
improve the utilisation efficiency of water resources in
offices and working stations through the implementation
of various measures, including but not limited to:

° Educate employees about the awareness of water
conservation and provide regular training on water-
saving practices;

° Implement technical applications to improve the
utilisation efficiency of water resources, including
flow controllers, low-flow flushing and rainwater
harvesting systems;

° Establish water consumption benchmarks and set
reduction targets to track progress and motivate
ongoing improvements;

° Conduct monitoring and regular leakage inspection
to identify areas of high-water consumption and
opportunities for reduction;

° Adjust the water supply according to the seasonal
temperature change; and

o Implement systems to recycle and treat wastewater
for reuse within the facility and the irrigation of the
surrounding farms.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIEEE®
(Continued)
A.2 Use of Resources (Continued) A2 BRER (&
Paper R

Paper consumed by the Group was mostly used for its
administrative work. In FY2023, the Group consumed
around 140 kg of paper, remaining the same level of
paper consumption as in FY2022, thanks to the collective
efforts of all staff to regulate paper use practices and
reduce the consumption of paper-made products.

To further encourage its employees to save paper and
other paper-made products, the Group has actively
implemented internal practices to promote the concept of
“Paperless Office” and “Office Automation”, including but
not limited to:

o Promote the use of digital means for file storage,
communication and sharing of information;

° Train employees on paper-saving practices and

promote a culture of sustainability in the office;

° Set duplex printing as the default mode for most
network printers to reduce paper waste;

° Using posters and stickers to remind the staff to

avoid unnecessary printing;

° Prioritise the use of paper made from recycled
materials; and

° Assign responsible personnel for wastepaper
collection and recycling.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

As one of the leading enterprises in natural gas industry,
the Group conducts business with a strong commitment
to environmental responsibility and adherence to
applicable environmental regulations and requirements. In
FY2023, although the Group’s operations did not cause
significant environmental impacts, the Group identified
GHG emissions, primarily from the consumption of fossil
fuels and electricity, as a relatively more material impacts
arose from its operations. To promote sustainability
and responsible environmental stewardship, the Group
initiated proactive measures aimed at consistently
reducing its consumption of environmental and natural

resources.

Biodiversity

The Group regards biodiversity preservation as a critical
responsibility for its long-term business success and
integrates biodiversity considerations into its decision-
making and daily operations. To protect wild animals
and plants, the Group complied with the relevant laws
and regulations and made efforts to avoid operating in
ecologically sensitive areas. According to the mitigation
hierarchy, avoidance is always the predominant option of
the Group, while minimisation, restoration and offset will
be considered where applicable. During the year under
review, the Group has implemented a set of guidelines
and actions to overcome business challenges through
natural-based solutions. In the future, the Group will
benchmark the leading practices in the industry, including
the implementation of vegetation management in pipeline
installation. By implementing these practices, the Group
could demonstrate its commitment to operating in an
environmentally responsible manner and minimising its

impact on local ecosystems and biodiversity.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

Employee engagement

As the Group continues its commitment to sustainable
practices and environmental stewardship, fostering
employee engagement becomes a crucial aspect of
ensuring the success of these initiatives. To build an eco-
conscious culture in the workplace, regular reminders are
sent to all staff to enhance their awareness of resource
conservation. The Group also encourages employees
to choose public transport and car-pool practices for
commuting, aiming to ingrain their positive lifestyle and

habits.

The Group has spared no effort in promoting a “green
lifestyle” and “green workplace” across the organisation.
In FY2023, to effectively convey its environmental
mission, the Group conducted regular sharing on the
Group’s performance and achievement to sustainability,
creating a sense of pride and belonging among
employees. To encourage employees to take the
lead in green initiatives, the Hong Kong office of the
Group has been piloting the collection and recycling of
wastepaper. Used envelopes are collected and stored in
the designated place until a sufficient amount is gathered.
The whole batch is then brought to the Wan Chai
Recycling Station for recycling at the end of the working

week.
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. IRIEEE®@
(Continued)
A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued) A3 IRIERXRER (&)
Employee engagement (Continued) ES2E8 (&

WAN CHAI RECYCLING
STATION

HRTEIE(T
A2
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIREFE @
(Continued)
A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued) A3 IRIBERXAEBR (&

Targets and actions BERITE

In FY2022, the Group set a series of short-term RZE__ME xEBHET

environmental targets to promote itself towards a more —RIEHIREER UEHB

environmentally friendly operating model The Group SENPRRNEEE K&

believes that setting an indefinite short-term target EEE BRIREREERNEH

for efficiency enhancement on a yearly basis is more EREUESFRaSNEXEEAEHE-

appropriate at this moment. In FY2023, to take further ABRIE—FLTH AEERZ

action, the Group has carefully reviewed its past and T —MFREERTBERE

current performance and updated the specific targets for AINRIB > TEH T AEASEHN

specific aspects. BEiEERZ-

Areas Targets Progress & Actions

[EmE B ERET

Air Emissions The amount of air pollutants In FY2023, the intensities of the Group’s air

BE RBERL emitted per employee in emissions (SOx, NOx, and PM) increased drastically
FY2024 should be lower than by 105%, 104% and 104% respectively due to the
the corresponding intensity in increased gasoline consumption.
FY2023. RIZBZ=F%F BNHHEERNEN AEH
“EIMNMF - BETINER BIEE mHE I (SOx ~ NOXFIPM) 2 E 73 Bl K ig £ 7+
SRR ERBENR T =  105% 104%F104%°
BFEZEERE-

To seek the targets, the Group will focus on
reducing unnecessary business travel and adopting
more energy efficient vehicles with alternative
energy source such as electric vehicles.
REREER AERREINROALENEHE
AT WERFA EEAESi R &R EE (FIN
BEH) -
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V.
(Continued)

IRIEEE @

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued) A3 IRIBERXAEBR (&

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Targets and actions (Continued)

Areas

B E

Targets
Bz

BERITE (&

Progress & Actions

ERET

GHG Emissions The amount of GHG emitted

BERBHER per employee in FY2024
should be lower than the
corresponding intensity in
FY2023.
“_ENHMF - BEINAE
RERERERN-Z =/
FZHEEBE-

Water and The amount of water

wastewater consumed, and wastewater

7K e BE 7K discharged per employee in

FY2024 should be lower than
the corresponding intensities in
FY2023.
TN FE - BEIMNAK
BMEKBINERER ZZ
_=HMEZHEERE-

In FY2023, the intensity of the Group’s total GHG
emissions maintained at a similar level.
RIZEZ=MF AEERNAEREBIHIIEZEEE
SN -E

To further lower its GHG emissions, the Group will
strictly control the business practices and adopt
cleaner technologies to achieve carbon reduction
through minimising the use of fossil fuel, enhancing
production efficiency and promoting resources
conservation during operations.
RE—FREBERBEIN ZEERBRSIZEFHE
EBEE RAERENEM  BBERERIMEA
MERNER - RELEENX REEEBETNE
TRENAI R B IR A BE

In FY2023, the intensity of water consumed, and
wastewater discharged by the Group decreased by
62%), which achieved last year’s target.
RIZEZ=0%F AEBNRAKEEMEKERR
ETRET62% BRTEENER-

To continue with these targets, the Group further
its promotion of 3R principles — reduce, reuse
and recycle, and continue its water conservation
management through strengthening the water
conservation education work and conducting
regular leakage test.

REBENESLEER AERERE—FHEIRR
Bl =R/~ BB BB IR K E S T
MEHET 2 RAE  FEBEEMKEIR
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V.

(Continued)

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

RIEEE @

A3 IRIBERXAER (&

Targets and actions (Continued)

BERITE (&

Areas Targets Progress & Actions

[EmE Bz ERAT

Paper The amount of paper used In FY2023, the intensity of paper usage slightly
IR per employee in FY2024 decreased by 2% as compared to the previous

should be 10% lower than
the corresponding intensity in
FY2023.

“EIWNHMF BEIHAK
HESEIE S - =/FZE
FEZE TE10%-

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

year.
RIS _=FE  ZEBMNAREREEREE/N
8 T F&E2% ©

To take a further step, the Group will continue

to encourage the idea of “Paperless Office” and
“Office Automation”, improve paper recycling rates
and prioritise the procurement of eco-friendly
paper.

ARBPE—D  XEBREESEBRECHAEIR
A BEb B REMROEURE > WELRE
IRTRAROR
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. B8
(Continued)

£ =)

A3 RIERRXAER (&

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Targets and actions (Continued)

BERITE ()

Areas Targets Progress & Actions
[EmE Bz ERATE
Electricity The amount of electricity In FY2023, the intensity of electricity consumption

B used per employee in FY2024
should be 10% lower than
the corresponding intensity in

FY2023.
TEINME SRTHED

RHEEBELE S _=HE>
EREEE R TE10%

Gasoline

R

The amount of gasoline used
per employee in FY2024
should be lower than the
corresponding intensity in
FY2023.

2T FE - BEIRAH
RERER_Z_=MF2M
EEE-

decreased by around 13% as compared to the
previous yeatr.

RIZBZ_=F AEBNBEZEREF TRY
13%°

To effectively reduce the electricity consumption,
the Group will continue its efforts on strengthening
the electricity conservation work among staff,
prioritising energy efficient equipment during
procurement and implement the guideline to
standardise the practice for electricity conservation.
HEVERABEE *EERSFESBE THNA
BIF BARBHERE ZERELAERSI-

In FY2023, the intensity of gasoline usage
significantly increased by 105% as compared to the
previous year.

RIBEZ_=FF AEENTEEREEREFKR
8 = F+105% °

To strive for its targets, the Group will continue its
active efforts to manage vehicle fuel consumption
by promoting responsible driving practices,
conducting regular vehicle maintenance,
encouraging staff to choose public transportation,
as well as adopting digital tools to avoid
unnecessary travelling.

RHERBR RERREGRREIREHMIAHH
ﬁ}@%ﬁ%%;&% ERB IS EIREER
BEETRANETBT A - UKKABEFTANR
BB ERIEIT
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change

With the growing global concern over the climate-related
crisis, the Group recognises that addressing climate
change is not only a moral and ethical imperative but also
a strategic need for the Group’s long-term success and
sustainability development. To accelerate the transition to
carbon neutrality, the Group is committed to taking further
steps to manage its climate risks while identifying relevant
business opportunities.

Management Approach

The Group reckons the importance of providing the
transparent and comprehensive approach to managing
climate-related issues across its operations. As detailed in
the chapter APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY, the Board
of the Group is responsible for overall risk oversight. The
Board and Standing Committees also carry the duty to
monitor the implementation, progress, and performance
of climate mitigation measures through regular reporting
of the management.

In addition, the Group also established an advisory panel
comprised of experienced professionals on the Board
to enhance the Group’s resilience to climate change by
continuously optimising its management strategies and
measures. Furthermore, this designated advisory panel
places a particular emphasis on monitoring changes and
updates of the international and government policies,
especially the “1+N Policy System” of China, which
guides the transition to a low-carbon economy. By
strengthening its attention on climate policy trends and
information, the Group is committed to learning from peer
companies and implementing its own-resource finance
responses.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. IRIZEE ®
(Continued)
A.4 Climate Change (Continued) A4 RIREME (&

Climate Risks and Opportunities

As related concerns raised by an increasing number of
stakeholders, studying and disclosing the strategies and
measures on climate-related risks and opportunities have
become much more critical today. Therefore, referring
to the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), the Group analysed
and summarised the implications of physical and
transition climate-related risks and opportunities on its
business operations, as shown in the table below.

1R )3 B

10 F) m AH B & SRR AH B EL R
WEEZEA@ME > 2HANKER
5% A8 B [ B A0 1% 48 BY 2R B A0 5 7k
EEMESEMEEZ AL K&
E2EREERYHINE T IFAE
i RLARE T RIZERD
MWERNBLEREKBEHHESE
BEENTE WTRATRe

Risk Potential Impact
R % BuETE
Physical Risk - Increase in severity and - Increased frequency and severity

EREE R frequency of extreme weather
events such as storms,
typhoons, and flood

— B Be R HKE M im S Y
EREREMIEXIE NN

- Rising mean temperature due to
global warming
— ZERSTFHRELA -

— Change in precipitation pattern
and increase in water scarcity

— BAREANIEMKEREGH S
B9 N0 &I
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of extreme weather events may
disrupt normal business operations,
damage infrastructures, and

lead to supply chain disruptions.
For instance, intense storms

may degrade transportation
infrastructures, thus leading to an
unstable supply chain.
ERATEMERINRIGR R E T
BRI AEREENEHEE
BIEERR T SR HEHR TR

The rising temperature could pose
negative impacts on the health of
staff during summer, especially
fieldworkers.
REASEESTAEEIMEAEN
REEFEETE LHERIME
EFANE-
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIEEFE @
(Continued)
A.4 Climate Change (Continued) A4 RIREME &)
Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued) RAIRE R LB (E)
Risk Potential Impact
7 BEXE

- Droughts, heavy rainfall and
changing precipitation patterns
could lead to unstable water supply
or even water shortages thus
affecting the business operations
of the gas station, which relies
on having enough water for filter
cleansing and examination of
facilities.

- EEIWJD IR 7S B IO MK AR IE 5

RS TIETRERSE R’
% PR AN [ K R TR B E B B A ik

TREEEKEREMOEERSE
FEHXGEE-

= o~
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change (Continued)

Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued)

Risk
]

V.

IRIEEE @

A4

RIREE T

NE A R B ()

Potential Impact

3] =4
BESE

Transition Risk
AR S

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

New environmental regulations
and more aggressive emission
requirements, such as
emissions reduction targets,
may come into place
MHIRIE VAR AN B EAS B HE R
ER (FIMAHEER ARE W

VAN
=]

Development of the emerging
technologies may increase
the operating cost due to
unexpected performance
MERETNERIETIREAR
AR E B SER BTG NS &
%N

Uncertain market signals
towards clean energy may bring
several negative impacts on the
Group, particularly the access
to capital

MHEBERERA ENAEE
%ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁ%@%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ%%i
BHXE
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Introducing stricter environmental
regulations may increase
compliance costs for the Group,
which might require investments

in emission control technologies,
procedure modification and
additional monitoring and reporting.
EERNIRRERAUEEEAER
HPERUE S BT ~ AR & LU B
SMVEIEMRE T EETRE &
HREESH AR

While the development of emerging
technologies holds the potential
for more environmentally friendly
operations, it can initially increase
operating costs and the expenses
may not receive financial return as
expected.
MEEMHNERTEESRIERE
EREHAEREB BRIAEERR
ABARIE N > B LEEN X WH
B AR A IS TRHARY BA F5 [B14R o
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY V. RIEEFE @
(Continued)
A.4 Climate Change (Continued) A4 RIREME (&
Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued) RIZE R EEE (&
Risk Potential Impact
7 BEXE

- With an unstable global natural
gas supply, there are chances
that the market may eliminate the
reliance on natural gas by investing
more in renewable electricity. The
Group will be exposed to risks
associated with its natural gas
business if there are significant
hurdles in the market development.
Meanwhile, uncertainty in the
clean energy market can erode
investors’ confidence, reducing
access to capital as investors seek
more predictable and sustainable
opportunities.

— HRE2HXRAREEFRE > M5
BrfEBEMAHIBEERN
KRERHFERARBIKIE 1R
MZERBINERNEE  AEEE
EERE R AR EFERANRER  [F
B AR KREBEEERSKER R
MAFBEOKBE > THEBRER
FENAEEMEFHISSEE
D RMEREEERSEANEE
e
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V. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Continued)

A.4 Climate Change (Continued)
Climate Risks and Opportunities (Continued)

Opportunity
Hia

IRIBEE @

A4 RIREME (&

wAZE RS ()

Potential Impact

- Over the next few decades, energy systems -

are expected to change dramatically to meet
local, national, and global climate goals.
Decarbonisation of sectors such as power
generation means a higher demand for clean
fuels, including natural gas.

— TERKERRAAESRELEBEREL LURE
EM - BERMNEHKNREER - BEEHTENR
MEREHRARTANZFMRREESEK

- Implementing responsible and sustainable

practices in operations, supply chain, and -

corporate governance can improve the Group’s
reputation and attract environmentally conscious
customers and investors.

— TEE-HESMCXAESFmEMRSEENA
FENBEERIMUIESEENBEENRIAEGIR
REHNERMEESE -

To get prepared in advance to minimise the potential
impacts of climate risks on its operations, the Group is
dedicating substantial resources and effort to developing
comprehensive plans and management measures.

In the future, to better determine the Group’s risk
exposure and assess its climate resilience strategies,
scenario analysis is planned to be undertaken as
suggested by the Recommendations of the TCFD based
on the Group’s readiness and the Board’s consideration
of necessity.

Increased stakeholder environmental
concerns and shifts in market preferences
as guided by the “coal-to-gas” project of
the government may boost the Group’s
business growth with natural gas pipeline
installation as its major business.

A ESRIEBESIET  Fm S
HIRIFNED TG MU R TG RIF A EE ]
EEEFEEURAREERERTEX
BHEBERE-

Demonstrating a commitment

to sustainable development and
responsible practices enhances the
Group’s reputation, strengthens its
competitiveness among its peers and
attracts a broader range of investors.
BRBOFESEENaETEENARY
MiIEEEBNEE  BREARITHNER
FHIRIBEZNRES -

BHIRBIMTES RARERKE

RIEEEREREEESENBER
&’$%l AERA—ENE
BN UGEE2EMNEEME
BiE o

R > 7% 5B 47 3t 8 Bl L BR i O I
FEEREERRE  AERG
BRBHEFEBRIREST TN
E%%E’ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%%%ﬁ
BETRENEZRETBEROM -
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY VI. 2 E5E

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES BEKREIER

B.1 Employment B.1 11§

In the ever-evolving landscape of the natural gas
industry, the Group believes that human resources
are the greatest assets and remain at the heart of the
business success. As part of the corporate sustainable
strategy, the Group values the contribution of every
employee and is committed to fostering a diverse,
inclusive, and dynamic workforce. Recognising that only
through efficient recruitment, professional training and
management can the Group ensure the best control over
the professionalism of its employees, the Group has
formulated and implemented various hiring guidelines
and practices to standard the hiring procedures and
employment systems.

As of the end of FY2023, there were a total of 61 full-time
employees, of which the male-to-female ratio is 56:44.
For more detailed data about the Group’s employees by
categorisation, please refer to Table S3 in APPENDIX —
PERFORMANCE TABLE.

Law compliance

In FY20283, the Group complied with the applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC that were
material to the Group’s business, including but not limited

to:

° Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong);

o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of
the Laws of Hong Kong);

° Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China; and

° Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China.

IERTEERIRARTE
FEBBEEANEREEERE
EMBEE TENEEERIIN
oty e fER TR R B A 3 R BB
W—BD FAEBERE—UE
INEM THRINEE—X%
e BEMTEmENNE K
R-AEEDHT RAEEBEN
iR FXEIINEE 75
REBTEERKTHNREES
FitAEBGEL BT SER
EARIESI MBS - LUREIFE
M EESIE -

HE_Z_Z—@FER AEAH
BE1Z2BET  Hh B L A
#5644 - FRAXEBB T S48
NEFHMAHE  F2RNE &
M F&R—5RS30

EREM
RIZZ=ZWH xEHBETSE

BRTEBRAABIEREBE
ERERROER BREETRRR

(BREIEAG (FBEMEST
2));

o (REWHERM (FE LML
$52825));

. (PEARKEMEZEE)
MUk

. (PEARHNEZHER
E)e
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuea)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.1 Employment (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Law compliance (Continued)

Relevant internal employment policies are periodically
updated and revised by the Human Resources (“HR”)
Department of the Group to ensure the Group's
employment practices align with the latest laws and
regulations.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group believes that talent attraction and retention are
critical to maintaining industry competitiveness. Adhering
to the principle of “Equal Competition” (“AF#F"),
the Group provides equitable remuneration packages
considering the candidates’ performance, personal
attributes, working experiences and career aspirations.
Additionally, the Group aims to offer competitive
compensation and benefits that align with industry
standards and peer organisations.

The Group generally leverages online platforms to release
recruitment advertisements for positions in demand. In
FY2023, the Group mainly posted recruitment information
on JobsDB, one of the largest recruitment platforms, to
search for competent candidates. In case where there
is no suitable candidate identified, the Group will also
consider the option of Employment as Professionals in
Hong Kong. In addition, the Group collaborates with
colleges and universities to hold campus recruitment to
attract high-calibre candidates. The HR Department is
responsible for overseeing and reviewing all recruitment
and promotion process to ensure the most qualified and
competent candidates are selected in an orderly and fair
manner.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. # 2 &5FE @)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BEREIER (&

B.1 Employment (Continued) B.1 1EfF (#&)

Recruitment and promotion (Continued)

To ensure that all employees can be recognised by the
Group with respect to their contributions, the Department
Heads and Directors conduct performance appraisal and
capacity evaluations for all staff at least once a year. For
the eligible worker who has demonstrated outstanding
performance and potential, the Group takes proactive
steps to provide them with promotion opportunities for
career advancement.

Remuneration, compensation and dismissal

In adherence to the relevant laws and regulations of local
jurisdictions, the Group designed the internal policies and
procedures of remuneration and compensation on the
Employee Handbook. According to the internal policy, the
monthly salaries are provided at the end of each month,
and the annual bonus is given with the directors’ approval
at the end of each year. The compensation for overtime
work is provided upon the approval of supervisors and
Department Heads.

In addition, in order to reflect the recognition of
employees’ efforts and internal incentives, compensation
reviews and salary adjustment are regularly conducted
with reference to the overall market conditions,
inflation rate, profitability of the Group and employee’s
performance.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuea)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.1 Employment (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Remuneration, compensation and dismissal (Continued)

Moreover, the Group strictly prohibits any kind of
unfair or illegitimate dismissal and has made efforts
to further standardise the procedures for employee
dismissal. The corresponding policies and guidelines for
the dismissal of employees have been developed and
stipulated in the employment contracts. For those who
consistently underperform despite receiving guidance
and instructions, verbal warnings will be given, followed
by written warning letters. For those who repetitively
make the same mistakes and remain untamed despite
receiving warning letters, the Group will terminate their
employment contracts based on reasonable and lawful
grounds according to the relevant laws and regulations.
During the year under review, the employee turnover rate
of the Group was 19.7%. More detailed breakdown of the
turnover data can be found in Table S4 in the APPENDIX
— PERFORMANCE TABLE.

Working hours and rest periods

Under the local employment laws and regulations,
including “Provisions of the State Council on Employees’
Working Hours”, the employee working hours and rest
period are stipulated and agreed upon in the labour
contracts for all employees. To enhance the tracking
and management of the working hours of all staff, all
employees are required to report their daily attendance
and record their working hours on the timesheet
whenever necessary.

In addition to the basic paid annual level and statutory
holidays, employees are also granted supplementary
leave benefits, including examination/study leave, sick
leave, marriage leave, maternity/paternity leave and
consolation leave.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. tE&FE @

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) EBEREIER (&

B.1 Employment (Continued) B.1 1EfF (#&)
Equal-opportunity, diversity, and anti-discrimination FEHE ZTRRIEHRE
At Global Strategic, the Group is committed to fostering IRREBEERERABRKEN
a workplace that values equality and believes a fair, RITEERFEENTIESM I
respectful, and inclusive working environment could lead HMEAF - BEMERNIEER
to better achievements and performance. The Group BT KRB N MM ERE
remains steadfast in its dedication to providing equitable Mo AEBRBERSERRA 1B
opportunities to all employees in recruitment, training, S EE BEMNRAKSEY
promotion, dismissal, and retirement, regardless of age, FMEEIMIRFERE F%H
gender, race, disability, ethnicity, origin, religion, or other BENFE - ER) TR B&E
non-job-related elements in all business units. RiFE- M#f -~ RESEREAME T

U= ENPSES =2

In addition, the Group holds zero tolerance towards all o REBRHTAE XN
forms of discrimination, harassment, bullying or any form H-BE - FEITAEANEE
of abusive behaviour. Therefore, the Group sets up strict TARZRIBE At £&H
internal policies and guidelines in the Code of Conduct to EMTATAIIRRE T BERHA
ensure every employee is treated fairly. BEEMIES > MERESMUE T

BEIRTHE-

The Group has established confidential reporting REFBSRIMRERRIKS B2
mechanisms for employees to report any incidents of TAMNEEBMEERETE
discrimination or harassment to the Department Heads EMEBEEGRIRTAIRRARIE
and Directors with written statements and evidence. A BN EIERAERE  AEEE
rigorous investigation and resolution process will be taken RENEAS AT M RRE U
when receiving reports of discrimination to ensure a fair MRPIAEBEFHEIRTALE
and just outcome for all parties involved. If any violations WER - NRBEEAEFEHRS
or illegal behaviour related to equal opportunity policies HEHEBNERIELTAREE
are substantiated, the Group will take disciplinary action BE OAEEBHEBERE TN
against the relevant employees. Any complaint amounting LRERED -HIREMIRAEFIL
to a criminal offence is taken and investigated seriously, SENRT AEBEHGEFELST
and a report will be made to the relevant regulators or TRMAFAE TEETGRHEL
law enforcement authorities when the Board considers it ERPEEEE BB EEPT
necessary. o
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuea)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.1 Employment (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Benefits and welfare

In the commitment to fostering a workplace culture that
values and prioritises the well-being of the employees,
the Group pays significant attention to both physical
and mental health by providing a series of benefits and
welfare. The Group also recognises that a content and
engaged workforce is vital for its long-term business
success. As such, the Group strives to provide a robust
set of benefits and welfare that support the diverse needs
of its employees.

In FY2023, the Group not only provided basic medical
insurance and allowances but also arranged various
activities and meal gatherings for employees to
enhance their job satisfaction and working motivation.
For instance, during the year under review, the Group
encouraged its staff to actively participant in Standard
Chartered Hong Kong Marathon. Engaging in such events
not only contributed to the staff's individual health and
fitness goals, but also positively reflected the Group’s
culture that values holistic well-being. These activities
could also strengthen the bond among colleagues,
creating a supportive and collaborative atmosphere
within the workplace. In addition, the Group maintains
continuous communication with staff through different
channels, including emails and instant messages, to
receive feedback and suggestions from staff.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. t 25T ®
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BREKREIER &
B.1 Employment (Continued) B.1 1 (&
Benefits and welfare (Continued) #EH i (B)
Standard

Chartered Hong
Kong Marathon

BT ERRHR

In FY2023, the Group was not in violation of relevant laws RIE =05 NEBEF &N
and regulations in relation to compensation and dismissal, KB -BERSH TR
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, BRA-FEHE 2R
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, welfare S B REMGFEAE TLRE
and other benefits that have a significant impact on the FHEBEAZENHEEEERK
Group. R o
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.2 Workplace Health and Safety

At Global Strategic, the Group regards the health
and safety of its employees as the top priority, where
maintaining a safe and health working environment is
not just a goal but a necessity. As a fundamental aspect
of its corporate commitment, the Group is dedicated
to maintaining the highest standards of safety at all of
its facilities while providing stable and reliable gas to its
customers. In FY2023, the Group has set up its internal
safety and health policies and procedures in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
including but not limited to:

° Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases;

° Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance; and

° QOil and Natural Gas Pipeline Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China.

VI. t 2 5FE @
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B.2
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. 1t E28&F @
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BREKREIER &
B.2 Workplace Health and Safety (Continued) B.2 T(ESFTHIBELEZE (&

Adhering to the principles of “Safety First”, the Group
has formulated the “Safety Production Management
System” which includes around 30 different sets of safety
management regulations.

° Embracing the principle of “Early detection,
Early communication, and Early prevention” the
Group has implemented the Gas Pipeline Safety
Management System to standardise frontline
employees’ behaviours thus mitigating all related
potential safety hazards and risks.

° A comprehensive Safety Inspection System has
been implemented to identify and address any
abnormal conditions at gas stations at the earliest
stage by conducting regular inspections during daily
operations.

° The Safety Hazard Investigation and Management
System has been established to eliminate potential
safety risks at all operational levels.

° The implementation of Safety Management System
for the Use of Pressure Vessels strictly regulates
the operational procedures of the instruments,
emergency response plans, personnel duties
and training, as well as guidelines on routine
maintenance practices.

o To safeguard the safety of all individuals entering
gas stations, the Notice for Station Entrance
has been set up to forbid dangerous behaviours
including smoking, use of non-explosion-proof
electronic equipment and unauthorised use of
facilities.
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. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.2 Workplace Health and Safety (Continued)

The Group has also established the Safety Committee,
which is responsible for monitoring the implementation
of safety management systems to ensure the measures
comply with the latest regulations and industry practices.

By fostering a safety culture, providing continuous
training and implementing rigorous safety protocols, the
Group continued to improve workplace health and safety.
Including FY2023, the Group recorded zero work-related
fatalities in the past three years. During the year under
review, the Group recorded zero work-related injuries
and, thus, zero work-related workday losses. To maintain
zero accident rate, the Group is committed to further
monitoring and controlling the potential risks and hazards

associated with business operations.

In FY2023, the Group was not in violation of any of the
relevant laws and regulations in relation to providing a
safe working environment and protecting the employees
from occupational hazards that have a significant impact

on the Group.

Responding to the pandemic

Since the outbreak of the Pandemic, the Group acted
immediately to set up Pandemic prevention guidelines
and launched different responding measures based on

the latest government policies.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. #8§5E ®

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) EBEREIER (&

B.2 Workplace Health and Safety (Continued) B.2 T(ESFTHIBELEZE (&
Responding to the pandemic (Continued) MEZIE (&
During the year under review, the Pandemic gradually EE2REBAT  BBERLOBEFEE
alleviated due to global efforts, allowing the Group to shift P& RNEBNTIEEDL
its focus from crisis management to gradual resumption eEREEERZEIMEER
of normal operations. Recognising that the residual EREB -RHIEENRGE
impact of the Pandemic, the Group placed paramount > REBTBATIETNFER
importance on the ongoing protection of its employees. E-AEECDCEMIEET 2
The Group has implemented and communicated HNRBREMZ2HE UIEEE
comprehensive health and safety protocols to guide THHBIS BEEMRERE
the workforce in their daily activities, including clear ABpERE - BEHENRREEE
guidelines on using PPE, hygiene practices, and health BB o RABIRTAM 5
monitoring. Adhering to the international prevention o AEBEEBMETIHEFEEMN
approach, employees were encouraged to have daily EiEn eEEOSE - REEE-

protection measures, including wearing face masks and
maintaining hygiene.

In addition, the Group ensures the adequate stocks and o REBETERBEYE TR
provision of necessary prevention materials including BoAMBEIRHEXNENRE
masks, gloves, alcohol disinfectants, sanitising wipes, ME BREOS -FEVBRES
and thermometers. Air purifier has been provided in the B EZRMABES c TG
workplace to improve indoor air quality as well. HEE T ERE TR URSE

B.3 Development and training B.3 #EHIE

Reckoning that workforce is the greatest asset of the KEBRBREIREREENE
Group, the Company believes well-trained and skilled E UREIREEZ - FXRE
talents are essential for achieving operational excellence, BHNAATENREBERMEENSH
innovation, and maintaining a positive workplace culture. SENBIMAGEFRBNEEX
As such, the Group continues to prioritise the talent oAb EAESAFEZEEM
cultivation and professional development of its workforce EETHEEENAE  ~EH
as its commitment to sustainability and responsible BAABENETITZFEXEZERE
business practices. During the year under review, the Bl -REEFEN AEER
Group is committed to providing opportunities and RIEEEERERUAZIFETIR
resources to support the growth of its employees. Ko
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued)

B.3 Development and training (Continued)

The training provided by the Group is categorised into
“on-the-job” training and “off-the-job” training, aiming to
give every employee an equal opportunity to improve their
professional skills. The Group developed a framework
to provide induction training to new hires. The ongoing
technical training programs ensure the frontline staff stays
current with industry best practices and advancements,
including specialised training in areas such as cutting-
edge technologies, safety protocols, and industry-specific
regulations. Given its commitment to environmental
responsibility, the Group also incorporated sustainable
practices, environmental regulations and green initiatives
into the training programs for all employees. During
the year under review, the Group has arranged internal
training regarding product quality and safety on a monthly
basis to enhance the professional skills of the frontline
staff.

Besides internal training, employees are strongly
encouraged to participate in external training programs
and take professional qualification examinations, with
reimbursements provided by the Group to eligible staff.
For example, during the year under review, an ESG-
related webinar was arranged for relevant employees to
deepen their understanding of sustainable development
and enhance the implementation of ESG-related
practices.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. # 2 &5FE @)
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BREKREIER &
B.3 Development and training (Continued) B.3 ZEHIE (&

4. .
.+ tricer

GRSz 42 e -
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Additionally, the Group invites external organisations
and experts to provide relevant training sessions for its
employees from time to time. To ensure high-quality
leadership and good corporate governance practices,
the Group focuses on developing its directors and senior
executives through executive-level training.

As a commitment to fostering continuous learning among
its employees, in FY2023, the Group organised 286
hours of vocational training for 62.3% of its staff. For
more information, please refer to Tables S5 and S6 in
APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) HEEE @

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) BEREIER &)

B.4 Labour Standards B.4 #TEH

During the year under review, the Group reaffirmed its
commitment to upholding rigorous labour standards as
an integral part of its ESG strategy. Ensuring human
rights and fair treatment is central to the Group’s value,
which not only aligns with legal requirements but also
contributes to the sustainability and long-term business
success. In FY2023, the Group abided by the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance and other related laws and
regulations in its operating regions to prohibit child and
forced labour employment.

To combat illegal employment of child labour, underage
workers and forced labour, the HR Department of the

DEFERN AEEERHER
T~§L—r f TR Ry KEE » i HLAF
MESGEE R A D EIB—& 7 o
BRABNATHERTEE
BENZL BAENEERE
KoBHEPRAFEERNR
EBR- R _=@F K&
EEET(PEARAEMESH
E) BE(RERD) UK EEM
&R EAAERRERIE R UE L
EREMNEILRBRBHE -

R BIREZEBEL -RAREL
KB E T NEBATTEIRE

HIE T —HHRENEZEHEIEA
BEAEN A IR BFF

Group has developed a set of internal policies aiming to
standardise and monitor the recruitment and employment
process, including:

e Al job applicants are required to provide valid e FIBRBEATERBERERESR
identification documents for verification during B RS R FEIASC A
recruitment to confirm their age and condition of 2B L R R o
stay.

e The Group prohibits any recruitment of workers . KREBRIEERT ABREHR

S0 BRAX M BMIREF
BT

by relinquishing their identification documents nor
lodge deposits as a condition of employment.

ANBRBERE TR MH
ETEZ THASETR
LRE UEEETEAR
BRAEXMIE -

° A review of the staff roster and on-site inspection °
of personnel are conducted regularly by the HR
Department to ensure the validity of the employees’
information.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. tE&FE @

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES (Continued) EBEREIER (&

B.4 Labour Standards (Continued) B.4 5 T#A (#)
Once the Group identifies any case against relevant —BERIMERS LA &
labour laws, regulations or standards, the relevant BRZEENEH KEBKILAD
employment contract will be immediately terminated, and KIEMEEAEESY > LHAERE
the responsible employees will be disciplined accordingly. THITHENLER D - RIERH
Depending on the severity of the issue, a report will also ENBREEE TahEEER
be made to the supervisory authorities when the senior ABBEXLER AEESEREE
management considers it necessary. MRS o
In FY2023, the Group was in compliance with applicable RIE_=BF  KEBREMHL
laws and regulations in relation to the prevention of child ETRAGS T HAE BEETH
and forced labour that have a significant impact on the AEBBEAFZENHEBEIER
Group. R o

OPERATING PRACTICES SEER

B.5 Supply Chain Management B.5 HEHEIE
The Company maintains its unwavering commitment KABRERB NN AFEELER
to sustainability, and its practices extend beyond its HERBUTTHAASEE K=
organisation to encompass every aspect of the supply THERE R E S E o @ iE B i
chain. By engaging with suppliers, proactively managing FERaE-THEERM LB
risks and prioritising green procurement, the Group ERSEORE AEBERSTE
maintains and manages a sustainable and reliable BHOFE - JENEBEHE N
value chain. In FY2023, the Group mainly engaged with TEC-HME O AEEETEHRX
suppliers of natural gas distributions (e.g., SINOPEC and AR DEE (WP AR AR
PETROCHINA) and suppliers of raw materials for gas REREEZEREMEEERS
pipeline installation. fEo
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.5 Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Supplier Engagement

Reckoning the importance of effective supply chain
management, the Group maintains a long-term and
stable relationship with all its major suppliers by regularly
engaging through digital means and on-site visits. During
the year under review, 100% of the Group’s suppliers
had stable engagements with the Group, and the Group
did not face any under-qualified supplies or delays in
supplies.

The Group has formulated various internal policies
and procedures to standardise the process of supplier
selection. To ensure the quality of suppliers, the Operation
Department of the Group is responsible for conducting
supply chain assessment and supplier selection
according to the criteria outlined in the Supplier Code
Conduct, including the safety and reliability of gas supply
and the effective implementation of any environmental
and safety management systems. In addition, the
Operation Department is responsible for conducting
an annual review to evaluate and assess suppliers’
performance, reliability, and compliance. Suppliers not
meeting the assessment criteria will be eliminated from
the list, and the collaboration will be terminated timely.

To ensure the quality of products in the supply chain, the
Group requires all suppliers and contractors to comply
with the agreed contract terms during the business
cooperation, and a “Gas Quality Inspection Report” is
required to be submitted on a monthly basis for review.
In addition, the Administrative Department is assigned
to continuously monitor and control the supply chain
practices, ensuring all suppliers and contractors strictly
comply with applicable laws and regulations and operate
in a sustainable manner.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. # 2 &5FE @)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) SEER

B.5 Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Supply Chain Risk Management

To minimise the environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, the Group not only complied with
relevant laws and regulations, but also established supply
chain management teams to identify non-conformance
with relevant laws as material risks that could
significantly impact the Group’s supply chain. Sticking
to the implementation of its standards on supply chain
management, the Group ensures that its well-selected
suppliers are in strict compliance with all requirements
in the multitude of agreements as part of the master
agreements such as the Health, Safety and Environment
(HSE) Contract.

To foster a shared commitment to sustainability, the
Group also encourage its suppliers to oversee and
manage potential social and environmental risks within
acceptable range under the national and industrial
standards.

Green Procurement

As a company operating at the intersection of the natural
gas supply chain and end-users, the Group is dedicated
to fostering responsible procurement and working with
its suppliers to provide cleaner energy. Therefore, the
Group incorporated green procurement into its decision-
making process, and the Operation Department prioritises
suppliers who adhere to sustainable sourcing practices,
such as pipelines for natural gas distribution and
environmentally friendly office supplies, including recycled
paper. Meanwhile, the Group actively seeks products
and services with recognised eco-labels, ensuring its
procurement choices align with industry-recognised
environmental standards.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuea)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.5

B.6

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Green Procurement (Continued)

As of September 30 2023, the Group maintained stable
cooperative relationships with a total of 12 suppliers,
which are all located in the PRC. The aforementioned
supplier engagement and management policies apply
to all suppliers of the Group and are being implemented
and monitored by the Operation Department and
Administration Department of the Group.

Product responsibility

To provide customers with high-quality and reliable
energy supply and satisfactory services, the Group has
strengthened the implementation of product responsibility
through a series of internal policies regarding quality,
safety, customer rights and satisfaction.

Given the Group’s business nature, the Group considers
the advertising, product/service recall, intellectual
property and labelling matters not material to the Group’s
operation, and thus not being discussed in this ESG

report in consideration of the principle of Materiality.

Quality and safety

As natural gas supply and pipeline installation businesses
dominate the operations of the Group, the Group places
paramount importance on the assurance of the quality
and safety of the gas supply.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. 1t E28&F @
OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) EIEEG (&
B.6 Product responsibility (Continued) B.6 EmEF (&

Quality and safety (Continued)

Adhering to Operation Manual, the Group standardises its
operational practices in line with the applicable laws and
regulations, including but not limited to:

o Oil and Natural Gas Pipeline Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China;

o Requirements for the Safe Transportation of LNG
Transportable Tanks on the Whole Ship;

° Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China;

° Regulations on the Safety Management of

Hazardous Chemicals;

° Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

° Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

o Code for Design of City Gas Engineering GB50028-
2006;

° Regulation on the Administration of Urban Gas; and

° Natural Gas GB17820-2012.

Subject to the annual review by the Board, the Risk
Management Framework, Central Contingency Policies
and Procedures and Risk Monitoring Mechanism are
enforced to guarantee the safety and reliability of the
Group’s services.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued) VI. #tE2&E ®

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.6 Product responsibility (Continued)

Quality and safety (Continued)

&

The Group provides gas supply and pipeline installation

services in adherence to a comprehensive quality
control system that aligns with statutory requirements
of natural gas investment, provision of consultation on
gas technology and sales of gas cooking appliances

and accessories. In addition to the safety management
systems detailed under the section “Workplace Health
and Safety”, the Group has implemented various
procedures to maintain product safety, including:

° Internal Gas-user Safety Management System
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has been implemented to set up clear guidelines
across the whole workflow, from engineering
design, construction and installation, completion
confirmation, to ignition supply, management and
maintenance and demolition.

Prior to the registration of the user’s premises, users
are required to acknowledge their comprehensive
understanding of safe gas use, including the basic
operation, common gas accidents, response plans
and emergency rescue hotlines.

To prevent accidents and ensure the safety of gas
users, the Group has set up systematic inspection
systems to identify and address any potential
safety hazard in users’ households or industrial and
commercial facilities.

Publicity mechanisms are established to remind the
public of the safety of natural gas use, especially
during holidays, peak gas usage periods, winter gas
accidents and rat infestations.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. # 2 &5FE @)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) SEER

B.6 Product responsibility (Continued) B.6 EmEF (&)

Complaints Handling

The Group remains committed to improving its
customer services and exploring the approach to
handling complaints. By embracing a customer-centred
approach, implementing prompt rectifying actions, and
maintaining active communication, the Group aims to
address customer concerns and continuously enhance
its products to benefit the local community and the
environment.

The Group has maintained customer service management
systems to ensure customers have easy access to
complaint channels, including customer service hotlines.
Once any complaint is received, an acknowledgement
will be sent to the customer in a timely manner while
a thorough investigation process will be enacted to
identify the cause of the complaint and assess its validity.
Specific responsible departments are required to inform
the investigation progress and results to the customers
through formal replies.

During the year under review, the Group did not receive
any substantial complaints about the service quality, and
customer satisfaction was high according to the Group’s
customer surveys.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuea)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.6 Product responsibility (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Privacy matters

In FY2023, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations, including the Law on Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests of the People’s Republic of China
and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong
to protect the interests of its stakeholders. The Group
operates within a robust privacy protection framework
and establishes a series of measures to safeguard the
personal data and identifiable information of its clients
and tenants, including:

° In accordance with the account authorisation
management requirements, only designated staff is
authorised to access sensitive information thereby
eliminating the risks of data leakage.

° Risk management and technical incident recovery
plans are adapted to protect personal data and
mitigate losses in case of any accidents.

° A confidentiality agreement is required to be signed
among relevant parties to prohibit any unauthorised
disclosures or provision of data to any third-party
without consent.

During the year under review, the Group did not receive
any substantial complaints regarding data breaches,
leakage or privacy matters.

In FY2023, the Group was in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations regarding health and
safety, advertising, intellectual property, labelling and
privacy matters of its products and services that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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HERELARS

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuead)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.7 Anti-corruption

Recognising the importance of ethical operation, the
Group holds itself to the highest standards and expects
the same from all stakeholders. The Group remains
resolute in its stance against corruption, embracing
a multifaceted approach to foster integrity and
transparency. In FY2023, the Group emphasised the
conformance to and complied with the applicable laws
and regulations of the jurisdictions where it operates,
including:

° Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Anti-
money Laundering;

° Anti-Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of
China;

° Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

° Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

To better combat corruption-related behaviours, the
Group has implemented stringent internal policies and
the Code of Conduct in the Employee Handbook, which
is aligned with local and international anti-corruption
laws. The key principles outlined in the Code of Conduct
include the prevention of:

° Leakage of confidential information;

° Insider trading;

° Conflict of Interest; and

° Improper handling of the Company assets.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continuea)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

B.7 Anti-corruption (Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

The punishment system for the violation of the rules is
also clearly listed in the Employee Handbook. Depending
on the severity of the incident, a significant part of the
salary of employees who have breached the rules may
be deducted, and the employment contract will be
terminated if necessary.

The Group has built an effective grievance mechanism
that allows employees to report any suspected
misconduct to the Department Head or the Board with
supporting evidence when they witness or learn of any
violation of the Group’s Code of Conduct. Once receiving
the report, the Group will set up an investigation team
to conduct investigation and verifications. Effective
whistleblowing procedures ensure that all processes
will be in confidential and the whistleblower will be
protected from unfair dismissal or victimisation. Where
any criminality is substantiated, the Group will handle
the involved parties accordingly, and a report will be
made to the local authority when the management of
the Group considers it necessary. In addition, all policies
and guidelines involving anti-corruption and anti-money
laundering are being reviewed annually to ensure the
effectiveness of their implementation.

To further enhance the employees’ understanding of the
consequences of being involved in bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, the Group organised
two anti-corruption-related seminars and training
programmes for different levels of the Group in FY2023.
Materials, including the Independent Commission Against
Corruption and seminar notes from the Hong Kong
Police, are periodically distributed to employees, including
Directors.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. # 2 &5FE @)

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued) SEER

B.7 RESF (&)

B.7 Anti-corruption (Continued)

During the year under review, around five hours of anti-
corruption-related training and seminars were arranged
for 8 senior management, 2 middle management and 30
general staff to ensure the Group’s ongoing compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations.

In FY2023, the Group recorded zero concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or its employees and was in compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in relation to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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B.8 HERE

B.8 Community Investment

In FY2023, the Company proudly continued its
commitment to community contribution as an integral
part of its corporate social responsibility. The Group has
made efforts to create positive and lasting impacts on
the communities it serves, aiming to foster sustainable
relationships and contribute to the well-being of society.

In addition to investing in the exploration of clean
energy innovations, the Group also places significant
emphasis on building local communities by creating
job opportunities, collaborating with local suppliers,
and paying local taxes timely. The Group also actively
engaged with local communities to recognise their unique
needs and challenges. During the year under review,
the Group partnered with Banyan Service Association
to distribute lunch boxes and mooncakes in local
communities.
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VI. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (continued) VI. #2&FE @
COMMUNITY (Continued) HE &
B.8 Community Investment (Continued) B.8 HEREZ (&

In FY2023, although the business operations of the Group RIS =B F  KREBMNER
were still under the impact of Pandemic prevention, the SENZIBENEGEZE B
Group continues to seek opportunities to engage in social KEEREEBESRSETE TS
activities and expand its engagement for community g BEAHHENERER
contributions. o
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VII. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. MiER— &35k

Table E1. The Group’s Total Emissions by Category in FY2023 & RE1AEBR - FEHRERLR

%’-:38
Intensity ' Intensity 2
(Unit/ (Unit/
Emission Key Performance Amount in employee) Amount employee)
Category Indicator (KPI) Unit FY2023 in FY2023 in FY2022 in FY2022
== —E”C
ZEBZ= MERE k- M ERE?
HERAEa R RS ENIER B BE#HE (B /8I) BEHE (B1/8T)
SOx Kg 0.234 0.004 0.112 1.867x 10 °
. o maftym T
Air Emissions * Kg 7.865 0.129 3.785 0.063
X . . . .
BER —
agltym Fx
PM Kg 0.579 0.009 0.270  4.644x 107
B T
S 14
c?ope o Tonnes of COze 37.60 0.62 26.71 0.45
(Direct Emissions)
EE— (EEHR ¢ WE_EtiEE
Scope 2%
L . o Tonnes of CO2e 97.63 1.60 106.66 1.78
GHG Emissions (Energy Indirect Emissions)
BERBHERK E[E — (BRI HHEN) ° WE_EtEE
S 36
cope S o Tonnes of COze 1,51 0.02 0.84 0.01
(Other Indirect Emissions)
EHE = (MR REER ° WE_EtiEE
Total (Scope 1 & 2 & 3) Tonnes of COze 136.74 2.24 134.21 2.24
B (BE— kD) W _EEwES
Non-hazardous
Wastewater * m? 183.20 3.00 471.00 7.85
Waste
BEEEY BEK A K
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B REARE

VII. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE

(Continued)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

Intensity for FY2023 was calculated by dividing the amount of air,
GHG and other emissions respectively by the Group’s number of
employees in FY2023, which was 61;

The amount and intensity in FY2022 were extracted from the
data in the ESG Report FY2022 of the Group;

The Group’s air emissions only included the air pollutants from
fuel consumption of motor vehicles;

The Group’s Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) included only the GHG
emissions arose from the consumption of liquid fuels in motor
vehicles;

The Group’s Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emissions) included only
the GHG emissions arose from electricity consumption;

The Group’s Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) included only
the GHG emissions arose from paper waste disposed at landfills,
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage by
government departments;

The total amount of wastewater discharged from the Group in
FY2023 was based on the assumption that 100% of the fresh
water consumed entered the municipal sewage system; and

The methodology adopted for reporting on GHG emissions
set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange, The GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard and the 2006 IPCC
(Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change) Guidelines for
National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F#R

VII. Mgk —4&30F& @)

TECC-WERENRERCAER
BREMBEBYMBE D FURER
TR -WMERERBM/EEIAME;

CEICHENHERBERRAE
E_Z__FEBE - tEREAR
LR EIRIRE ;

FEBNERINES B RBEMEH
HELENZERSRY ;

FEENEE— (EEHR E8EA
BRI EERN RERES
g

FEMMEE " GERBZHR E8
EEIVEFEMELENRERBIN ;

REBENSHE= (HMEZER €68
EEETHERNAREY BNE
PR I8 3% K A5 K P RN B8 J1 EE A PR
EENREREHN

A EE PRV EE K 8 R IR B R EFT 6
F 3 IK100%BE#E 75 7K R A 1F 2 BE 7K
BEMEE 5 UK

TR ERENRERANSEE
PR FTEE TR TN A B IR R ~ 11
BRERARE W | IRIBEHBE
MIERERES ) CRERBEES ¢
TEZEARSENUR TSN
IPCCEIZRK R=RASEEIEm



IRIE - HEREBRS
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

VII. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE

VII. Mg —4&30F& @)

(Continued)
Table E2. Total Resource Consumption in FY2023 RE2CEC-HFEERERES
Intensity ' Intensity 2
(Unit/ (Unit/
Key Performance Amount in employee) Amount employee)
Use of Resources Indicator (KPI) Unit FY2023 in FY2023 in FY2022 in FY2022
== —E”C
ZEBZ= MERE k- M ERE?
BIRER RS ENIER B BE#HE (B /8I) BEHE (B1/8T)
Electricity kWh’000 166.73 2.57 177.29 2.95
g7 TETRE
Energy ° JIiiejsel kWh’000 - - 25.71 0.43
o s FEFEE
Gasoline kWh’000 154.09 2.53 73.87 1.28
b TETRE
Total kWh’000 310.83 5.10 276.86 4.61
Be TEF R
Water Water m?® 183.20 3.00 471.00 7.85
x X I H R
Paper Paper Kg 139.59 2.29 140.60 2.34
4R Mok Fr
1. Intensity for FY2023 was calculated by dividing the amount of 1. ZE-UFEEEDNREREZRIU

resources that the Group consumed in FY2023 by the Group’s
number of employees in FY2023, which was 61;

FEE T -FFEEEMLHIAM

8 .
1=

The amount and intensity in FY2022 were extracted and
converted from the data in the ESG Report FY2022 of the Group;
and

The energy conversion of resources consumed was based on the
energy coefficient set out in “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued
by the Stock Exchange.
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(Continued)

VII. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII.

Table S3. Number of Employees by Age Group, Gender,

Employment Type, Position Type, Geographical Locations of

Mk —mM & @

KRSIAEB_S = FRFER M
Al-EHE -BAUMt eS8 T

The Group in FY2023 e
Age group
Unit: Number of employees B : BTAH¥ 3
Aged Aged
Aged 30 between between Aged 51
or below 31 and 40 41 and 50 or above Total
307% 515%
Gender R FUTF 31-407% 41-508% UL my
Male 3 14 34
Female ko4 11 27
Total B 10 25 17 9 61
Position
Unit: Number of employees B :BTA¥ B i
General Senior  Director and
staff management management Total
Gender R —RET BREEAE EZHEHEE my
Male EoRia 17 6 11 34
Female pegia 25 1 1 27
Total mE 42 7 12 61
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VII. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. Mg —4&30FK @

(Continued)

Employment type

MEER
Full time Part time Total
2 -3 M
61 0 61
Geographical location
& & 2
Number of
employees
Locations i BT A#
Yichang BE 38
Hong Kong &5 15
Shanghai b= 8
Total: S 61
1. The employment data in headcount was obtained from 1. BIBEREFASEERHEEEZME

the Group’s Human Resources Department based on the
employment contracts entered into between the Group and
its employees. The data covered employees engaged in a
direct employment relationship with the Group according to
relevant local laws and workers whose work and/or workplace
was controlled by the Group within the reporting scope. The
methodology adopted for reporting on employment data set
out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange.

STUNRESR REAEENANE
TREBELS o I BIR R E R ¥R & A R
FRANEREEEREFERGENEER
MUEREHREHEANETEMHIIE
BRSAEEZEHNE T FlRE
B T BURFT IR AR 705 T B R B 2B
BMI T EBIRIE LB REAR
&8RS B RARE RIS ZERE
5lye
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VIl. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. Ffidg— AR @
(Continued)
Table S4. Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group, Gender and RSAKEB S - FHFR -
Geographical Locations in FY2023 Bl (& B9 By & Tom ok =
Age group
Unit: Number of employees  Efi: ETAH FHe
Aged Aged
Aged 30 between between Aged 51
or below 31 to 40 41 to 50 or above Total
305% 515%
Gender =3 HUTF 31-407% 41-507% U E B
Male Bt 0 3 3 2 8
Employee turnover rate (%) BTRAE(%) 0.0% 21.4% 33.3% 40.0% 23.5%
Female 2z 0 3 1 0 4
Employee turnover rate (%) BT IREKE%) 0.0% 27.3% 12.5% 0.0% 14.8%
Total 1B 0 6 4 2 12
Total employee turnover rate (%) %88 T %K (%) 0.0% 24.0% 23.5% 22.2% 19.7%
Geographical locations
& 2 5
Employee Employee
turnover turnover rate
Locations i BTRE BIRKX
Yichang BE 5 13.2%
Hong Kong &5 6 40.0%
Shanghai & 1 12.5%
Total HEES 12 19.7%
1. The turnover data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s 1. MABEEREBEAEEREREC
Human Resources Department based on the employment FTUNERBSR RAEBHNANE
contracts entered into between the Group and its employees. FEERS - RAXBEFE T =
The above data only covers the reporting scope. Turnover FHRBASMGRUZE_=ZMFENET
rate was calculated by dividing the number of employees who R/t FMBENXREBERGHE
resigned in FY2023 by the number of employees in FY2023. A B EdE o Ea R AR BIRFTIR AN A
The methodology adopted for reporting on turnover data set ETHE R B R FT 8 MR T (] IR
out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — B e REARE M3 (2R
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the REWISREIRISS] ) o

Stock Exchange.
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VIl. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII. fff&% — 4R 3R @
(Continued)
Table S5. Number and Percentage of Employees Trained in the RS5.ZE T =M EAEEZ YR A
Group by Gender and Position Type in FY2023 IEAZINE T AHINB DL
Total number of employees BT 61
Total number of employees trained @%JHA%Z 38
Total percentage of employees trained BMETZINBEDLE 62.3%
Position Type

Unit: Number of employees Bfii:BTAH B8 {1

General Senior Director and

staff management management Total

Gender 14 71 —KET SHREEAE ZEEHTERE By
Male B4 12 5 5 22
% of employees trained BETIXIIEDL 31.6% 13.2% 13.2% 57.9%
Female e 15 1 0 16
% of employees trained BTIRIIEDEE 39.5% 2.6% 0.0% 42.1%
Total MmE 27 6 5
% of employees trained EIZIIEDL 71.1% 15.8% 13.2%
1. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human 1. ETEIBEREAERNALE RS

Resources Department. Training refers to the vocational training
that the Group’s employees attended in FY2023. The above data
only covers the reporting scope. The methodology adopted for
reporting on the number and percentage of employees trained
set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange

ESe BB ERERREHE-
BIEAEEETIR _E-_=HF2
AR ZE G e LM EE T ZIIA
BB DA AT B IHHES
PREEMEY IR EFIRE - LB REAR
WSR3 L EMRANIERER
&5l
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VII. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VII.

(Continued)

Table S6. Training Hours Provided by the Group by Gender and

Position Type in FY2023 '

Unit: Training Hours

B IR

18
=

By —ER

®S6._E_=MEAEEB RS

R B AR Y 52 51| B By 3

Position Type
BB 1

General Senior Director and

staff management management Total
Gender 4 51 —RET SHREBEAE EZHEEE FEE
Male B 50 62 72 184
Average training hours FHZIEE 2.94 10.33 6.55 5.41
Female ol 51 51 0 102
Average training hours FHZ R 2.04 51.00 0.00 3.78
Total e 101 113 72 286
Average training hours B SEE S 2.40 16.14 6.00 4.69
1. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human 1. EBIEIISERAERMANERE

Resources Department. The above data only covers the reporting
scope. The methodology adopted for reporting training hours
set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the

Stock Exchange.
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX VII. SR EMEES|

HKEx ESG Guide content index

Aspects

BmE

A. Environmental
A. IRIE

A1: Emissions

Al Y

ESG Indicators

ESGI51Z

General Disclosure

—BRE

Bt X FRESG#R 545 5| R 5|

Description Page/Remark
Rt B HE

Information on:
(@) the policies; and 75

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other
pollutants regulated under national laws and
regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by
national regulations

BRBERKAREREIHMR @Kk THBIBES
BERBEESERVNEESFN

(@) BR; K

(b) BTFHETAREAREZENMERELIER
R

BB

2 ERIIMeEasty matyrEaE
B SER R ABIRERSRY -

&

EREGQE_SMLHR Rk -Alha =
A b Y 2RACh RN mAbH

# B

BEEEEMERRRAPMRES -
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIIl. 3R EHBRS @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) ¥ X FRESG#R 51551 &5 (&)
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
BmE ESGIS1E i B HE
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective 127

emissions data.

RSB RS IRAT.Y BETE 48 e AE RA B B -

KPI' A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 127
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

AR ENISIRA1.2 B EE1) RERME EE2) R=EREH
e UMEE) k ER) BE MUBES
B §IERETE) °

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) 77
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).

FAREMISIZA1I.S ELBESEEMEE CUESTE) Kk (&

R ZE WMUSESEM SHERME)

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in 77
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

FREMISIRZA1IA FELEREEEMEE QUESTE) Kk (&

R ZE WMUSESE M SERKE) o

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and 91
steps taken to achieve them.

AR MISIRA1.S AP N BN EE R RAZEIELEER
FrERER B9 2 B%

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- 81, 92
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

FARAMISIRA1. MIEEEERBEEEEYN G E K
Frs] 12 BOREE B iR I 7 1 55 L5 B AR P ERER
B2 §% o
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) Vil. REWBEBRS @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) ¥ X FRESG#R 51551 &= 5| (&
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
BmE ESGIE1Z g B EE
A2: Use of General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, 84
Resources including energy, water and other raw
A2 BFEEH materials.

Note: Resources may be used in production,
in storage, transportation, in buildings,
electronic equipment, etc.

— iR EE BRERER (BIEER  KEEMEMR)
HYELER ©
72 BRUAREE-H#HE -BH - EF BTX
e
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption 129

by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

RAREMIEIRA2.1 REVEDNERK SEEER WE-R
gom) BFEE UTETFRESE) REE (W
UeESBMU -BERKEHE) o

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. 129
per unit of production volume, per facility).

RARENISIRA2.2 MEKEREE MUSESEN SBERHE
sTH) °

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) 94
set and steps taken to achieve them.

RASEARIEIRA2.3 AT IR ERAMTE B R R AERE
45 B AR PTERENAY 27 §X o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in 86, 92
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

FABEAAMIEIRA2.4 HREVE A ACR F Rl BE AR U PR
TRV KNm B IR A EE L BRAAER
R BR o

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished 84
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

R ENISIRA2.56 WA MPTABEMENEE UUEEE) &
WER) SEEEMEE-
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continuead)

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Aspects

Em

A3: The
Environment and
Natural Resources
A3 IREREXAE

A4: Climate
Change
4: mIEEE

ESG Indicators
ESGI51Z
General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI A3.1

R4 I IZA3.1

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI A4 .1

R4 MUIEIZA4 A

Description

Fa it

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.
BREBTANRERRAERENEATE
BIBLER ©

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
HAEBEHHIRBERRAERNEARXE
EEXNEEEMEENITE

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
HAREHEERPIEEHETAELETE
NEARREHEREERIERE-

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them.

BB RPIEEHETAELETLENEKR
RIZEMET > REHTH
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIIl. REWEZRES| @

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Aspects
Em

B. Social
B.4#tg

ESG Indicators
ESGI51Z

Employment and Labour Practices

BEKRSTER
B1: Employment
B1: E1F

General Disclosure

— BB

KPI B1.1

R4 BIEIEB .1

KPI B1.2

R A MIEIEB1.2

Kt 3ZPRESG#R &1551 %5l (&)

Description Page/Remark
Rt B HE

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and 101

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

BRF R RE B REA TR K

A TERE - Zh - RIEEUREMEFS

FerEF R
(a) B, &
() BFHETABEARTLENERZEZER
pARol
& o
Total workforce by gender, employment type 130

(for example, full- or parttime), age group and
geographical region.

TR EEEL 2B ER) - FE 4R
Rit&BnESER -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group 132
and geographical region.

MR FERAR R ER D EE MK

o
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (continued) VIl. SR ZFWERS| @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) ¥ X FRESG#R 51551 &5 (&)
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
=gic] ESGIEIZ g B #iE
B2: Health and General Disclosure Information on:
Safety
B2: [BFHEZE (a) the policies; and 108

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

—RIEE BRARHZETEREMFRERERE R R
HEERN
(a) B, &
b) BTFHETABEAFENERLER
psaaddl
o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 110

occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

FISRAENMIERB2.1 BEA=F (BREERFE) SBEFRITHHA

By k3o
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 110
RATRAAMIEIEB2.2 R IBEBATIERSH -
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and 109

safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

RASEARXIE1RB2.3 M FIERA BB 2 R R B L 2481 MU AE
RAITREE R %o
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continuead)

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Aspects

Em

B3: Development
and Training

B3 @ Z#RERIE

B4: Labour
Standards
B4 @ T A

ESG Indicators

ESGI51Z

General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI B3.1

A SR A8 A H5 1R B3 1

KPI B3.2

RSRAERIE1RB3.2

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Description

Fa it

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may
include internal and external courses paid by
the employer

ERRA EERIT LIFRENNHE R
BYBELR o A IR BEE o

0 EIIIERESE
BRERAE o
The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
BN REELRER WERhERRE
) 8 nmzillEEa Dt
The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
BEHREELSERB D BLEETHTI
B F B B o

Information on:

J - A EEREECENARS

N

(@)  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to preventing child
and forced labour.

BRI EE T aaas s TH ¢

(a) BE; K&

b) BFHETABEATENEREER
psaatll

g o
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Kt 3ZPRESG#R &1551 %5l (&)

Page/Remark
B HE
111
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIIl. 3R EHBRS @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) ¥ X FRESG#R 51551 &5 (&
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
BmE ESGIS1E i B HE
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review 114

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
RASEAR RIS 1EB4.1 g ST 1B HE 1B IRV 48 it LU o 88 T K o bl
BTo
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 115
practices when discovered.

RISRAEIEIRB4.2 IR IRER B R H R R I5 JUFT SR

B2 B o
Operating Practices
SEER
B5: Supply Chain General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and 115
Management social risks of the supply chain.
B5: @ MEHEEE —RIKE BEEHERNIRE R ERBEER-
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 118
RARENISIEBS.1 Bt ES N HEEEEE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 116

suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
RARAEMIE1EB0.2 M BRIBAMHEEAVIEL > mENTHRE
BHNHERMEE  URBEMITRERA
VE e
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify 117
environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
RASRAEMIE1EB0.3 M BRIMAHREESERANIRRERMLE
RFEER > U ABRRRNITRER G A
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 117
environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
RARENISIRB5.4 WA EREHEERER S BIRMRE KRR
HBHIER LURABRBIT REER %
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIll. R EERS @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) ¥ X FRESG#R 51551 &5 (&)
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
BmE ESGIE1Z g B EE
B6: Product General Disclosure Information on:
Responsibility
B6: EmEF (a) the policies; and 118

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of

redress.
—RiEE BRIPFTREERTRBNEREALE ES -

REBERMLEEEURERG ER
(@ R R

() BTFTHETAREAZENHERZEIER

51
&Ko
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped The Group did not
subject to recalls for safety and health experience any
reasons. recall incident in the

reporting year.
FARERNIEEB6.] BENDEXEMEHFTR L HREEIER REBEFERN AEE

mZARWR B DL Wl 52 A A FE R A1 [E]
WeZE o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related 121
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
R ENIS1EB6.2 BERMNERMBRBNEFUB UREHA
iE o
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continued) VIIl. 3R EHBRS @
HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued) ¥ X FRESG#R 51551 &5 (&)
Aspects ESG Indicators Description Page/Remark
Em ESGIS1E Rt B HE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing Intellectual property
and protecting intellectual property rights. rights-related issues

are not material nor
applicable to the
Group’s business.

FABEARIE1RB6.3 il B A E R R IE HI s E B RV IEF) ENEENERY
B> H 5 E AR R
BEREEMETE
EHTER-
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and 118 (Recall
recall procedures. procedures are

consider not
material to the
Group due to its
product nature)

RASEAEXI51EB6.4 ML B SMTBREME mEIWRERF (ERHEREMY
El R R EREMm
S AREEo)

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection 122

and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

RISRAERIEIRB6.5 HIMUEBE BERHRERAARER » LUK IER

MITRERAG &

B7: Anti- General Disclosure Information on:

corruption

B7: RE’S (a) the policies; and 123
(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

—REE BRI LB RS 5 ME R 25 |
@ WE
(b) BTHBTABEARSNIEDERR
1561
By o
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VIIl. REPORT DISCLOSURE INDEX (Continuea)

HKEx ESG Guide content index (Continued)

Aspects
Em

Community
#HE

B8: Community
Investment

B8 : HEBHRE

ESG Indicators
ESGI51Z
KPI B7.1

B SR A B AR BT .1

KPI B7.2

RIS AERIEIRBT .2

KPI B7.3

RIS AEIE1RBT7.3

General Disclosure

—BRE

KPI B8.1

B SR AR A5 1RB8. 1

KPI B8.2

R SR G A F512B8.2

Description

Fa it

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RERARHETANEEERELESE
NESHRARHNHE RFhER-
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

PR ST R B RE T URABRMNIT R
EBRA A

Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
HimESRETRENRESE

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRUHEZERTHREEFRTHLERFEM
BREEZEIHEZRLBF HNEBER
Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

SAEREE MHE - RESE - HFILHEKR
RE X1t i8H) o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to
the focus area.

EEIBRBAMBAER WEHRHEFRE)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

VIl. IREWEBEERS| @

Kt 3ZPRESG¥R 51551 &5l (&

Page/Remark
B HE
125

123

124

125

125

The resources spent
on local support
was not available in
this reporting year.
KREFERB®R
FFAREMHtES
FNERNABH
Fo
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Bz RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 150 to 284, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that as at 30 September 2023, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$92,744,000 and the
Group had operating cash outflow of HK$3,926,000 for the year
then ended. The Group had capital commitments amounting to
HK$4,167,000 at that date as disclosed in note 45. In addition, the
Group was also in default of non-convertible bonds of HK$750,000
as of 30 September 2023.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the
continuous financial support of Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”) and Mr.
Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”) as disclosed in note 2. However, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves that Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang had the financial resources
to provide the required level of financial support to the Group. Mr.
Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to pledge their properties to provide
financial support to the Group. Based on the market valuations of
the properties, we considered that it was uncertain whether Mr. Wu
and Mr. Wang would be able to borrow funds using their properties
as collateral at the level necessary to support the Group’s liquidity
requirements. In addition, we were unable to ascertain whether Mr.
Wu and Mr. Wang had any personal liabilities which would affect their
credit standing and ability to borrow against the pledged properties.
Accordingly, we were unable to determine the appropriateness of
preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT
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Bz RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continuea)

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern in the
foreseeable future, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Bz RS
Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms
of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

29 December 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

2023 2022
2= —F-—
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F#ET TFATT
Revenue U &= 7 166,077 136,241
Cost of sales HE R A (138,816) (115,954)
Gross profit EF 27,261 20,287
Other income H A 8 871 962
Other gains and losses Hittim 518 9 328 139
Selling and distribution costs & K 0 8 A AN (9,800) (8,731)
General and administrative expenses —f& & 1TEE H (33,123) (32,960)
Reversal of impairment loss on ME-BREREERE
property, plant and equipment 5185 O] 19 20,343 21,012
Reversal of impairment loss on B ERER B
intangible assets 22 17,172 16,565
Reversal of impairment loss on FREEERER BT
right-of-use assets 20 158 178
Allowance for trade and FEUNE F IR RIR 5
bills receivables 6(b)(i) (700) (1,823)
Reversal of allowance for & U & 12 4 # [
loan receivables 6(b)(ii) - 1,173
Allowance for deposits and e K MW R R BB
other receivables 6(b)(ii) (295) (13)
Allowance for due from FEN—REE A
non-controlling shareholders of a ZIFER R
subsidiary and its related parties HEH 5 mIa R 5 6(b)(ii) (51) =
Reversal of allowance/(allowance) for & W — 4 B B 75 701E
due from a related party BHERE BEH B(b)(ii) 1 6)
Profit from operations RS HF 22,165 16,783
Finance costs B A 11 (4,921) (2,608)
Share of loss from a joint venture DMEEErEZEIR (76) (49)
Profit before tax BRAR AT EF 17,168 14,131
Income tax expense TSR~ 12 (3,482) (3,450)
Profit for the year FREF 13 13,686 10,681

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEERMB R AR ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F#R
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

2023 2022
2= -2
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 FHET TR
Other comprehensive income Hth2mka= (RiR%E)
after tax
Items that may be reclassified BB EM T EE B m
to profit or loss: EH:
Exchange differences arising on R BRRIAERET
translation of financial statements EREF 2 ERER
to presentation currency (4,233) (991)
Exchange differences reclassified HH 8N B A )
to profit or loss on deregistered BENDERER
foreign subsidiaries ERER - 2
Other comprehensive income FREMEZEWE
for the year, net of tax (B10#) (4,233) (989)
Total comprehensive income FRAEEKEEEE
for the year 9,453 9,692
(Loss)/profit for the year UTALTEGER
attributable to: (&518) a@F) -
Owners of the Company KABHEB A (12,229) (15,504)
Non-controlling interests JEZER R 25,915 26,185
13,686 10,681
Total comprehensive income UFTALEGEAZE
for the year attributable to: s 4858
Owners of the Company KABEB A (13,254) (14,334)
Non-controlling interests JEERR R m 22,707 24,026
9,453 9,692
Loss per share SRE51E 18
Basic (HK cents per share) BEA&R (BB (2.68) (3.40)
Diluted (HK cents per share) 5 (FRAWL (2.68) (3.40)
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ANNUAL REPORT 2023 g

151



152

AR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZE-_=FAB=+H Asat 30 September 2023

2023 2022
—E-= —=E2-
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET TR
Non-current assets ERBMEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB REE 19 161,075 121,577
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20 7,908 3,495
Goodwill 5k 21 - -
Intangible assets EmEEE 22 90,771 80,976
Investment in a joint venture R—EaErEZKE 24 100 183
Deposits for acquisition of property, H&Eﬁ%% B REEZ
plant and equipment BE - 8,737
259,854 214,968
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 25 565 1,489
Trade and bills receivables FEW B 2 IR B4 26 8,086 8,920
Prepayments, deposits and AR RERAEM
other receivables & W BR =X 27 13,972 8,073
Due from non-controlling FEWR—MEHB AR
shareholders of a subsidiary and JEFER AR K
its related parties HE 5 =18 28 3,183 -
Bond receivables FENES 29 -
Due from a related party FE U — % B Bt 5 TR IE 46(d) 1,234 1,019
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable — BJUg[EE & (MEER]) 3,059 390
Bank and cash balances R1ITRIBE4EER 30 9,385 4,998
39,484 24,889
Current liabilities RENBE
Trade payables FEfS B 5 iR 31 3,608 1,145
Accruals and other payables FEST & B R EMEMERR 32 58,296 40,608
Contract liabilities aNaE 33 16,081 10,798
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 4,615 1,580
Due to related parties FE1S BB 5 =18 46(d) 4,579 9,888
Due to directors FENE R IE 35 8,772 1,142
Non-convertible bonds AR E S 36 19,757 7,852
Bank and other borrowings RITREMBE 37 16,520 2,878
Current tax liabilities BIERTRIE &R - 20
132,228 75,911
Net current liabilities mBAREFE (92,744) (61,022)
Total assets less current liabilities #2EERREIERE 167,110 163,946

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEERMB R AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R_E_=%FHLB=+H Asat 30 September 2023

2023 2022
—E-= =S
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 F#ET THET
Non-current liabilities EREIEE
Accruals and other payables FESTE B R EMEMIRR 32 - 3,209
Due to non-controlling shareholders ~ FE{f—RIMiBAS =~
of a subsidiary and JEIERR AR B8 K
its related parties H A 5 I8 28 - 27,344
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 2,981 1,237
Non-convertible bonds TR ES 36 3,000 8,900
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMBEES 37 46,646 20,675
Deferred tax liabilities EIIERIBEE 38 22,693 20,244
75,320 81,609
NET ASSETS BEFE 91,790 82,337
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRRKHEE
Share capital (&N 39 4,559 4,559
Reserves B 40(a) (2,037) 11,217
Equity attributable to owners KRB B AEL#ER
of the Company 2,522 15,776
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) JEEREEm
(TIEYERE 2R ) 89,268 66,561
Total equity R AERE 91,790 82,337

Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 December 2023 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Wang Wenzhou

EXH

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEEE B R A
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AR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR A
Share Capital Share Other  Translation Accumulated
capital reserve premium reserve reserve losses Total NCI  Total equity
[ BXfHE RiEE Hitift HERE B4 ] a3t R RHEE
(note 39)  (note 40(b)())  (note 40(o)ii))  (note 40(b)(v))  (note 40(b)(v))
(&E39)  (Wisrdom)i))  (HsR4opo)ii)) — (BisH4op)iv)  (HHEH40()w)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TET TEL TET TET TEL FET TEL FET
At 1 October 2021 RIZZ-F+E-H 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 (1,308) (341,443 27,855 44777 72,632
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 AWGIEE - - - - 1,170 (15,504) (14,334) 24,026 9,692
Disposal of subsidlaries (note 42(a)) HERBAT (:42() - - - - - - - 13 13
Acquisition of non-controlling interests ~ WiBESER BRI (F13£42(0))
(note 42(b)) - - - - %8 2,157 2,255 (2,259) -
At 30 September 2022 and RIE__EnB=1+AR
1 October 2022 Z2-"%+B-H 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 (40) (354,790) 15,776 66,561 82,337
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 EWGEE - - - - (1,025) (12,229) (13,254) 22,707 9,453
At 30 September 2023 RIZEZ=FAR=1AH 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 (1,065) (367,019) 2,522 89,268 91,790

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKERRER AR AT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

2023 2022
2= -2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRI AT 17,168 14,131
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BEMREBITE
equipment 11,644 8,991
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEINE 2,175 1,596
Amortisation of intangible assets m & E 3,377 2,899
Finance costs TS AR A 4,921 2,603
Early redemption of non-convertible IRE BRI ES
bond handling charges FEE (706) -
Interest income FMEUWA (18) (126)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment — H#isE#1% - = K& 2 1H 1,368 2
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREEZ
plant and equipment & (9) -
Gain on written off of due to non- WEEES — M B AR
controlling shareholders of a JEVE R AR B K ELRA B 5
subsidiary and its related parties FIEZ W (1,687) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR ZWa - (141)
Share of loss from a joint venture DME—REEeERECEIE 76 49
Reversal of impairment loss on property, Mz BEMKRERERBER
plant and equipment #[o] (20,343) (21,012)
Reversal of impairment loss on FRAEEERERERD
right-of-use assets (158) (178)
Reversal of impairment loss on m B E R ER B
intangible assets (17,172) (16,565)
Allowance for trade and bills receivables FEW B 5 IR EiR#0 700 1,823
Reversal of allowance for loan receivables  F& U & = 2 & # (o] = (1,173)
Allowance for deposits and & R H M EWERR
other receivables BE 295 13
Allowance for due from non-controlling FEWR—MEHB AR
shareholders of a subsidiary and JEVE IR IR B K ELRA B 75
its related parties RIEBEE 51 -
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for FE W — % BE B 5 T 1B
due from a related party (BB BHE (1) 6

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEE B R A E
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

2023 2022
—E-= —_EFE_
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Operating profit/(loss) before working EEESEHE 2 KE
capital changes wHL (E58) 1,681 (7,082)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUS & 5 AR F1 K =38 0 (304) (4,672)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FEMRA R R EMER
deposits and other receivables AR (1) R (6,898) 5,080
(Increase)/decrease in VAT recoverable BAIUR Bl ERR (1) R (1,785) 5,420
Decrease in inventories FERLD 872 340
Increase in trade payables FET B 5 BR =R G N 2,592 413
Decrease in accruals and other payables &5t & A & EME IR
L (658) (5,436)
Increase in contract liabilities BRaEEN 5,996 5,050
Movements in balance with related parties BB 5 ZiIE 45 65 4 B (5,220) 9,713
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ~ #&& (FRFAE) /FRE8RE (3,724) 8,826
Interest on lease liabilities paid ENEEEENER (150) (173)
Income tax paid B2 ER (52) (32)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED REES (FRA) S
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFEE (3,926) 8,621
CASH FLOWS FROM REZHRSRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WXBEY)ZE R K 25 (15,716) (648)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME- Fﬁ%&%ﬁﬁz
plant and equipment FTi8RRT 28 -
Interest received BUWH 8 18 575
Receipt from repayment of loan receivables W ZIFEUR S FUE R - 5,000
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WEYZE -BERREZ
plant and equipment BftiEE - (9,208)
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WHEFEREEE (292) =
Cash outflow arising from investment RENR—HeEREELES
in a joint venture REMH - (243)
Cash outflow arising from disposal HEWBAREEZIRE
of subsidiaries idas = (4)
NET CASH USED IN KREEBFARE R
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (15,962) (4,528)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEERMB R AR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEBFIFRERE
ACTIVITIES
Movement in balance with non-controlling EA—FRIMB AT Z JEIERR IR E
shareholders of a subsidiary and K ELRARG 5 A& e R R EED
its related parties, net (28,341) (15,452)
New bank and other borrowings raised EEMERTREMBEES 57,145 23,053
Repayment of bank and other borrowings  EERTREMES (15,177) (16,234)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due FE{TEZRIEE M, GRiL)
to directors 7,907 (1,796)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHESR (1,287) (1,764)
Proceeds from non-convertible bonds FKEARTMKRESZFTEMIE 30,100 8,900
Repayment of non-convertible bonds BEFATBRRES (23,120) (19,319)
Interest paid BEF R (3,398) (2,411)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ MEESRE (FRA)
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFRE 23,829 (25,023)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN ReERREEEWIEM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (m-) 288 3,941 (20,930)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNEEXEH) 2 446 2,517
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRERFELEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4,998 23,411
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRREKRBFEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 9,385 4,998
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

ETET=FHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Room 803, 8/F, Wan Chai Central Building, 89
Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting year of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting years
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

ETET=FHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of Going Concern

As at 30 September 2023, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$92,744,000 and the Group
had operating cash outflow of HK$3,926,000 for the year then
ended. The Group had capital commitments amounting to
HK$4,167,000 at that date as disclosed in note 45. In addition,
the Group was also in default of non-convertible bonds of
HK$750,000 as of 30 September 2023.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The directors have estimated the Group’s cash requirements
by preparing a cashflow forecast of the Group for the eighteen
months period ending 31 March 2025. Mr. Wu Guoming
(“Mr. Wu”) and Mr. Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”), shareholders
and directors of the Company, as at 30 September 2023,
have agreed to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that
the Group will be able to meet all current obligations as they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang both
agreed to pledge their properties as collaterals, if necessary, to
borrow funds to provide financial support to the Group.

The directors of the Company therefore consider it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these
consolidated financial statements on the basis that Mr. Wu
and Mr. Wang have agreed to provide continuous financial
support to the Group. Should the Group be unable to operate
as a going concern in the foreseeable future, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the
Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. AT RBEBIIEAME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REZA
STANDARDS
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs (a) FEERMITRKETESBUBERS

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 October 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Property, Plant and
HKAS 16 Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost
HKAS 37 of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to Reference to the
HKFRS 3 Conceptual Framework
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to
Project HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

The Group did not change its accounting policies or
make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting
the abovementioned amended standards or annual
improvements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_Z_=FNAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED <)
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied any new standard,
amendments to standards and interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective for the financial
year beginning 1 October 2022. The new standard,
amendments to standards and interpretation include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

PRANH ] R AR ES] BB

wEER =

(b) BEEMERERERZHMETREE
SIERMBRSEL

AEBTEBANR S - _"F+
A—BRGBZVHRFEERMKE
W AREM Z AR ER S K1E

STEBR R %S

T AR K

BT ZR R EEE N TR
FEBEERE -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

MRTSEHESHZ%E

RBZz Bt EIMEN

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification &HE& sH# 8§ 158 (BT 4) 1 January 2024
of Liabilities as Current or Non-current —f & BN EA RSN IERE —EF-mFE—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current & & st28]5E 15 (BT X) 1 January 2024

E

Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS 58

Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of

WZIERBERE

STERFIRRE R BRE
R BEHRE F29% (BFT4)

Accounting Policies —BEtBER IR E
Amendments to HKAS 8 - Definition SR G EEREST (BT X)
of Accounting Estimates —FEthEt 2 ER

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax & & st %85

Related to Assets and Liabilities
BEMEBELERIE

Arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease SAMBHRE

Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

125% (BT )
B-XRSAEENEER

ZERFE165% (BFTA)
—ERMALPNEEARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. AT RBEBIIEAME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REZER @)

STANDARDS (continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective (Continued)

EEMEERERZ T REE
FIERAMBREER (B

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

MRTHHEH &

MBSt AN

Amendments to HKAS 7 and ERGHENFETHREBYHERS 1 January 2024
HKFRS 7 — Supplier Finance ZRFET7SR (BF]4) —HEFME —EINFE—B—H

Arrangements ZHE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS & HEE#iR &£ E1058 &

To be determined by

28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets SRS ERFE285E (BT ) the HKICPA
between an Investor and its Associate —EREEZHHEB SN TN EE b FEAZETED
or Joint Venture ZEHNEEHEDNTE NEET
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) SARAREST (CEIEH) 1 January 2024

Presentation of Financial Statements MR RI TR —ERAER

“ECmE-F—H

— Classification by the Borrower of a BEEAREREBERIANTEHER

Term Loan that Contains a Repayment Y48
on Demand Clause

Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of EB T EAIFE215E (B &)

Exchangeability —RAZ AR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZ

“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 30 September. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=ZFAB=1+HILEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investments. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividend received or receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwiill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=ZFAB=1+HILEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
|dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is

In a business combination achieved in stages,

remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. Relevant activities are activities that
significantly affect the returns of the arrangement. When
assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if

the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Joint arrangements (Continued)

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. The Group has assessed the type of each
of its joint arrangements and determined them to all be
joint ventures.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint venture in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill, which
is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHNA=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the
joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that
results in a loss of joint control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
joint venture and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying amount
of that joint venture (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The directors consider that choosing HK$ as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting year. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in term of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the entity initially
recognised such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=ZFAB=1+HILEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continueq)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

2.5% - 20%
20% - 33"/5%
12.5% — 33"/5%
20% - 60%
20% - 25%

5% - 20%

10% - 20%

Buildings

Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Pipeline and equipment

Plant and machinery

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are

available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EETHEER &
(Continued)
(g) Leases () HHE

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily car parking
spaces. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting year in
which they are incurred.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by Rich Ascent International
Limited, which does not have recent third-
party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease

term.
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BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term upon exercising purchase options, the cost
of the relevant right-of-use assets and the related
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss are
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Leases (Continued)

()

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied
the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage of
the practical expedient not to assess whether the
rent concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as negative
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets

()

(ii)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting year,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

1)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised. When the contract includes
a significant financial component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective interest

method.
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“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

(k)

Contract liabilities (Continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHNA=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4. BEGHHEE @&

(Continued)
() Financial assets (Continued) () ESREE#E
Debt investments BEERE

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into
one of the following measurement categories:

FEERAENEBREDEDU
THAR—EEER

amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed
of. At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income.

Trade and bills receivables and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Trade and bills receivables and other receivables
(Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”).

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=ZFAB=1+HILEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Borrowings and bonds

Borrowings and bonds are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings and bonds are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes VAT or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from sales of steel support axial force servo
systems and materials is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specified location (delivery),
and the agreed service performed. Following delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.

Revenue from pipeline installation services is recognised
at a point in time when the installation completed and
the government inspected and issued approval report.
Payment for installation services is not due from the
customer until the installation services are complete.

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas through
pipelines to the customer are satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the natural gas provided by the Group as
it performs, therefore, revenue arising from the sale of
natural gas through pipelines is recognised over time. The
revenue from sale of natural gas is based on the price as

set out by the government.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

4. EET

(s)

SR &

W ak Bz E AU A

W 7 E am AR B Z S AR IR A
EEEHARENR AEAER
B EEARSZ B ZE
B BRERRKED Wa e
ERIEERIEMBER  LEN
BRrIEMEZ e

& i Sz 18 8h 1) 3 AR & 41 R Ak
ZHERERZER SR ER
FProRlEmEERERRIEEZE
B9 (32 1) I 22 A 17 7 AR 75 B e
R RXfIEME > BRI 2EEIE
REDBAAREREE > WK
EHERNR2TESTIRE MK
BERBRZEAR AEEREm

RN ERERFBRDEUERER R
B 7% WO B OB 2 RE R B2 It B R
BoamEH EZATKBBER
B W B AT 3R o

= e

FRB MmN %
EBU“E* E&%’fﬁﬁﬁt/ﬁiﬁ%z
FFEI B FERD c ZEERBT AN 2 Al
BRBAS I ZERENIE

BREENTFHERRARZE
NEENE P F RS IOHFEAR
EBBEAPMREZ RARH @
@E'E#F%—Eﬁi’lﬂtﬁtﬁﬁfﬁ’%

B 2 W am BB B ] R 5B
fﬁ‘i%%,\zl& TSL,(BZF‘%J
ZEBEREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 g

187



188

VA=A
T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Revenue and other income (Continued)

The Group provides leasing of plant and machinery and
materials, related installation services and technology
support to customer. Leasing income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(g). Installation services
and technology support services income are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of these services provided by the Group as it

performs.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

Leasing income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants that become receivable as

compensation for expenses or losses already incurred

or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support

to the Group with no future related costs are recognised

in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

Employee benefits

()

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any specific
borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(w) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint venture, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

(Continued)

(w) Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends either to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or
the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and bond
receivables. The amount of ECLs is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and
bills receivables. The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

a financial instrument. In contrast,

result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

—FENB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4., FET

sHEUER (=

(v =REERE (&)

FEREEEIEN (B)

HFH =2
EURZES

T EEERREB A
BERNBESE

NFEH

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %R

TR T RIS A) St E
EEFRZERNBHRES
BE

R—REEMIAZINGT
BEERRERREEE

EH CENES ALBES
BRI TR %55 8155
WAEER R B A RERN
R ;

BEBAKEXR
HEERI

BRWEA

F—EHFARMERITAZ
EERREE LA,

BREBANEBERBENIKN
BTIEZEBARE KB
FRMIRE 2 BRI AR
ERTHEE-



VA=A
T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong

financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade and bills receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are

For financial assets,

due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
ECLs is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring
the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(aa)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risk specific to liability.
The increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as interest expenses.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have
a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

(i) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon measures taken to improve
the Group’s financial position, cash flows and
profitability and the financial supports from two
directors of the Company, at a level sufficient to
finance the working capital requirements of the
Group as explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continueq)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Consolidation of entity with less than 50%
equity interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in EEMERHAXAAFNBEERLE
(Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co. Ltd.)
(“Yichang Biaodian”), Yichang Biaodian is treated as
a subsidiary because the Group is able to control
the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian as a result
of the shareholders’ agreement among the Group
and other shareholders of Yichang Biaodian. The
assessment on the control is set out in note 23(b).

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy as disclosed
in note 4(y), ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of
an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Joint control assessment

The Group holds 50% of voting rights of its joint
arrangement of & ITRIEXARFIAERAE
(“#%>1818”). The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangement
as under the contractual agreement, unanimous
consent is required from all parties to the agreement
for all relevant parties.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

(i) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(e) Joint arrangement of limited company

The Group’s joint arrangement of fSIIRIE is
structured as limited company and provide the
Group and the party to the agreement with rights
to the net assets of the limited company under
the arrangement. Therefore, the Directors have
determined that #TJRIE is classified as joint
venture of the Group.

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a) Depreciation and impairment on property, plant

and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case
of value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Reversal of impairment losses of HK$20,343,000
(2022: HK$21,012,000) and HK$158,000 (2022:
HK$178,000) were recognised for the year ended
30 September 2023 to increase the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs belonged respectively. The carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 30 September 2023 were
HK$161,075,000 (2022: HK$121,577,000) and
HK$7,908,000 (2022: HK$3,495,000) respectively.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

During the year ended 30 September 2023, income
tax of HK$3,482,000 (2022: HK$3,450,000) was
charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
assessable profits.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c)

Amortisation and impairment on intangible
assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on
the expected usage and technical obsolescence
from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised over the
expected useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for the
intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed
by the management at least at the end of each
reporting period. Determining whether intangible
assets is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which intangible assets
has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than the
expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash
flows or upward revision of discount rate, a material
impairment loss or further impairment loss may
arise.

Reversal of impairment loss of HK$17,172,000
(2022: HK$16,565,000) was recognised for the year
ended 30 September 2023. The carrying amount
of intangible assets at 30 September 2023 was
HK$90,771,000 (2022: HK$80,976,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

5. FEHEIREKRMGE @

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) (i) EHEFRBEBARZZEERE (&

(d) Allowance for trade and bill receivables,

(d) BEUREGRAREE #EE

deposits and other receivables, bond
receivables, due from a related party and
due from non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary and its related parties

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables,
bond receivables, due from a related party and due
from non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties based on the credit risk of
these receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise.

As at 30 September 2023, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables were HK$8,086,000, net
of allowance of HK$7,946,000 (2022: trade
receivables of HK$5,849,000, net of allowance
of HK$7,501,000 and bills receivables of
HK$3,071,000, net of allowance of HK$152,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continuea)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Allowance for trade and bill receivables,

deposits and other receivables, bond
receivables, due from a related party and
due from non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary and its related parties (Continued)

As at 30 September 2023, the carrying amount of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables was
HK$13,972,000, net of allowance of HK$310,000
(2022: HK$8,073,000, net of allowance of
HK$23,000).

As at 30 September 20283, the carrying amount
of bond receivables was nil, net of allowance of
HK$10,935,000 (2022: Nil, net of allowance of
HK$10,935,000).

As at 30 September 2023, the carrying amount of
due from a related party was HK$1,234,000, net of
allowance of HK$25,000 (2022: HK$1,019,000, net
of allowance of HK$27,000).

As at 30 September 2023, the carrying amount
of due from non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary and its related parties was
HK$3,183,000, net of allowance of HK$50,000
(2022: Nil).
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“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as some of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Group’s entities i.e. HK$. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

At 30 September 2023, if RMB had weakened 10%
against the HK$ with all other variables held higher
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been HK$3,355,000 (2022: HK$2,012,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on
non-convertible bonds and other payables denominated
in HK$, but partly offset by deposits and other receivables
and bank and cash balances denominated in HK$. If
RMB had strengthened 10% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax
for the year would have been HK$3,355,000 (2022:
HK$2,012,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on non-convertible bonds and
other payables denominated in HKS$, but partly offset
by deposits and other receivables and bank and cash
balances denominated in HK$.
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HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade and bills receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers having low credit risk.

(i) Trade and bills receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade and bills receivables are
due within 180 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 3 to 6 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 6. MBRAKRERE#=

(b)

Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERAMRE @&
(i)  Trade and bills receivables (Continued) () EBREZRZRERE (&

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
and bills receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
and bills receivables as at 30 September 2023:

REBMBRERN ARG
BEFREZCHETEERES
RERREEZGEER H
Th E A B TR o
HRAEEBFEZEEEE
WARRAREZELDEERE
AFEEEER &5
REZEBEEFENASE
ErEsRERBE—F

&7 °

TR T _=FNA
=+ HAEEMEREZ K
mREHEERZEERRR

TEAEERBIENER !

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TAHARSIRE IREAAE Lok g
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FHET FHETT

2023 =

Current (not past due) BNER (Gk#EHER) 2.08% 5,835 121
1 — 90 days past due #EA1 - 90H 5.39% 878 48
91 — 180 days past due #EA91 - 180H 15.54% 238 37
181 - 365 days past due #if#A181 — 365H 19.03% 1,656 315
More than 365 days past due I EAEEE365H 100.00% 7,425 7,425
16,032 7,946

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKE(BEEE B R A E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRAMERE =
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EFEERR @)
(i)  Trade and bills receivables (Continued) () EBREZRZRERE (&

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount Allowance
SELE SRR ERMARE B 1R E
% HK$ 000 HK$’000
% FHET FHET

2022 ket

Current (not past due) BRER (R#1HER) 4.72% 6,058 286
1 - 90 days past due #HA1 - 90H 12.55% 2,523 317
91 — 180 days past due #EA91 — 180H 17.09% 372 64
181 - 365 days past due #1HA181 — 365H 18.06% 773 139
More than 365 days past due #IHBiE365H 100.00% 6,847 6,847
16,573 7,653

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past three years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade and bills receivables during the year is as
follows:

6.

MEREERE @

EERKR (&)

BWE G IR R R (&

FARKEZRARERZ
EIEEERREEWT

2023 2022
—g== —E=-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHAT TAIT

At beginning of the year REH 7,653 6,264
Allowance recognised FREREE

for the year 700 1,823

Exchange differences ERERE (407) (434)

At end of year RER 7,946 7,653

The loss allowance slightly increased in 2023
because of slow settlement from customers causing
to balances long outstanding and increase in days
past due over 1 year resulted in an increase in loss
allowance.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 43%
(2022: 89%) of the total trade and bills receivables
at gross were due from the Group’s two (2022:
four) largest customers as at 30 September 2023,
of which 33% (2022: 34%) came from the largest
customer of the Group and all of the customers
are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

Bond receivables, deposits and other
receivables, due from a related party and
due from non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary and its related parties

The Group transacts only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Bond receivables,
deposits and other receivables, due from a related
party and due from non-controlling shareholders of
a subsidiary and its related parties are monitored on

an ongoing basis.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
bond receivables, deposits and other receivables,
due from a related party and due from non-
controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its
related parties is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

6.

HMEEEEIE =

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

(i)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MERAMREIE @
Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERK #E)
Bond receivables, deposits and other (i) FEWES e RAMEK
receivables, due from a related party and BRAN s EUS— 2 BB 5 I
due from non-controlling shareholders of a KUREW— B EZ
subsidiary and its related parties (Continued) FEHERR IR R e B R 5 7k 1B
#)
The loss allowance account in respect of bond FREKES BEREM
receivables, deposits and other receivables, due FEUWBR T8~ FEUR — i RA B /5
from a related party and due from non-controlling FIEURER—ERERE
shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties Z IR IR A% B R HL A Bt
during the year is as follows: B BERZEREBEOT
Due from
non-
controlling
shareholders
of a
subsidiary
Deposits Due from and its
Loan Bond and other a related related
receivables  receivables receivables party parties
FE—Fd
MBARZ
% R HA El—% JEERBRRR
REBER el &5 FEWERS  BBATRE HEHANE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET FTET
At 1 October 2021 R-ZE-—&#+A—H 1,138 10,935 11 22 -
Allowance recognised for the year XA E - - 13 6 -
Reversals o) (1,173) - - - -
Exchange differences ERER 35 - ) () -
At 30 September 2022 and RIZZZEAAZ+EBR
1 October 2022 —E--E+A-AH - 10,935 23 27 -
Allowance recognised for the year R & - - 295 - 51
Reversals [l - - - (1) -
Exchange differences ERESB - - (8) (1) (1)
At 30 September 2023 RIZEZ=FAB=+H - 10,935 310 25 50
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFERMREIR =

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)

(ii) Bond receivables, deposits and other
receivables, due from a related party and
due from non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary and its related parties (Continued)

The management of the Group assessed the risk of
default based on both quantitative and qualitative
information on hand after initial recognition. Based
on their assessment, there was an increase in the
loss allowance in deposits and other receivables
because of the increase in default risk that certain
balances were outstanding for more than one year.

(c) Liquidity risk (c)

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

EERKE (&)

(i) FEWES T RAMEK
RRAE - FEW — 2 B 5 7 B
LR EW—EIHTE L EZ
FFHERR AR R B B i 75 7k B
(&)

rEBRBEEBENG
BEBE —&Elﬁé«ﬂﬁ
HENER BRNREZ
fh BRETHBRBERE—F
AR EEZEARBREM
1 Fe HLAth FE U BR ok e 18 3
g

REBE T E R

REEZHRDERHGERINAR
TEHRRBESE R URBHER
mEZRSHERNHEBRRE
Bz RgEesEKe

AEETHEERBEGHRMEE
ReERBAEZHBINAMT ¢

Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows
REEIR
DIE 1-24F 2-55 BRERSHEHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAET FTET FET

At 30 September 2023 RZEZ=FhBA=+H
Trade payables BB ZERE 3,608 - - 3,608
Accruals and other payables e E B R EMECIRD 55,238 - - 55,238
Lease liabilities HE&E 4,868 2,797 252 7,917
Due to related parties &S RE B B 4,579 - - 4,579
Due to directors EEEHE 8,772 - = 8,772
Non-convertible bonds RARES 20,763 3,180 - 23,943
Bank and other borrowings RITRHMEE 20,377 33,346 16,557 70,280
118,205 39,323 16,809 174,337
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

(c)

BRI

_=FhB=+HLEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueq) 6. MEREREIER &
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEBEERME (&)
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEBTHEEREBESAORMIER
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: BEREFAEZINPEITUWT ¢
(Continued) (#)
Total
Less than Between Between  undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows
REHIR
D1 1-26 -5 HEMEMHRE
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET FHET
At 30 September 2022 RZBZZ&#AB=+H
Trade payables ENEZERER 1,145 - - 1,145
Accruals and other payables FEsT & A R E T ER R 38,651 3,209 - 41,860
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,678 659 632 2,969
Due to related parties e BT et 5 AR 9,888 - - 9,888
Due to directors N EEHRE 1,142 - - 1,142
Non-convertible bonds AR ES 9,232 1,132 9,753 20,117
Due to non-controlling EN—ERBARZ
shareholders of a subsidiary FEERIRERK
and its related parties HEAM B wIE 27,344 27,344
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 4,132 4,511 18,180 26,823
65,868 36,855 28,565 131,288
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HFERMREIR =

(d) Interest rate risk (d)

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest
rate of the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s certain bank borrowings denominated in RMB.

Other than bank borrowings mentioned above, the
Group’s non-convertible bonds, certain bank borrowings
and other borrowings bear interest at fixed interest rate
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

The directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.

) 2= & bR

AEBZREERENNXARTIE
EPREEBUAREBSHEZE
FRITBEEELEZPRAARIRTT
BERNKKZH -

fR EIRITEESN  REBERT]
BRES ETRTEERAEM
BEOZBEEMNXFE > EHItE
BRAFEMERER-

EERAEEBAEZANERRR
WAEXR FILTEGERERE
Do

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 30 September (e) MAB=+HZEmMIAS%E
2023 2022
—EZ=F —E2-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost  Z#IHMAYIRZ SRHEE 25,285 16,295
Financial liabilities: EHEE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 3% #8845 BR 2 S RE B 18 158,120 121,684
(f)  Fair values f) 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REMBRRARAIRMR 2 ZER
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated TREERERHEEZEEEHR
statement of financial position approximate their ﬁﬁ%@z’&:ﬁﬁﬁ

respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

7. REVENUE 7. W=
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a) Wz=d9o
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers BEANTEEMIMRGRERE
by major products or service line for the year is as BEREHZWREDUWT .
follows:

2023 2022
—E_=F =B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T
Revenue from contracts with E#BMFEREERF15588E
customers within the scope RAKBEEZRGHZIE
of HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products 1#+ B & R el IRFS 42 21D
or service lines
— Sales of natural gas —HERAR 149,692 120,162
— Sales of steel support axial —IHENZIE#HIEIRAR
force servo systems - 5,787
— Sales of materials —iHE Ml 2,003
- Rendering of services — R AR 7,793 6,482
- Commission income — A& WA - 20
159,488 132,451
Revenue from other sources Htha#EZ Iz
- Leasing income —HAEWA 6,589 3,790
166,077 136,241
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

, L
7. REVENUE (continued) 7. W= @
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) Wz=mdlo (&)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods FEERUTFEERERME
and services over time and at a point in time in the BEEEENE—FEMNERE R
following major product lines and geographical regions: AR EF W !
Sales of steel Provision of
support axial force Pipeline i hnol
Sales of natural gas servo systems Sales of materials services support services financial advisory Total
BEXAR BERZHANARAS HEME EERERS RERHLERS BUMBER st
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Z¥-SE C®CCF C¥CSE CFCCF C®CSE CECCE C¥CSE CECCEF CRISE CECCE CRISE CECCF CRCSRE CELCE
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
FEn FERn FERr FEn FEn FhR FEx FEn FEn TEn FEn FhR FEn FEn
Primary geographical ~ TEHEHH
markets
- The PRC except -PE (RBE
Hong Kong &%) 149,692 120,162 - 5,787 2,003 - 4332 4,431 3,461 2,045 - - 159,488 132,431
- Hong Kong -E% - - - - - - - - - - - 20 - 20
Revenue fomexternal ~ RENIEEZ
customers & 149,692 120,162 - 5,787 2,003 - 4332 4431 3,461 2,045 - 20 159,488 132,451
Timing of revenue et el
recognition
Products transfered at 1 E-FiELER
apoint in time ZER - - - 5,787 2,008 - 4,332 4437 - - 20 6,335 10,244
Products and senices ~ REREHBZER
transferred over time RE% 149,692 120,162 - - - - - 3,461 2,045 - - 153,153 122,201
Total b 149,692 120,162 - 5,787 2,008 - 4332 4431 3,461 2,045 - 20 159,488 132,451
(b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (b) PEELAEFEFRENGTENEME

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

performance obligation for contracts with customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 such that the Group need
not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of a significant financing component if the Group
expects, at contract inception, that the period between
when the Group transfers a promised good or service to
a customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less.

The Group has also applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
provision of technology support services such that the
Group need not disclose the information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations. The Group recognises
the revenue at the amount to which it has a right to
invoice, which corresponds directly to the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HthgA
2023 2022
—E=F B
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Bank interest income RITH B A 18 35
Interest income from loan to REFE=ZFER

third parties B A - 91
Government grants (note) BT Al (BT 5E) 57 453

Early redemption of non-convertible 12 R EE[C] R o AR E
bond handling charge FEE 706 -
Others Hith 90 383
871 962
Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants WeE: RAFER  AEERIBNM

of approximately HK$48,000 (2022: HK$453,000) relating to
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
government in respect of COVID-19. The remaining government
grants represented government subsidy granted to enterprise,
which had fulfilled certain requirements such as employing
specific number of staff members.

Ah#48,0008 T (ZE - Z&F:
453,00078 7T) » BEH B BT L2019
Wk EE R IR MBI R X &
BER B THHNREERATEE
THRE GINEBFEHENTINE
AB) 2 ERBBEATFEE)

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hfthl=KkE1E
2023 2022
—F°= —_=E——
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT TAET
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE HERREWE
plant and equipment 9 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR W= (FTsE42(q)
(note 42(a)) = 141
Write-off of property, W= BB A& B
plant and equipment (1,368) @)
Gain on written off of due to BN —ENE AR
non-controlling shareholders of JEVERR AR B A EL R B 75
a subsidiary and its related parties AW 1,687 -
328 139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZ

10.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

TEC=ZFHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2022: three) operating segments as

follows:

Natural gas operations - including investment in natural gas
projects, sales of natural gas,
natural gas cooking appliance
and accessories and pipeline
installation

Sales and leasing - including sales and services

business rendered from leasing of

materials, plant and machinery
and technology support

Independent financial — including services rendered from

advisory independent financial advisory

business

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not include
unallocated corporate expenses, certain other income, other
gains and losses, reversal of allowance/(allowance) for certain
deposits, other receivables and loan receivables, finance costs
and income tax. Segment assets do not include bank and
cash balances and unallocated assets. Segment liabilities do
not include non-convertible bonds, some other borrowings
and unallocated liabilities. Segment non-current assets do not
include deposits for acquisitions.

10. FEE#

FEBRZ =@ (CE-_F @) &
DELWF
RARES — BEREXARE
B HEXAR
RARME KRB
HFUREBRE
HEREE — SERBEEMH-
eSS T 55 e % 28 LA K
Rz BRHZ
HE KRR
@IS - BEBYMBEEM
B EHREZ RS

FERZIREDEBREERREEM
RRBZRBUEEFEL -HREER
BETEERMETISHERE &0
BB -

MEDBZ G BRAGEMB®RE
Pt SE4PR A E MR - 2 BB A S 1R
i%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi\%¥ﬁﬁ
WANEBEthmkBEE - ETHEE H
fih FE WS BR AR R FE IR & R B (o], (B
)  MBEREKRFAER - DBWEEL
BRETARREEHFURKRDEE
EenEaET NEEFRRES
ATHMEERKRDEAE DEIER
HEEUTBRERBERZEE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

10. D EEFE @

Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) BRAKENHER -BEERER
assets and liabilities: Z2EN
Sales and Independent
Natural gas leasing financial
operations business advisory Total
XAREE  HERHEEE B e @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET TET TET FTET
Year ended BEZZT-=F
30 September 2023 NB=1+HLEE
Revenue from external REIMNIE P 2 Wa
customers 155,052 11,025 - 166,077
Segment profit/(loss) DEEN/ (E58) 37,925 (4,146) (62) 33,717
Interest revenue Gl g 10 7 - 17
Interest expense FERX (2,654) (599) - (3,253)
Depreciation and amortisation T & K #8 (10,429) (5,172) - (15,601)
Net foreign exchange gain R FE 7 - - 7
Other material non-cash items: EMEAIFREER :
Share of loss of a joint venture ~ E{E—F& A§ﬁ¥zﬁﬂa (76) - - (76)
Reversal of impairment loss/ 1% BB k& &
(impairment loss) on property,  E5#8#[E/ (5@2@!@?5)
plant and equipment 22,471 (2,128) - 20,343
Reversal of impairment loss on B EE E R ERE
right-of-use assets [ 158 - - 158
Reversal of impairment loss on &/ & E R EEEEM
intangible assets 17,172 - - 17,172
Allowance for trade receivables FEUY B 5 BRZUE & (40) (660) - (700)
Allowance for deposits and Be R EMERERRURE
other receivables (247) (53) - (300)
Reversal of allowance for due  JEU— A RAHE /T IE &
from a related party el - 1 - 1
Allowance for due from El—RNEASZ
non-controlling shareholders ~ JEEIRARE K
of a subsidiary and its HEAm R IR A
related parties (51) - - (51)
Write-off of property, M BB R B
plant and equipment 1,353 - - 1,353
Additions to segment RENWIERBERE
non-current assets 7,307 37,813 - 45,120
As at 30 September 2023 R-ZBZ=FhAB=+H
Segment assets NEEE 234,200 52,336 11 286,547
Segment liabilities HEEE (121,041) (42,559) (10) (163,610)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

10. DEEE @)

Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) EFRAKESIHER - BEERERE
assets and liabilities: (Continued) ZER . (&
Sales and Independent
Natural gas leasing financial
operations business advisory Total
IRRER HERAEER B SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET TET
Year ended HE-ZT—-Z
30 September 2022 NB=1+HILEE
Revenue from external RENMBEE 2 e
customers 124,599 11,622 20 136,241
Segment profit/(loss) HEEF/ (E518) 38,439 (1,989) 851 37,301
Interest revenue FI 8 Wz 29 6 - 35
Interest expense FERX (1,034) 82) - (1,116)
Depreciation and amortisation  #7 & K #4H (9,526) (2,151) - (11,677)
Net foreign exchange gain R a2 8 136 - - 136
Other material non-cash items: EMEAIFRELER :
Share of loss of a joint venture  HMh—EAELEEE (49) - - (49)
Reversal of impairment loss on 412 = & 2R f& A&
property, plant and equipment 5850 21,012 - - 21,012
Reversal of impairment loss on 16 12 & & F {E 5518 &)
right-of-use assets 178 - - 178
Reversal of impairment loss on &/ & E R EHEER
intangible assets 16,565 = E 16,565
Reversal of allowance/ W E SRR REE
(allowance) for trade and BERD/ (BE)
bills receivables 4 (1,865) - (1,823)
Allowance for deposits and BEREMEWIER
other receivables B () (3) = (6)
Allowance for due from a e — % B8R AR IB R
related party = 6) = (6)
Additions to segment RENBERGE
non-current assets 3,440 778 - 4,218
As at 30 September 2022 R-E-Z&#hA=+H
Segment assets NPEE 201,082 29,682 8 230,772
Segment liabilities HiEEE (114,207) (15,747) (10) (129,964)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR
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BEZ

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

10. A EPEE )

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b) SEPUEHEIISREER ¢
loss:
2023 2022
—E=F BT F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Revenue Wi
Consolidated revenue ReWm 166,077 136,241
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable P& D EPEDER
segments 33,717 37,301
Unallocated amounts: b alivE X
General and administrative —RRITEE W
expenses (15,625) (23,369)
Reversal of allowance for FE BB E #D
loan receivables - 1,173
Reversal of allowance/(allowance) &% K EtEUERR
for deposits and other BERD (BEH)
receivables 5 (7)
Finance costs IR (1,668) (1,487)
Other income HAg A 754 497
Other gains and losses Hithlh s 518 (15) 23
Consolidated profit before tax BRIRAIAR & A 17,168 14,131
Reconciliations of segment SHEERARHEEK:
assets and liabilities:
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments R ¥R &9 LA E E 286,547 230,772
Unallocated KnEC 12,791 9,085
Consolidated total assets REREE 299,338 239,857
Liabilities =45
Total liabilities of reportable AREDIBEE
segments 163,610 129,964
Unallocated KnEC 43,938 27,556
Consolidated total liabilities RERas 207,548 157,520
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. DEEFE @

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b) 7 EBUNESELLE

loss: (Continued)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by
location of customers or by location of assets are within
the PRC, including Hong Kong.

(c) Revenue from major customers:

HE 5

HER ()

BEFRAMNIZE EFMETHE
DZAEBERER@mKRIFABE

EHURTE 8FEES-

(c) REFEFRZWHE:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which KEFERFFRZWE (hEAEE

account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is W=m10%a L E) 2 9fmT :

as follows:
2023 2022
—E=F =B

HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHET
Customer A BEEA 32,618 -
Customer B =ZFB 17,041 16,985
Customer C BRC - 18,859
Customer D ZFD - 14,287
Customer E ZAE = 13,883

Each of the major customers represents a single external
customer whose transaction is generated from natural REBDE (&
gas operations segment (2022: natural gas operations

segment).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

11.

12.

FINANCE COSTS

11. BAFER A

2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E2-
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEEZFIE 3,178 1,116
Interest on non-convertible bonds MR ESZFE 1,555 1,296
Interest on lease liabilities HEsEZNE 188 191
4,921 2,603
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRIfFIAX

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following:

EREEPERZFAERIWT

2023 2022
—E=HF =B

HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FET

Current tax — the PRC BPHRFRIE — R
Provision for the year FREH 33 34
Deferred tax (note 38) RIEFRIE (F15E38) 3,449 3,416
3,482 3,450

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
Samoa, Seychelles and the British Virgin Islands (“‘BVI”), the

Group is not subject to any income tax in these regions.

RERESHE BEED - ETWREE
BeEE ((RBEYER)) RAUKE
R REERRZSHMEBABNERPR
"o
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12.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

TEC=ZFHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2022: 25%). Pursuant to relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, the effective EIT rate for a
subsidiary which qualified as small and micro enterprises is
2.5% for assessable profits below RMB1 million and 5% for
assessable profits between RMB1 million and RMB3 million for
the year ended 30 September 2023 and 2022.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the year ended 30
September 2023 (2022: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as
follows:

12.

FrieRBE> @

RIEFEREMER (TREMERL
EREEMEBRIEB G > P
BABINMELR25% (ZTE - "F
25%) ° WRIFEHEER AR R IER ﬁ
EIERC=FERIEIZFEAR=T
HIEFE fFa/ Mt EE4N—REK
BABIWERR EFENR ARE1008
7o BRI EMSMES2.5% Wk
FEREANHRAREBI00ETEARE
3008 o2 IERTEMEREXS
5%

HRAEERBEE_T _=F 1A
—t+tHLEFETEERREN (ZF
TTEE) OHBRFHERNRE
Bt o

P15 7% B 2 B FRAR AT i A SR AR B 1
EFEMERZBZHERINT ¢

2023 2022
—E-=F =B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Profit before tax PRI AT R F] 17,168 14,131
Tax credit at PRC EIT rate R ZEPRIS IR E25%
of 25% (2022: 25%) (ZEZTHF 125%) 2
RIBE % 4,292 3,533
Tax effect of expenses that AEMRSZHZ B E
are not deductible 1,469 2,191
Tax effect of income not taxable RIRMBAZRBLE (854) (1,083)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary FHERIRIEEE R
differences not recognised EREMERIMBEE (1,473) (2,402)
Utilisation of tax losses not LRI KRR ZIRNIER B
previously recognised (1,744) (748)
Tax effect of tax concessions MREBERREZRBETE 83 72
Effect of different tax rates of REMBE EZRELESHB AT
subsidiaries operating in PAENEI s
other jurisdictions 1,709 1,887
Income tax expense Frigfi 2 3,482 3,450
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

13.

14.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. FREF
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging the REBEZEFWEHNDEMOBFUTEE
followings: B8R
2023 2022
—E=F —E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEE#HE GTAHEER
(included in selling and baki=1n %)
distribution costs) 3,377 2,899
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4 B Eir B
— Audit service —BEBIZARTE 1,050 1,050
— Other services —HMARF 599 1,360
1,649 2,410
Cost of inventories sold BEFEERK 127,703 106,284
Depreciation of property, plant and ME--MEREZEITE
equipment
— for operating lease arrangement —RREHEZHE 4,449 2,151
— self-occupied —BH 7,195 6,840
11,644 8,991
Depreciation of right-of-use assets THRESENE 2,175 1,596
Write-off of property, WEEMZE BB Mk B
plant and equipment 1,368 2
Net exchange loss PEREEIEFER 1,445 2,975
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEGHIMEX
2023 2022
S -2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Employee benefits expense BERMES (BEESEH !
(including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances i TEAL K2 Rh 11,950 11,378
Retirement benefit scheme BRIRERN F B
contributions 493 561
Severance payments EME = 3
12,443 11,942
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

One director (2022: one) is included in the five (2022: five)
highest paid individuals in the Group during the year. The
emoluments of the remaining four (2022: four) individuals
during the year are as follows:

14.

EBEERAMZ @
ALBEHMAL

REFEREERLR (TTE 2
Ih) BReHFMALEE—% (Z
TTHF IR EF-FAR %E%(_
TTTF IR ALZENEWT

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FET

Salaries, allowances and e R AEYER
benefits in kind 3,249 3,088

Retirement benefit scheme BRIREF T EI R

contribution 63 69
3,312 3,157

Number of individuals

A
2023 2022
—EZ= B
The emoluments fell within HFIMAIN U TER :
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7TE
1,500,00078 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 TE
2,000,000 7T 1 1
4 4

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group
to any of the five (2022: five) highest paid individuals or the
directors set out below as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

RAEFER > ZEETEZ SRR
RFER(CEF 1% &Ko
ALTHTIXAABEESEHZEMT—BA
T ERRIIREMAHRMARER
By 2 BLRh - SN 1E 7 BERI By 2 #3188 o
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BEZ

— =

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

" =FHAA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

15. ESZ @ R Hllm=

DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The remuneration of each director is set out below: ZME&EIWMT
30 September 2023
ZZ=FhA=1+H
Retirement Total
Salaries and  benefit scheme directors’
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
e HEREMERN BEBHEGIIHST EEMELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Name of director EENs TART TAT TET TET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Wu Guoming SEPLE - 120 6 126
Mr. Duan Fanfan ERRIREE - 120 6 126
Mr. Wang Wenzhou INELE (THER)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 480 18 498
Non-executive director FRITES
Mr. Chen Long (note (a)) BRESTE (M) 114 - - 114
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RENEE 120 - - 120
Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester (note (b)) M E#E £ (HzE(0)) 100 - - 100
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky BENEELT 120 - - 120
Total 4t 454 720 30 1,204
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (continuea)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(a)

15. EE 2@ RHE &

EEME (&

30 September 2022

“Z-FAB=+H
Retirement Total
Salaries and benefit scheme directors’
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
wE  HEREMERN BEENEEIRT EEMeRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director BEHY THET TAET TAT FHET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Wu Guoming RERRRE - 120 126
Mr. Duan Fanfan BAMEE - 120 126
Mr. Wang Wenzhou INELE (THER)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 480 18 498
Independent non-executive BILkBTES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RHNEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (note (c)) HEELE (H5(0) 85 - - 85
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky #ENEEL 120 - - 120
Total Bt 325 720 30 1,075
Notes: M5E
(a)  Mr. Chen Long was appointed on 21 October 2022. (@) MEEEENR_Z=__+A1

(o)

Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester was appointed on 3 October 2022
and resigned on 2 August 2023.

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun retired on 16 June 2022.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’s and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

There was no payment of the performance related
incentive payments for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHNA=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EFZ2 B RFm= @)
DIRECTORS (continuea)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEXEME &
Saved as disclosed above, neither the chief executive nor FBREXFIREEIN REBEEZT
any of the directors waived any emoluments during the T=FAB=tHLEFEfEER
year ended 30 September 2023 (2022: Nil). SITBRABNERNEBREEM
e (CEZ 25 H\) o
(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UEF -ZHEHEZERMAESE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies ATEANET BLUERKE
corporate and connected entities 3 ZEE R
()  The information about loans, quasi-loans and iy AERIHIEXATHHEEA
other dealings entered into by the Company or LXK@T%%#%EBTQP’E
subsidiary undertaking of the Company in favour of ?EJ FEAZTAGNINE
a controlled body corporate of Mr. Wu, a director of “BUERKREMIZZ W
the Company, is as follows: ﬁ/ﬂﬁﬂ—F :
As at 30 September 2023 A _E_—FNAB=+H
Outstanding Maximum
amount Outstanding outstanding
Total at the amount amount Amount Provision
amount  beginning  at the end during due but  for doubtful Interest
Name of the borrower payable  of the year  of the year the year not paid  debts made Term rate Security
REAH RERK ERRA
REAGTE EEREE KEESE KEESE FEERE IPRGLE Rk AR filz= bt

HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TET TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT

Quasi-loans or credit transactions
BUENAEERS

LEERERTRERAG - 1,706 1,620 1,706 1,620 (1,620) 180 days Nil & Nil &
1808
As at 30 September 2022 RIEZZ_FHhA=+H
Outstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding  outstanding
Total at the amount amount Amount Provision
amount beginning at the end during due but  for doubtful Interest

Name of the borrower payable of the year of the year the year not paid  debts made Term rate Security
REH RERH ERRA

EEALHR EAETEE AEELE KBESE FEENE JHA(NLH RIREE R Gk it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TAT TET TAT

Quasi-loans or credit transactions

BUERARERS

LHEERERTIRERAT 1,706 2,596 1,706 2,596 1,706 (908) 180 days Nil & Nil &
180H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EFZ B RFm=E @)

DIRECTORS (continuea)

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UEE -ZEFZEKREAESE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies AZEANER HUEREHE
corporate and connected entities (Continued) MRZHEE &)

(i)  The information about loans, quasi-loans and other (i) ETRABHEALRBWKHEBERE
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary UERABEEREENREE
undertaking of the Company in favour of connected ERAT@m AT IINER
entity of Mr. Wu, a director of the Company, is as FEUERKRAEMRZHER
follows: wmr
As at 30 September 2023 R-E2E-_=%NAHB=+H

Outstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding  outstanding
Total at the amount amount Provision
Nature of amount beginning at the end during  for doubtful Interest
Name of the borrower connection payable  of theyear  of the year the year  debts made  Term rate Security
RENH RERH ERRA
HEARTE HEkg EfRNEE  KEESE KEERE AHERE RikEE  HR GilES iz

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TR TR TEn TR

Quasi-loans or

credit transactions
BUERAEERS
Wu Xiachen Son of Mr. Wu 1,259 1,046 1,259 1,259 (25)  Repayable on Nil & Nil &
Guoming demand
S8R SERRENRT BERBE
As at 30 September 2022 A TE-_FHAB=+H
QOutstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding  outstanding
Total at the amount amount Provision
Nature of amount beginning at the end during for doubtful Interest
Name of the borrower connection payable of the year of the year theyear ~ debtsmade  Term rate Security
RENH RERH ERRA
EEARE HEnE ERUEIEE  ARELZE  ABERR  AEEIR REEE  BR = gt

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TERL TERL TERL

Quasi-loans or

credit transactions
BUERAEERS
Wu Xiachen Son of MrWu 1,046 1,613 1,046 2,101 (27)  Repayable on Nil & Nil &
Guoming demand
RER SERRENTT REXEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

BEZ

15.

16.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continuea)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for those disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement plans
which are available for eligible employees in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has joined defined contribution retirement schemes
for the employees arranged by local government labour and
security authorities (the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The
Group makes contributions to the PRC Retirement Schemes
at the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated by
the local government organisations. Upon retirement, the local
government labour and security authorities are responsible
for the payment of the retirement benefits to the retired
employees.

15. EE 2@ M RH=E &

(c) EENXZ RHIASHFTHER
ZEKREE

R G M B IRRM 46PN EE
%’#E}EME:EXEJZEEWEHE%FH
FEZHMERBERITNTT R
FRBEFREFZHEALR
HhERuBEEEEAEm Y
BERAEREXEFTZEARS
BREanFE-

BAEFEE

A E 0] RE BRI RUR RS B (AR
RAEREBNGERESIS A

REFEERERRER ZEE/KE
FR it 75 BURT 55 T e 2 fR i B 2 HF A B
NESESHERHIERNKRE (THEH
BIREHE]) - FEBIRBE BT HE
RENTRIRBABLLE R P EIR KRG
B EH R - BRINE > T BUF S TR
ZREAEEEIOERKEEXNTR
REEH] o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZ

16.

17.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

TEC=ZFHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong)
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2023, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC Retirement
Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions. There
were also no forfeited contributions available at 30 September
2022 and 2023 under the PRC Retirement Scheme and MPF
Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

During the year ended 30 September 2023, retirement benefit
scheme contributions paid amounted to approximately
HK$493,000 (2022: HK$561,000).

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 September 2023 (2022: Nil).

16. 3

17.

BAEFHEE =

NEBBIERFIELBETEEG (B
BEBIE485%) AIRBES B RE KRG
(BBEFIESTE) Al LEEEEAN
EEEEatIE AEEtE (MaEs
FEL) cRBEHEABRBILERAE
B2 EREEFERARSE cRIERBE R
o EEREEBHEREERRBBAN
5%ME st EMHEFT S B BRWAN L
[ %30,0007 7T ©

BE_TS__FR-F=ZF1A
Zt+HIEFE REPERAKTE R
AT s8> AEE I E SR IHERE
HAERBLURMBEIRAE HIKF R
“EC=FhAR=+H>
RFPERAS B RBREE &%
B 7R i O OR W R B A & B A LU
RARREE Z MK

5 __

BE_Z_=FnB=+tHILFE R
RBH 5T 2 R4 & 493,000 7T (=
E T~ T4 1 561,000 7T) ©

HQ:%\
EETRENBE_Z =18

—+HLEEFERNEARE (CEZZ
FrHE)-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

18. LOSS PER SHARE 18.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based
on the following:

BIREE

SRESRBBERDBELTEE
s

2023 2022
—E=F —E
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHETT TR
Loss for the purpose of calculating M EERELAREEER
basic and diluted loss per share MmE 2 E1E (12,229) (15,504)
Number of shares BB ’000 '000
T % T
Weighted average number of ordinary FistEERE AR EEE
shares for the purpose of calculating = 2 Z @R MNEFHH
basic and diluted loss per share 455,860 455,860

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used as
denominators in calculating the basic and diluted loss per
share are the same as the Company had no potential ordinary
shares outstanding for the years ended 30 September 2022
and 2023.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

HRAABRBEE_E_—_FN_F
T ZHFENB=Z=tHLEETEHETHE

Sz BEEBR B EERERRE
BEERFREISNEBRINETS
ZUEE o
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es to the Consolidated Financial Statements

“E=FHAB=+HIEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. ME - -BERKE

Computer Furniture Pipeline Plant
system and and Leasehold Motor and and  Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles equipment machinery i progress Total
BRALR

&7 . GRERE fRE%E RE  BERRE  BRRES TEIR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn FHx TEn TE® TER THERL TER THERL FHx

(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))

(HizH(a)) (M5H(0) (GEL)

Cost RE

t 1 October 2021 RIZ2Z-E+B-H 9,651 708 1,565 1,227 1,572 299,556 17,346 1,179 332,804
Additions RE - - 84 - - 647 778 2,709 4218
Transfers i - - - - - 2211 - 2.211) -
Transfer as inventory Eldzas - - - - - - (1,115) - (1,115)
Written off s - - (1) - - &) - - @]
Exchange differences EREE (526) - (80) 67) (349 (16,459) (927) (90) (18,183)
At 30 September 2022and  RZZZZEAB=+AK

1 October 2022 “Z-"&#+F-H 9,125 708 1,568 ,160 1,538 285,952 16,082 1,687 317,720
Additions HE - - 108 - 565 647 32,026 5,695 39,041
Transfers &% - - - - - 1,569 - (1,569) -
Disposals HE - - - - (369) - - - (369)
Wiitten off s - ©22) - - - (1,744) - - (1,766)
Exchange difierences ERZE (461) - 4 (59) (35) (14,469) (1,701) (195) (16,994)
At 30 September 2023 et =l o 8,664 686 1,602 1,101 1,699 271,955 46,407 5518 337,632
Accumulated depreciation B3t ERHE

and impairment
At 1 October 2021 RZEZ-E+E-H 1,462 553 1,314 927 813 211,638 3,851 - 220,558
Charge for the year ERET 340 46 116 240 264 5,834 2,151 - 8,991
Written off s - - (1) - - 0] - - Y]
Reversal of impairment FREERE (Kb)

for the year (note (0)) - - - - - (21,012) - - (21,012)
Exchange difierences ERLE o) - ) (64) (16) (11,823 (320) . (12,392)
At 30 September 2022and ~ RZEZZEABZ+ARK

1 October 2022 “%$-"%+F-H 1,705 599 1,367 1,103 1,061 184,636 5,682 - 196,143
Charge for the year FREZ 315 44 82 -5 279 6,420 4,449 - 11,644
Disposals HE - - - - (350) - - - (350)
Wiitten off s - (7) - - - (301) - - (398)
(Reversal of impairment)/ ER (RERR) /HE

impairment for the year (H3EbIR(C)

(note (o) and (c)) - - - - - (22,471) 2,128 - (20,343)
Exchange differences EREE (95) - (65) (57) )] (9,503) (411) - (10,139)
At 30 September 2023 RZBZ=FAB=1H 1,925 636 1,374 1,101 982 158,691 11,848 - 176,557
Carrying amount RkEfE
At 30 September 2023 RZE-_ZEnA=+H 6,739 50 228 - "7 113,264 34,559 5,518 161,075
At 30 September 2022 RZBZ-EAB=+H 7,420 109 21 57 477 101,316 10,400 1,687 121,577
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Not es to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC under medium term
leases.

The Group’s pipeline and equipment belong to the CGU of
Yichang Biaodian. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined on the basis of its value in use using discounted cash
flow method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and revenue during the forecast period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based
on long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted
gross margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors.
Yichang Biaodian’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2022: 2%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Biaodian operates. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on Yichang
Biaodian’s past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. The pre-tax rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group’s is 12.64% (2022: 13.10%).

The performance of Yichang Biaodian CGU has been improved
because:

(i) With the planning under the guiding ideology of the
“14th Five-Year Plan” in 2021, the central government
vigorously promotes the utilisation of clean resources,
and pipeline natural gas has become the best choice for
new enterprises to use as heating energy. Accordingly,
the municipal government of Yichang encourages all
natural gas suppliers in Yichang to work together in order
to stabilise the natural gas supply among Yichang city
and areas nearby so as to attract industrial users to use
natural gas as their major energy source in manufacturing
process; and
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

es to the Consolidated Financial Statements
“E=FHAB=+HIEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

19. ME - -BERSERE @

MizE (4

(Continued) () (#)

(i)  the government provides subsidies to manufacturers iy MIZEZ-F BEFARE®L
engaging in chemical industry to move into the industrial ETENNEHREHE®BI XU
area which one of the gas supply locations that Yichang EABAEERHMEEMEN
Biaodian operated, and encourage manufacturers to use KARMBEZ —N T EME >
natural gas as their major energy source in 2022 and T B REEERRARIER
certain customers were secured and were in full operation HFZER BARSHINU
since early of the current reporting period. o BTERRPEERMHFARAE2

EEE o

Accordingly, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts for this At » AEBEBTILREEELEEUN

CGU. The recoverable amount of this CGU was HK$203,362,000 HREeEnEeRA LRESEEBUNA

(2022: HK$179,788,000). Therefore, reversal of impairment Y [6] & %8 %203,362,0008 7T (ZF

losses on non-current assets are credited to profit or loss for the — T4 1179,788,0007 7T) o Ak JE

year and are analysed as follows: MENEENRERERRLI S AFERIE
wmAL AU
2023 2022
—_E_= S p——
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHBT

Property, plant and equipment ME--BER&AE 22,471 21,012

Intangible assets (note 22) B EE (H:22) 17,172 16,565

Right-of-use assets (note 20) femmeEE (5E20) 158 178

Credited to profit or loss stAR® 39,801 37,755

The Group’s plant and machinery belong to the CGUs of (i) (© FEENBREREBRBERUTRE

leasing of materials, construction plant and machinery and (ii)
leasing of steel support axial force servo system. Since leasing
of steel support axial force servo system recorded loss for
the year. The management assessed any impairment on the
assets under steel support axial force servo system CGU. The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined on the
basis of its value in use using discounted cash flow method.
The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are
those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and revenue during the forecast period. The
Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on past
experience and market trend of demand on service. Budgeted
gross margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

(Continued)

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts of steel support axial
force servo system CGU derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by the directors. This growth rate is based
on the past experience and overall market trend of demand on
service. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted revenue and gross margin, such estimation is
based on steel support axial force servo system CGU’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the market
development. The pre-tax rate used to discount the forecast
cash flows from the Group’s is 12.1% (2022: Nil).

Due to a slow-down in the construction sector with fewer
large infrastructure projects, the Group has revised its cash
flow forecasts for this CGU. The CGU has been reduced to its
recoverable amount of HK$3,443,000 and an impairment loss of
HK$2,128,000 is recognised on plant and machinery.

At 30 September 2023, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged to an independent third party
for obtaining an advance of RMB100,000 (equivalent to
HK$109,000) amounted to RMB1,562,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,707,000) (2022: RMB100,000 (equivalent to HK$115,000)
amounted to RMB1,693,000 (equivalent to HK$1,949,000)).

On 24 September 2019, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose its building located in the PRC together with
associated leasehold improvements. The disposal has not yet
been completed as at 30 September 2023 and the aggregate
carrying amount of the aforementioned building and leasehold
improvements as of 30 September 2023 was HK$1,755,000
(2022: HK$1,949,000). Deposit was received for the disposal of
building of the Group (note 32).

At 30 September 2023, property plant and equipment with
carrying amount of HK$40,303,000 were pledged to banks and
financial institutions for obtaining bank and other borrowings of
RMB39,871,000 (equivalent to HK$43,579,000) (2022: Nil) (note
37).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

es to the Consolidated Financial Statements
“E_=FHAB=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

19. ME - -BERKE @

MisE : ()

©

(&

AEEZBESHECRWHFESE
GRS EHHARRKREELE
INRERETAR - ZIGRETHRIE
BEKRKEERTSHRBERNB
BoFREETHE 2 HMBARREY
&iﬁ%/m]\/ﬂmﬂjfﬁ o BEBEK
mREMNE GG RTINS E
HOARARREELBEMNZBER
RREEBBHTHERZTEHAME
ARERAERTERIRERE ZRAT
EERB121% (T2 ZF 1) -

BAREBEERE ARERERER
B REBBBIZRSEEEN
MRS REEA - REELEMNBER
/D E B[] £ §83,443,0007 77 0 I
iR B5 T 1% 28 1 S0 R 18 E5 182,128,000
HIT o

RZBE_=ZFNA=+0H>AWER
AR #100,0007T (#8 & #109,000
BT ME\RF—LBULE=HNY
¥ BMERRENEEEAARE
1,562,0007c (A8 1,707,000 75)
(ZE-__F  AHMERRARKE
100,0007tc (FHE 115,000 7T) MM
BEF—2LBIE=ZANVE -BE
K FENEREE A AR T1,603,0007T
(FBE 121,949,000 7T) ) ©

—hEABZ+MA  x&E
—ZBIUFE=RIUEERZE U
H:'n.:.,\uﬁ"‘:P.Z@—iFEﬂ@EﬁE
ERE - R_Z_ZF£hA=+AE
EFEHAER BE_ZS_=ZF"
B=+H > LT REEEERT
48 {8 41,755,000 (Z2 -
1,949,0003% 7T) oE?fHd‘%ﬂs%@@
FUEZE (Fi5E32) ©

\_7

RZE-_=FnAB=+H REES
40,303,000 T2 BB KR &
BRI FIRIT R R A8 LU ELIRTT
REMEE ARES39,871,0007T (18
E1%43,579,00087) (ZZE__4£F:
) (MIE37) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. EFFREEE

Leased Leased
Leasehold Leased motor construction
land properties vehicles materials Total
HELH HEmE HESE REREMH 4wt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FEx THT Tz FTERT
(Note)
(B 5E)
At 1 October 2021 RZE2_—%+F—H 599 1,242 214 - 2,055
Additions HE - 542 2,355 - 2,897
Depreciation e (15) (o71) (610) - (1,596)
Reversal of impairment ERFEEER (EE190))
for the year (note 19(b)) 178 - - - 178
Exchange differences EREHR (31) 8) - - (39)
At 30 September 2022 and RIZEZZHEAB=+HR
1 October 2022 2% +A-H 731 805 1,959 - 3,495
Additions RE 292 541 - 5,787 6,620
Depreciation nE 17) (777) (658) (723) (2,175)
Reversal of impairment FERAEEER (FEE190))
for the year (note 19(b)) 158 - - - 158
Exchange differences ERELB (45) (5) - (140) (190)
At 30 September 2023 KZEZ=5hB=+H 1,119 564 1,301 4,924 7,908
2023 2022
—E-= =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT THT
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use FAEEEFERS
assets 2,175 1,596
Reversal of impairment loss on FREEEZRE
right-of-use assets E5 18 13 O] (158) (178)
Interest expenses on lease liabilites HE&EF BBEX
(included in finance costs) (5t AR 75 Al 4) 188 191
Expenses relating to short-term B ERRM MY
lease (included in general and (Gt A—MR R ATEZ t)
administrative expenses) 223 192

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZ

20.

“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continuea)

Note: On 30 November 2023, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
its leased motor vehicle at consideration of HK$1,200,000 upon
settlement of all respective lease liabilities. The carrying amount
of the aforementioned leased motor vehicle as of 30 September
2023 was HK$1,069,000.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 42(e).

For the year ended 30 September 2023, the Group leases
properties, motor vehicles and car parking spaces for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
one to five years, but may have termination option to terminate
the leasing agreement of a motor vehicle after one year. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns natural gas stations and office
complex located in the PRC. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land component of these
owned properties is presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

2. FHEEE @

Mizx: MRZZEZ_=Z=fF+—B=+H =&
EERBUF=ATIEEW
EOMURMEEREEaRES
1§L)(1 200,000 8 THREHEH

HERE-BHE_Z_=ZFN83
=t+H LA ESENREES
1,069,00038 7T ©

HEZRE M4
42(e) °

BREZ S IBHIC MY 5E

BE_TZ_-—FNA=THLEE"
FEBEEYE - AERFBEUARE
E-HEGNR—ELFZEEMRET
o BERIEEER IR —FRA&L
MERE R BERRTLIRE R EE
BER o B E RSB BRI B AR o 1t
EERARAFETIHEAREzFE

Ko AERERAGNZERLEESH
PISR B BIT Z B -
tesh > AEBEEA UR FEZ RAR L

Rt rRtEe-rERBZEMFEER (B
EEBEAE L) 2 EEEB A B
BREYERD BIFH—RMEAIRe
EEFHBNNMRER DR ZF
BYEZEE LMD HEBZY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TEC=ZFHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

BEZ

21.

GOODWILL 1. B8
Yichang LW
Biaodian Insurance Total
HEEH FERR 45t
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
(Note)
(B3 5%)
Cost (D%
At 1 October 2021 A _E_—F+B—H 4,622 2,538 7,160
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERERE (2,538) (2,538)
Exchange differences PERE%R (252) - (252)
At 30 September 2022 and RIEZZHFABE=+H
1 October 2022 rkRZEZ"HF+HF—H 4,370 - 4,370
Exchange differences PERZE%R (220) - (220)
At 30 September 2023 RIZEZ=FNA=+H 4,150 - 4,150
Accumulated impairment Bt BERE
losses
At 1 October 2021 N _E_—F+H8—H 4,622 2,538 7,160
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEREBRE - (2,538) (2,538)
Exchange differences PER =% (252) - (252)
At 30 September 2022 and R _E__F#hAB=+H
1 October 2022 RZEBEZ_HF+HB—H 4,370 - 4,370
Exchange differences ERE%R (220) - (220)
At 30 September 2023 WN_E_=FNABA=1+H 4,150 = 4,150
Carrying amount EREE
At 30 September 2023 RIEZ=FhB=+H - - -
At 30 September 2022 A _E__HFNAB=+H - - -
Note: The Group acquired 49% of the equity interest in Yichang e . FAEERZZE—REWREEER

Biaodian in 2016. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is
allocated to CGU of Yichang Biaodian. The amount has been
fully impaired since 30 September 2019.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %R

HZ40%KRE - WHEEELEZH
BoREEERMREELE M-
ZEBRE_T-AFENAA=TH
EEEEERNE-



ARE MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. BLEE
Natural gas
supply
exclusive rights
AR
BRMERE
HK$’'000
TFAT
(note)
(M%)
Cost s
At 1 October 2021 N _E_—F+H8—H 239,848
Exchange differences bE 52 = 28 (13,061)
At 30 September 2022 and 1 October 2022 A_E__FNAB=1THEK
2 F+RB—H 226,787
Exchange differences FE R =38 (11,466)
At 30 September 2023 RZE2_=FhB=+H 215,321
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Bt ERRE
At 1 October 2021 N _E_—F+HF—H 168,817
Charge for the year FAMEZ 2,899
Reversal of impairment for the year (note 19(b)) FEEEREE (FsE19(b)) (16,565)
Exchange differences PERE%R (9,340)
At 30 September 2022 and 1 October 2022 RIE2EZZHFAB=1HK
2 F+HA—H 145,811
Charge for the year FREZ 3,377
Reversal of impairment for the year (note 19(b)) FRRERE (M5E19(0)) (17,172)
Exchange differences bE 52 = 28 (7,466)
At 30 September 2023 A ZEZ—FNBE=+H 124,550
Carrying amount IREE
At 30 September 2023 RIE2EZ=FAB=+H 90,771
At 30 September 2022 RZE__FHhB=+H 80,976
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
TEC=ZFHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

BEZ

22,

23.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the
acquisition of Yichang Biaodian completed on 24 February
2016 and is amortised over the remaining years of the
contractual period of 30 years till the years ranging from 2041
to 2044.

The Group performed impairment assessment on natural
gas supply exclusive rights and other assets which belong to
the CGU of Yichang Biaodian. The performance of Yichang
Biaodian has been improved and it continued to generate
profit this year. Reversal of impairment has been recognised
for the year ended 30 September 2023. Details of impairment
assessment are set out in note 19(b).

As at 30 September 2023,
exclusive rights was pledged to bank for obtaining loan
of RMB17,000,000 (equivalent to HK$18,581,000) (2022:
RMB19,000,000) (note 37).

the natural gas supply

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2023 are as

2. BEWLEE &

IR BERUEEEENRAEERRZ
E-RE_A+HHEZMUERTSE
B BN EE - BN —FE M
FIFBOFSAVHAZ FIERFE N H

FEEHRARBREBERE BN

ERRREELTBUZHMEEE
TRESG -EERBEZRIFEEFRN
ME LHEERANFEET SR - BE
BOER&=E_Z_=4NB=+H
IEF RS R E G BN
19(b) °

RZE_=ZFAB=1H X2ARE
REEEIEFFIRT UWERARE
17,000,0007% (#8E5°18,581,0007T)
(Z2Z=HF : AK¥19,000,0007T)
B (f35E37) ©

23. KB AT ZIRE

RIBZ=ZFNAB=1+BZNBEARFE
mE

follows:
Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BEITR
TEREARKEMAILE BRRE/
MBARRTE BUBR EEERER HMEE FEERMGRET L TEEH
2023 2022
ZEZZ=E ZZICHF
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. BVI/Company limited US$1 - 100%  Inactive
(i % (a)) (note (a)) by shares
HEEZHE/RHER e WRER
NS
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company
&8/ BREFAT 2B RELR

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 %R
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Not es to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z_=FNAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

23. RMEABIZEKE &

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BEITR
FEREERREMMALE i e
MEARLE RIBRtEEREY EMER FEBERMGERET AL TEEH
2023 2022
k- -
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$1,000 100% 100%  Inactive
liability company
&8/ BREEAT 1,000 7T I ER
Pickworth Limited Samoa/Company USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
limited by shares
EES/ RHERAT 1ET REER
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of
liability company administrative services
to the Group
SEERBRAT B8/ BREERT 1B A 5 B4R 1T BUR %
Global Billion Access Investments BVI/Company limited by US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited shares
BIERRERR EBELHE/RABR 1% BREER
NS
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Hong Kong/Limited HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited liability company
BRRNERRERRALA &8/ BREEAT 18T REER
BIERER (R BRAS PRC/Wholly HK$14,000,000 100% 100% Inactive
foreign-owned entity
FE/ N EEERE 14,000,000 ¢ T ET
Yichang Biaodian (note (b)) PRC/Limited liability RMB58,800,000 25% 25%  Natural gas operations
company with investment
from Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan
SR8 (5H(0) hE/ BRERERRER AR RARES
RE] 58,800,0007¢
King Sailing International Limited BVI/Company limited US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
by shares
HHERERAT HEEUHE/RNER E REER
NS

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

23. FHIB AR ZIKRE @

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BETR
TEQEERKEMAILR e e
ME AR LE RIBREEEREY HEMER FEBERMGRET AL TEER
2023 2022
k- -
Heroic Sunshine Limited Seychelles/Company US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
limited by shares
EEA/RBBERAT 100%7T REER
Hong Kong Central Environmental Hong Kong/Limited HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Limited liability company
BERERENEARAA &8/ BRETLT 10,0007 REER
RERBAE (L8) ERAT PRC/Wholly RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Sales and leasing
(“Shanghai Senchou”) foreign-owned entity business of plant
and machinery and
materials and provision
of technology support
services
REBGRE (L) BRAS HRE/MEEE R E AR R Rt 28 R0 85
(TLBRE) 10,000,0007C ERBEEBURRE
T R R
East Perfection Development Limited BVI/Company limited Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
by shares
HHERARALD BEELHE/RINER 10%7T REER
NS
Global Business (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$10,000 100% 100%  Inactive
liability company
BI@E (5%) BRAA &8/ BRETRT 10,000 7T IR ET
Billion Champion Business Limited BVI/Company limited Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
by shares
K2BZBRAR EREULHE RHBR 10%E7T REER
NS

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z_=FNAHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

23. RMEABIZEKE &

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BEITR
FEREERREMMALE i e
MEARLE RIBRtEEREY EMER FEBERMGERET AL TEEH
2023 2022
k- “ECCE
Billion Champion (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$10,000 100% 100%  Inactive
liability company
Kz (BE) BRAF &8/ BREEAT 10,000 7T I ER
LW Capital Group Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company
MEsmERRRAR &8/ BRETLT 10,0007 REER
LW (Hong Kong) Finance Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$10,000 100% 100%  Dormant
liability company
i (B5%8) MBERAR &8/ BREGERAT 10,000 7T LEEY
Rich Point Credit Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$10,000 100% 100%  Not yet commenced
liability company business
BHEERRAT &8/ BREEAT 10,000 7T B R EEEH
Bright Able Century Limited BVI/Company limited USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
by shares
LHULRRAR HEEUHE/RNER 1ET REER
NS
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong/Limited HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company
ERERRAT B8/ BREERT 1B BREER

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

—

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(0)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

The subsidiary was struck off during the year.

Yichang Biaodian is a subsidiary of the Group even though the
Group has only 25% (2022: 25%) ownership interest in Yichang
Biaodian.

The Group has held 25% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian
upon the capital contribution from two shareholders on 4
January 2019. MIEZHRXARERLE (“Hubei Biaodian”),
HEMMPBERBRAR, EEXEEREARAT and Mr. Li
Wanging (collectively the “Non-controlling Shareholders”) owned
21%, 24%, 20% and 10% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian,
respectively, after the capital contribution and up to the date of
this report.

The directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the
PRC, assessed whether or not the Group still has control
over Yichang Biaodian based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities at Yichang
Biaodian unilaterally. In making their judgement, the directors
considered the Group’s power to affect the board of directors
(the “BOD”) of Yichang Biaodian. The BOD of Yichang Biaodian,
responsible for all relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian,
consisted of eleven directors, of which six were appointed by
the Group while the other five directors were appointed by
the Non-controlling Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang
Biaodian were reached by more than two-third of the attending
directors. In accordance with the terms of a further shareholders’
agreement entered into among the Group and the Non-
controlling Shareholders, in any events where the Group and the
Non-controlling Shareholders have diversed views in the BOD
meetings, the Group, being the single largest shareholder of
Yichang Biaodian, has the power to make the final decision.

Based on the assessment mentioned above, the directors
concluded that the Group under the terms of the shareholders’
agreement had the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of Yichang Biaodian and therefore the Group has control over
Yichang Biaodian after the capital contribution.

23. FHIB AR ZIKRE @

GER
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HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that
have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial
information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.

23. RMEABIZEKE &

BYSE -

©

(#%)

TRETEEHAEEMSEBEARZ
SFERBDEZNBRBNER M
BRI ERAN AR BIEHEA 2258

Yichang Biaodian

HERH
2023 2022
Principal place of business and FEEEMB R IIER PRC H1E]
country of establishment
% of ownership interests/voting EEREEFE EA LS
rights held by NCI R ERB DL 75%/45% 75%/45%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 216,779 190,929
Current assets RENEE 20,487 9,272
Non-current liabilities ERBEFE (61,743) (70,367)
Current liabilities MEIEE (55,967) (40,333)
Net assets BEEFE 119,556 89,501
Accumulated NCI Kt EERER 89,268 66,561
Revenue & 155,052 124,599
Profit for the year FREF] 34,552 35,048
Total comprehensive income SEUNmAEEE 30,055 31,835
Profit allocated to NCI DEFIFERERZ
gl 22,707 24,065
Net cash generated from operating (K& XA EIRE 35
activities 13,517 10,315
Net cash (used in)/generated from & &E &S (FrA) /FriRiR &35
investing activities (6,914) 474
Net cash used in financing activities F4E EEFFAIR S F 58 (2,898) (9,806)
Net increase in cash and RERIBEEEYILMNFEE
cash equivalents 3,705 983

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 g

253



254

iR M EERR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

24. INVESTMENTIN A J

OINT VENTURE

24. REEEENKRE

2023 2022
—E_=F =B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Unlisted investments: JELEMEE !
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 100 183

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 30 September 2023 are

R_E_=FHA=1+H AEBEE

as follows: EEFFHINUWT !
Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/
Name Place of registration Registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
BEERRREH#
Eap X1 it 26 EAIE=EN /ENAREAL  FEED
LRIE The PRC RMB30,000,000 50%  Not yet commenced
business
RIRE I AR #30,000,0007¢ EENEEED

The following table shows the Group’s share of the amount

of immaterial joint venture that accounted for using the equity

method.

TRITAEBEGEBEDEAR
RFEESEENTE-

2023 2022
—E=F =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
At 30 September: HhB=+8":

Carrying amounts of interests HmAREE 100 183

Year ended 30 September: BEAA=1THILEEE:
Loss after tax GRS (76) (49)
Other comprehensive income Hittemam (7) (11)
Total comprehensive income 2 E U R AR EE (83) (60)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR
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24,

25.

26.

“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023
INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 24,
(Continued)

As at 30 September 2023, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s joint venture in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$149,000 (2022: HK$277,000).
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s

Conversion

Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange

Regulations.

As of 30 September 2023, this joint venture did not have any
significant commitment or contingent liabilities (2022: Nil).

A
nRagt

E¥MNKEE @

RIBZ=ZFNAB=+TH UAR®K

SHEZAEBRPEHEG

EEERTRER

HEEER A 149, ooo%m (&=

277,000 7T) ° AR

TRDINE

7 AP B S B IR AR D DA S A B EEEZ

TEEBIERE

HE_Z_—FhA=Z+H t&&dE
HETELMEAARZEIIAGE (CF

T THEE) e
INVENTORIES 25. 78
2023 2022
—EBEC=F B2

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Finished goods RUAY G 216 1,042
Raw materials R A 349 447
565 1,489

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26. EWWE ZIRF KR EE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T T
Trade receivables (note) FEUR & 5 BR =R (1 5E) 16,032 13,350
Bills receivables FEW iR - 3,223
16,032 16,573
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(i)) & : BEETE (M zE6(b)()) (7,946) (7,653)
8,086 8,920
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)  26.

Note: Included in trade receivables of HK$798,000 was due from a
related company controlled by a director of the Company as at
30 September 2022.

Generally there is no credit period for customers of sales of
natural gas as the customers need to prepay before the usage
of the natural gas. For a few specific customers they can use
the gas on credit and the Group allows an average credit period
of 60 days. The Group recognises revenue for natural gas
pipeline installation service when the installation is completed
and the Group allows an average credit period of 30 days upon
completion. For sales and leasing business, the Group allows
an average credit period of 180 days upon service rendered or
goods sold. For independent financial advisory, the Group allows
an average credit period of 30 days upon service rendered.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables at the end of
the reporting year based on the goods or services delivered is as

BB BRRKRERE @

Mozt FEWL E 5 BRRRT798,0008 T BIER Z
BT TEFNA=tTHERERATE %
EEATIERIRR N A B RIE

HERRERNERBB L AERMKIE
Ef RABSZEREREARARA
AN - BAIUEELNER
RARZBEERAME  *EERT
H60HZ FHEEH FEBNZE
THEEDZRARREBLRERT 2
Wam o TR AEREKE T HI0H
ZFHEER - MHEEREEERHM
EOREHRFALEFTRE  £&E
HEFHEHI80HZ TFTHEER L IE
UPHBEEMmE  RREERFE > &
EERTHI0BZTFHEER-

RIS FERBBAZA BRI
2 ZEWE FRRREBRRE DT

follows: W
2023 2022
—EZ= =

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
0 to 90 days 0&E90H 5,188 2,830

91 to 180 days 91E180H 850
181 to 365 days 181ZE365H 1,036 5,457
Over 365 days #BiB365H 1,012 633
8,086 8,920

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance and
sales management team would assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with
reference to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and
sales management team considers trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as
continuous repayments have been received.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
are denominated in RMB.

ERMEREER AEBEM B KIHE
EEEERETHBERERZEEEA
FNWEEERZEERH -BRZ2EE
HELETRTNNCRMERETS
e AEBUYBERIHESEBKIEA
HR AR E N EGE R SBE R B EA TN R
BEZERESZRFHARKFEER
o

FEERKESRRRREBEZREE
MUARBESHE
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BE

27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

28.

27. FETERA - RERHEMEK

RECEIVABLES AR

2023 2022
—EC=F =

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHETT
Deposits Bwe 3,182 812
Prepayments SEENEESEA 10,575 6,715
Others Hh 215 546
13,972 8,073

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

DUE FROM/(TO) NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND

ITS RELATED PARTIES

Particulars of the amounts due from/(to) non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties are as

AEBERMERR BT REAMBUIRR

ZHREBEZEUARESHE

28. FEUR, (1) —RM BB Z

I 12 B B 3R e HL B Bk 75 "R IE

W, () —REN B AR 2 IFERR
RRHEBEB D REFBNT

follows:
Name Relationship 2023 2022
&8 ERE —E-= —EC
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFATT
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries note (a) 1,107 (16,064)
IR EE A S Bt 5% (a)
Mr. Xiong Songgan and his controlled entities note (b) 2,076 (11,280)
BERR B E R HIEGIER B 5% (o)
3,183 (27,344)
Notes: B 5

(@) Hubei Biaodian is the 21% (2022: 21%) non-controlling

shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

(b)  Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) is the controlling shareholder of (b)

Hubei Biaodian.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

@ HMIRHSEREER

EfE21% (ZF

TITFE L 21%) RIEZIEERRE
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28.

29.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEEEEMMB R AR

TEC=ZFHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

DUE FROM/(TO) NON-CONTROLLING 28. fEW, (F) —HEKMB AR Z
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND FE 2 A% A% 3R By HL B Bk 75 7R I8
ITS RELATED PARTIES (continued) (#)
Amounts due to Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries and NIt ERARERB AR REE
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities represented advances REEGFERRNEAAREERHA
for Yichang Biaodian’s capital expenditure purposes and were EAMTZBERNRAEESHE - Z
non-trade in nature. These balances were unsecured and EEBRABIBIFRRE - &ET2RERA
interest free. Certain amounts were carried at amortised cost BRMNEERIZEER AR BEZT
using the effective interest method, with an effective interest T THFEAB=THIEFE ERNES
rate of 10% for the year ended 30 September 2022. 10%-°
As at 30 September 2023, the amounts due from Hubei RIZ2EZ=FAAB=+H EUCHILE
Biaodian and its subsidiaries and Mr. Xiong and his controlled HBEHWB AR RILEREZEGIELRS
entities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ZAHREREHR -RERBRERKE
Ro
BOND RECEIVABLES 29. EIN(E%
2023 2022
—_E-= —_EBE-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT TATT
Unlisted debt instruments, —BLEmABET
at amortised cost, JFEFEHBITE
issued by a listed company A B AR A 10,280 10,280
Accrued interest receivables FEWFESTHI B 655 655
10,935 10,935
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(i)) & : FF{EESIE (M 5E6(b)(ii)) (10,935) (10,935)
Note: B 53
On 2 April 2019, the Group subscribed bonds from a listed company RIZ-NAEFOAZH - A&EEHA—H

(“Bond Issuer”) with principal amount of HK$3,000,000. The bonds
were unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates of 10% per annum.
The carrying amount of HK$3,300,000 was receivable on 2 April
2020. The bonds could be redeemed by Bond Issuer at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount, together with accrued interest up to
settlement date. Upon the maturity date, Bond Issuer did not repay the
interest and principal.

FHRE (MEHETA) REASEA
3,000,000t 2 &% o B A BRI > Wik
EEFFZE10%:T 8 © BREE3,300,000748
TENR-ZEZZEMA ZHRE - E5 A H
F%é*ﬁA&r‘H%f%ﬁzt&%%ﬁzmo%@ﬂ
EEEHAES A BEO o R EIHEA
F%ééﬁ)\iﬂﬂ%fﬂ%&zkﬁo
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29.

30.

“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

BOND RECEIVABLES (continued)
Note: (Continued)

On 4 May 2020, Bond Issuer issued bonds with principal amount of
HK$7,280,000 at fixed interest rate of 12% per annum to the Group
for taking up the settlement obligation of one of its subsidiaries’ bonds
subscribed by the Group. The carrying amount of HK$8,153,600 will
be receivable on 3 May 2021. The bonds could be redeemed by Bond
Issuer at 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with
accrued interest up to settlement date.

On 5 June 2020, Bond Issuer announced that it has entered into
liquidation process and had been delisted on 1 September 2023, the
management of the Company considered the recoverability of these
bonds was remote and full impairment was made accordingly. As
of date of authorising these consolidated financial statements, the
liquidation is still in progress.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bond receivables are
denominated in HK$.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank and cash balances is
denominated in the following currencies:

29.

30.

FEWES @
MisE : (48)

RIZZZFERRANA BEFETARTE

B 1T+ %8%47,280,00078 7T it 12 & E &
FZE12%st BRES - UEEHAE B
Z2—HNBARZEFZEEEE REE
8,153,600 B TN 2 —FHA=HIK
BB HEFETARBREEERS
BEZI00%EREEMAE B IR 25 S 58
=B

RIZZZTFEELA BFETAEMRH
BEABEEFINR_TE_=F"A—H
brig > RAB EEER A WEZFEFE]
BEMEMF E E&EDHE%%EDME Eiz:n:fﬁ

BEZSRoMBREEH FRIHEE
EFIO
REBERES ZIREBELBITEE

ﬁE & IE ﬁ o= El%

FEBZRITAREEHFZIREEU
THEHEHE ¢

2023 2022

—E-= —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ BT 3,471 1,403
RMB AR 5,914 3,587
us$ ETT - 8
9,385 4,998

As at 30 September 2023, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB and held in the PRC was
HK$5,913,000 (2022: HK$3,525,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

A — T —

RIZBEZ=FNA=+H > UARES
{Elfﬁﬁéqﬂﬂzz&%lfﬁﬁ)ﬂziﬁﬁ

i8R 45,913,000t (ZE & .
3,525,000/%75) c NRMERIRAINER
BrREEEIRGAI R ASE S
RATEEERTE o
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31.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

TEC=ZFHA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

TRADE PAYABLES

Generally, there is no credit period for suppliers of natural
gas as the Group need to prepay before the purchase of the
natural gas. For liquefied natural gas, the credit period granted
by supplier to the Group was 30 days. For other business, the
credit period granted by suppliers to the Group ranged from 60
to 180 days.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on date of receipt
of goods, is as follows:

1. B E 5 R

—RME > RARHEBLERLES
B RASTEBARBERARAE
TR MRIERARME » HEFHR
FTREEZEEHRAI08 - EMETR
me > HERRTFAEEZEEHNTF
60%F180H °

BERNRERHRAZINZEMEZRK
TERE AT ¢

2023 2022

—E= —_E2-C
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
0 to 90 days 0ZE90H 3,272 621
91 to 180 days 91FE180H 8 -
181 to 365 days 1812 365H 34 109
Over 365 days B1#365H 294 415
3,608 1,145

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally
settled on 30 to 180 days terms.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

BB ZEMRA T EREE BRI
F180H EABIAETT ©

AERRNEZRANZEREEDUT

G EE

2023 2022

—EBEC=F —ET-—
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ BT 15 15
RMB AR 3,593 1,130
3,608 1,145
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32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

33.

32. Bt E AR EMEIER

2023 2022
—E=F s

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Payable for construction in progress 72 T2 FE{T IR FX 21,162 26,796
Receipt in advance (note) FaUEIE (YsE) 3,058 1,957
Other payables and accruals HMMENRRREER 34,076 15,064
58,296 43,817

Analysed as: SaRir=
Current liabilities mENEE 58,296 40,608
Non-current liabilities eI IR=R - 3,209
58,296 43,817

Note:

BeE

Included in receipt in advance were deposits of HK$1,858,000
(2022: HK$1,957,000) and HK$1,200,000 (2022: Nil) received from

FAWRESER L ERT (WEE19(d) &E
EAa% (fF20) mBIE=Zs KIZEE

independent third parties for disposals of building (note 19(d)) and 1,858,000/ 75 (Z &~ — 4 : 1,957,000
leased motor vehicle (note 20) respectively. 7t) % 1,200,000 7% (ZE 24 1 #|#) °
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 33. §49&E
2023 2022
—E=F s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Billings in advance of BABTXTENRR
performance obligation
— Sales of goods —HES R 5 191
— Sales of natural gas —IHERAR 14,165 9,257
- Pipeline installation services —BETERT 1,911 1,350
16,081 10,798
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HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 33.
Contract liabilities relating to sales of goods, sales of natural

gas and pipeline installation services are balances due to
customers under goods sales contracts, natural gas sales
contracts and pipeline installation services contracts. They

arise because customers pay deposits for the contracts which
exceed the revenue recognised to date.

Increase in contract liabilities balances during the reporting
period was because of more new natural gas sales contracts
were signed with new customers, leading to increase in billing
in advance of sales of natural gas.

Movements in contract liabilities:

CESE AN

HIHEEm HERARREBLER
BERAZGNERENMERFEESH
RARBEGNREBZERBT AL
BNERZEH HNERXNBBE
SHEBZEEZ GHRE > WHRE LR

B

BHERERNEBESHREN RES
HMERBIESMAARRIPESH
HEHERARRZ IR RMRIBA

2023 2022
—E°= ="
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT THT
Balance at beginning of year SR 10,798 6,352
Decrease in contract liabilities as REANERFAFENENERE
a result of recognising revenue Nk mERENaBERLD
during the year that was included
in contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (10,254) (6,039)
Increase in contract liabilities as HEERR AR EBLRERT
a result of billing in advance of BANRRENSNEBIEN
sales of natural gas and pipeline
installation services 15,564 10,502
Exchange differences ERER (27) (7
Balance at end of year FEREEER 16,081 10,798

There are no billings in advance of performance received that is
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year
(2022: Nil).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT
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34.

35.

LEASE LIABILITIES 34. HEAE
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RERE G RERENRZIRE
2023 2022 2023 2022
ey 2 _ECFE —E=HF B CFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TER THERT TET
Within one year —ER 4,868 1,678 4,615 1,580
More than one year, —ENEBRBEME
but not exceeding two years 2,797 659 2,731 623
More than two years, MEULBREBBRE
but not exceeding five years 252 632 250 614
7,917 2,969 7,596 2,817
Less: Future finance charges B AKRHEER (321) (152)  N/A TEF N/A 748 H
Present value of lease obligations HESEZRE 7,596 2,817 7,596 2,817
Less: Amount due for settlement B ER2EBREIEEE
within 12 months (shown ZHEMRBEEET
under current liabilities) 5I7) (4,615) (1,580)
Amount due for settlement AR12ER BB EEZRIE
after 12 months 2,981 1,237

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3.57% to 14.76% (2022: from 3.57%
to 8.89%).

The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities are mainly
denominated in HKS.

Included in lease liabilities of HK$965,000 (2022:
HK$1,303,000) was guaranteed by a director of a subsidiary of
the Group.

DUE TO DIRECTORS 35.

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

BREARMECBZNETFHESEE
MENFEIETNE14.76% (ZE -
F I 3.57%%E8.89%) ©

AEBEEAEREETEUSER
SHE-

FHE&E965,000/8T (CE - _F
1,303,000/ 7t) BEAEE — BB
NEEBEFZER
FEIEEIE

BNEEFRESBRT - REKREANRE
REFEE -
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HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

36. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS 36. FAIARRESH
2023 2022
—EBEC=F —ET-—

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Non-convertible bonds AARRES 22,757 16,752
Analysed as: DU -

Current liabilities mEMaE 19,757 7,852

Non-current liabilities EREMERE 3,000 8,900

22,757 16,752

The terms of non-convertible bonds (“NCBs”) are as follows:

Interest rates

AR &S (TR ARE35)) BIIR
M0

per annum Maturity Note 2023 2022
FRE ) Bt —E-= TETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FET
NCB batch 1 12% 30 September 2024 (2022: 30 September 2022) 1,900 1,900
—HAITRRES 12% “ECMEAR=FR(CEIZE IR CH
LB=+H)
NCB batch 2 6% to 12% 10 January 2020 to 30 September 2024 (i) 2,450 5,050
(2022: 10 January 2020 to 26 July 2023)
EHATHRBRES 6%F12% “2CEF-BtHEZZCNEAR=1H
(CBEZZH . “Z”Z5—-FB+HE
“E-ZFEtRZ+AAH)
NCB batch 3 10% 30 September 2024 (2022: 30 September 2022) 250 250
FMAIHRES 10% ZBCNENB=HH(CEIZE:
ZZZEAR=1H)
NCB batch 4 12% 27 June 2025 to 29 September 2025 - 8,900
FOMAIHERES 12% “ECRESRAZHEHE
—EREAARZ+AH
NCB batch 5 6% to 12% 18 January 2024 to 24 September 2025 16,800 -
FRHATHMBRES 6%F12% “2INE-A+NHE
“E2HEEAARZ+MOA
Accrued interest 1,357 652
A8
22,757 16,752
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GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 F#R




ARE MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

36. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 36. Aol (ESH @

Note: MIsE

(i) As at 30 September 2023, included in the balance was 6% bond () RIE_=ZFAB=+H &HREHE
of HK$250,000 which was overdue since 10 January 2020 and E-_ZEZ-ZEF—HB+HEBAHEN
12% bond of HK$500,000 which was overdue since 10 March 250,000 T6%EE KRB _E =
2023. F=ZH+HIEEBAARS500,0008 7T

12% (555 o

The carrying amounts of the non-convertible bonds issued BT AT BRKRES REEREA

approximate their fair values. REBEESE

Non-convertible bonds issued at fixed interest rates expose the WETEHN KRBT AR ESFEER

Group to fair value interest rate risk. EEEBRAFTENERR-

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-convertible bonds is KEBAMKRESEZRAELUSE T

denominated in HKS. BRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 37. RITREMMEES
2023 2022
—E=F -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT TR
Secured bank borrowings (note (i) BIRFETEES BI5E) 18,581 21,873
Secured other borrowings (note (ii)) BIRREMES BY5E) 43,579 -
Unsecured bank borrowings mIRRIRITEE 1,006 1,680
63,166 23,553
The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: TREMEEENRUTHBEE !
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
Within one year —FRN 16,520 2,878
More than one vyear, —FE L EBRBBEMmE
but not exceeding two years 33,679 3,407
More than two years, MEM EBREBEAEF
but not more than five years 12,967 17,268
63,166 23,553
Less: Amount due for settlement B ER12ES NEIEREE
within 12 months MIE (P REBHadE T
(shown under current liabilities) F7R) (16,520) (2,878)
Amount due for settlement BAR12EB R EEREE 2 RIE
after 12 months 46,646 20,675
The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out ZERBLERSERBEME 25

in the respective loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHNA=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

37. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continues) 37. SRITREMES @

Note:

(i) Bank borrowings as at 30 September 2022 and 2023 are
secured by the pledge of natural gas supply exclusive rights of
Yichang Biaodian (note 22), and a property owned by Mr. Xiong,
a key management personnel of Yichang Biaodian, and his
spouse. The bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by Mr.
Xiong and the non-controlling shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.

(if) Other borrowings as at 30 September 2023 are secured by the
pledge of property, plant and equipment of Yichang Biaodian and
Shanghai Senchou (note 19(f)) and guaranteed by the certain
non-controlling shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings ranged from 5.00% to 10.50% (2022: 5.00% to
12.24%).

Bank and other borrowings of HK$62,160,000 (2022:
HK$21,873,000) are arranged at fixed interest rates and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Bank borrowings of HK$1,006,000 (2022: HK$1,680,000) are
arranged at floating rates based on the benchmark interest rate
issued by the People’s Bank of China for both years. Interest
rate will be adjusted if the benchmark interest rate changes,
thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

38. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current year and prior year:

38. IEIERIBEER

UTHRAFERBEFERIZE
BIRERBEEE R HAARES)

Revaluation

of assets

BEEM

HK$’000

TR

At 1 October 2021 N_ZZ—F%+HA—H 17,758

Exchange differences ERE%R (930)

Credited to profit or loss (note 12) st AB@m (FisE12) 3,416
At 30 September 2022 and 1 October 2022 RIZEZZTHFNA=+HK

—E__F+A—H 20,244

Exchange differences PE 52 = %8 (1,000)

Charged to profit or loss (note 12) NexEm (FFEE12) 3,449

At 30 September 2023 R_E_=FHLB=+H 22,693

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$228,463,000 (2022: HK$231,730,000) available
to offset against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses

RREEER  ZXEBRHEZRIBE
187/4228,463,000E T (ZE ==
231,730,000 7T) » ol LK R 2K &

of HK$224,142,000 (2022: HK$213,395,000) can be carried o RHERINIBRF1E 224,142,000 7T

forward indefinitely. The remaining HK$4,321,000 (2022:
HK$18,335,000) related to tax losses in the PRC which will

expire in one to five years.

No provision for deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of tax losses and other temporary differences due to

unpredictability of future profit streams.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. iR#&
2023 2022
—E”=E “EBICE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RRiP &8 AL BEE &
’000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
T T#ER T TET
Authorised: BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE0.0ET
(2022: HK$0.01) each (ZEZZF:.001%ET)
2EBR 8,000,000 80,000 8,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE !
At beginning of year and RENRER
end of year 4,559 455,860 4,559

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 30
September 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

39. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 39. R& @
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AEEGREESBEILRGEEELR
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes EEEBREENLRAEBEEFHEK
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, non-convertible MiEmiBETE - aEFEEESER
bonds, lease liabilities, due to related parties, directors and ThkEMEE-FOBRRES - HES
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related E-EMEBES - EEZUR—HERBER
parties less cash and bank balances. Total equity comprised all B 2 JE 128 B AR B R ELRR Bk 5 =R I8 0 JRIR
components of equity including non-controlling interests. The SRIBITHER EmBERBIEIFER
gearing ratio at the end of the reporting year was as follows: BmENNMBERSBDER NS

FEARNEEGB/LEROT

2023 2022
—E-= =2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
Lease liabilities (note 34) HE&E (H5E34) 7,596 2,817
Due to related parties (note 46(d)) FE < B Bk 75 =R I8 (M9 5E46(d)) 4,579 9,888
Due to directors (note 35) FEFEEIE (fF5E35) 8,772 1,142
Non-convertible bonds (note 36) el g Es (H95E36) 22,757 16,752
Bank and other borrowings (note 37) $R1TREMEE (:£37) 63,166 23,553
Due to non-controlling shareholders of F&E{f—REIMI B A S 2 IEIERE
a subsidiary and its related parties 1% & R H BB 5 wRI8
(note 28) (Ft5E28) - 27,344
Total borrowings BEM%E 106,870 81,496
Less: Bank and cash balances R IRIT RIS
(note 30) (M$5£30) (9,385) (4,998)
Net debt B2 97,485 76,498
Total equity AR RE 91,790 82,337
Gearing ratio BEARBLX 106% 93%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZ

“ET=FHA=+HIEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

39. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

40.

The increase in the gearing ratio during the year ended 30
September 2023 resulted primarily from increase in bank and
other borrowings and lease liabilities for the year.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing
the non-public float through the Stock Exchange’s website
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.

Apart from above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company and the fair value allocated
to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition arisen from a group
reorganisation in March 2000.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

39. g7

40.

HE_ZE_-—"FNAA=1+THLEE &
EAELEEMIBEEARERNET
REMEBEULREES®EIEM-

SNEBTEIMZ E—ERBERD > BERE
EERBMRM LT EBABERED
26%RMN 2 RRFFIRE

FEREBEHMIFAMIEZERTIEA

BMEFREZ RERM B HERANE
B F EF BB T25%REE

Fr EHESN RADREWBATHFR
RHNEREIIBE AR E K o

f#fE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

40. RESERVES (continued)

40. #E =

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b)

(ij) Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference

between the book values of the underlying net

assets of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

INC., DIGITAL

COMMERCE LIMITED and Digital Hong Kong
Limited at the date on which the shares of these

companies were acquired by the Company together

with the acquisition of a shareholder’s loan of
HK$7,640,000, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition. The

special reserve is available for distribution under the

Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

(i)

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount of the excess

of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par

value.

Other reserve

(iv)

Other reserve represents deemed capital

contribution arising from non-current interest-free

loan from shareholders and the loss on disposal

arising from deemed disposal of 24% equity interest

in Yichang Biaodian.

(v) Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises

all foreign exchange differences arising from the

translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations. The reserve is dealt with

in accordance

with the accounting policies set out in note 4(e)(iii) to

the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHNA=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41. QGBI ARE#EES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY &
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ZRBEFERRR
2023 2022
—EC=HF .
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% E KR 1# 30 64
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZRE - -
30 64
Current assets RENEE
Prepayment, deposits and BRI E &
other receivables HEUER R 1,456 846
Bond receivables FEURES = -
Due from subsidiaries FE U /B8 7~ Bl TR 1B 36,077 26,409
Bank and cash balances IRITRIREHE R 101 1,112
37,634 28,367
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEET &R R EME SRR 9,234 7,144
Due to subsidiaries FEFS I B R B RIE 24 24
Due to directors AN ==t 8,772 1,197
Non-convertible bonds RO ES 19,757 7,852
37,787 16,217
Net current (liabilities)/assets #i&h (B1&F5E) EERE (153) 12,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41.
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

nts

TABTMBRARRFEEE

& )

() H2XEMBRRE (&)

(Continued)
2023 2022
—=E_-= B2
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT TATT
Total assets less current HWEERTEBERE
liabilities (123) 12,214
Non-current liabilities JERENEE
Non-convertible bonds RO A RES 3,000 8,900
3,000 8,900
Net (liabilities)/assets (BEFEH) BEFE (3,123) 3,314
Capital and reserves BXRREE
Share capital [N 4,559 4,559
Reserves B (7,682) (1,245)
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY)/ (B4 A4l tEmEE
TOTAL EQUITY (3,123) 3,314
Approved by the Board of Directors on 29 December RIZIEZ=_F+ZAZ+NBE
2023 and are signed on its behalf by: EEgHETRHTHNEERRE
E=IN
Wang Wenzhou Wu Guoming
EFXAE S [EER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_ZE_=FNH=+HILEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 41.

ERBRBRARRHEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ) NE))
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ATARZHEBEESD
Capital Special Share Other  Translation Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve losses Total
BAfE BhGE iR Hitfife hHkE ZHEHR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEx TR TiEn TR TR TiEr
(note 40(0)(i)  (note 40(0)i))  (note 40(o)i))  (note 40(o)(v)  (note 40(b)v))
(Bistaop))  (MEE40()i)  (MfERaop)i)) (o)) (HFEE40(0)))
At 1 October 2021 “2Z-F+B-H 7,640 1,971 346,252 6,734 960 (354,425) 9,132
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (12,772) (12,772)
Other comprehensive income EREMEERE
for the year - - - - 2,395 - 2,395
At 30 September 2022 and RIZZZEAA=THRK
1 October 2022 “®""%+B-H 7,640 1,971 346,252 6,734 3,355 (367,197) (1,245)
Loss for the year FABE - - - - - (7,339) (7,339)
Other comprehensive income EREMEERE
for the year - - - - 902 - 902
At 30 September 2023 S = g = 7,640 1,971 346,252 6,734 4,257 (374,536) (7,682)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHAA=+tHLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 42. FERERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (a) HEMBLE
During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Group BE_E__FHAB=1tHIL®
entered into share transfer agreements with two different ErAEEEMLAEER B9E
buyers, which were independent from the Group, to URAER) ST RMDEE RS
dispose its entire 100% and 60% equity interests in two UDHEERMKXHWB AT
subsidiaries respectively at consideration in aggregate 2 E100% /60% M # » B EA
of HK$40,000. One of the subsidiaries was engaged in 40,0008 w - HR—REWE QS
insurance broker business. BRI ALZER-
Net liabilities at the date of disposal of subsidiaries in REENBEABS BIANGEZEE
aggregate were as follows: BHUT
HK$’000
FHET
Trade receivables FEUN & 5 AR =R 1
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{1 7B~ % & & HthEUIR R 3
Bank balances IR1T#E R 44
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE (77)
Accruals and other payables FESTE B R EMEM IR (85)
Non-controlling interest JEER R 13
Net liabilities disposed of LHESEPEH (101)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) HEWB AR W= (F:E9) 141
Total consideration BB 40
Consideration satisfied by Cash UIRESENMRKE 40
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEENRE R FEE .
Consideration received BUE 40
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERENRIREEEY (44)
(4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_S

BRI

“=FNAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

42, #3

ARERERWE &

Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary (b) WEE—RMBATMNRER
In 2022, the Group acquired the entire 40% equity ATE T T REE U EEHeroic
interest in Heroic Sunshine Limited, at a consideration of Sunshine Limited® & & K40%Hx
US$40 from its non-controlling interest. The transaction > NEBRIFERERIOETT
was recognised directly in equity. SHEENERRER-
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MBIZFFRELEEZHIR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAMAPAEEEMNETEFR
arising from financing activities, including both cash EfaE88) aEREKRIE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing Re@s -MEITHMELEER
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ENAEFEEARERERAD
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated BAMBITIMEEZRERE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing HAKIBEREZEE
activities.
Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
1 October 2022 Cash flows expenses movements differences 2023
k- St k- -
+B—H ReHE FEE% FREEH ERZE hB=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THET TER TER THER
Bank and other BOREMEE
borrowings (note 37) (Ff5£37) 23,553 38,790 3,178 - (2,355) 63,166
Due to/(from) non-controling FEfY /(1) —
shareholders of a WEABZEE
subsidiary and its related  FRR R R ERIE A
parties (note 28) # (H3:28) 27,344 (28,341) - (1,635) (551) (3,183)
Non-convertible bonds TA#hkES
(note 36) (F5£36) 16,752 6,760 1,555 (2,307) ) 22,757
Due to directors (note 35)  FEftEZHA
(H335) 1,142 7,907 - - (2 8,772
Lease liabilities (note 34)  TAEEE (H5+34) 2,817 (1,437) 188 6,177 (149) 7,59
71,608 23,679 4,921 2,235 (3,335) 99,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

42, FZEREREERME @

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEIFFFELEEZHIE @)
activities (Continued)
Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
1 October 2021 Cash flows expenses movements differences 2022
—E_-F “ECCF
+A—-H Reneg hillsth FREEY ERESR NAB=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TET TET FET
Bank and other BOREMEE
borrowings (note 37) (izE37) 18,067 5,703 1,116 - (1,333 23,553
Due to non-controlling E—EREARZ
shareholders of a FERERR
subsidiary and its related ~ ERIB A FUE
parties note 28) (Ffi7¥28) 44,423 (15,451) - - (1,628) 27,344
Non-convertible bonds RolakES
(note 36) (F5£36) 27,166 (11,714) 1,206 - 4 16,752
Due to directors (note 35)  FEftEZHA
(Ff13£35) 3,011 (1,796) - - (73) 1,142
Lease liabiliies (note 34) ~ TS &R (H534) 1,850 (1,937) 191 2,713 - 2,817
94,517 (25,199) 2,603 2,713 (3,030) 71,608
(d) Non-cash transactions (d) JFERERZ
Additions to property, plant and equipment during the FAREDNE BERZHE
year of HK$16,113,000 were credit to other payables and 16,113,0008 o5t A EMET IR
utilisation of deposit for acquisition of property, plant and AREREEEWNEYE - BEX
equipment. HfE o
(e) Total cash outflow for leases (e) HERE ML

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases
comprise the following:

STAHERERERZEREHE
MNF&E:

2023 2022

—E-= —_=E_
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT THT
Within operating cash flows REREMEN 373 365
Within financing cash flows MEREREN 1,287 1,764
1,660 2,129
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

42. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 42, IFERERERME =

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(e) Total cash outflow for leases (Continued)

() HMEREAMLEE F

These amounts relate to the following: ZESEHE T AR

2023 2022
SFa= -2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
Lease rental paid BEfNHEEHRES 1,660 2,129
43. LITIGATION 43. sk

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian BHE_ZT-N\FE+A=+—HILHF
had disputes with one of its suppliers regarding the quality E B8 EEh - HEREE

of work performed by such supplier. Legal proceedings were
initiated by the supplier (the “Yichang Plaintiff”).

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation agreement
which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian
agreed with the repayment terms in relation to the amount
of RMB8,787,000 (equivalent to HK$10,413,000). However,
Yichang Biaodian did not repay all the outstanding amount
as scheduled in civil mediation agreement. Thus, the Yichang
Plaintiff exercised its rights to apply for a court order to
enforce Yichang Biaodian for settlement of amount overdue.
On 19 May 2022, the Yichang Plaintiff and Yichang Biaodian
signed another mediation agreement which set out that
the outstanding balance would be repaid in 25 monthly
installments of RMB300,000 from June 2022 to July 2024,
and it would be guaranteed by Mr. Xiong, a key management
personnel of Yichang Biaodian. If Yichang Biaodian fail to
repay as scheduled, default interest would be charged at
12% per annum on the outstanding balance owed to the
Yichang Plaintiff since 1 May 2019. Yichang Biaodian repaid
the amount owed to Yichang Plaintiff as scheduled and full
amount of the remaining debts of RMB2,787,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,046,000) claimed by Yichang Plaintiff are fully provided
as liability of the Group as at 30 September 2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

44. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 44, KEHELHE
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car KREBETCHEMEEM] LRBPRE -
parking spaces. As at 30 September 2023, the portfolio of TEC-FAR=TH REPHEERE
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases HEHRKE0NEZ BB ERS
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 20. WRHNERAEREAGHE - R
As at 30 September 2023, the outstanding lease commitments T=FABR=t+R HZEEFEEABRE
relating to these car parking spaces is HK$111,000 (2022: ZREEBHRERES111,00087T (=
HK$108,000). T~ 4 1 108,000 7T) °
45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45. B KIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting AEBRBEFERNEREKENT :
year are as follows:
2023 2022
—=FT== =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
Capital expenditure in respect of BB 2~ BB M s B A
the acquisition of property, R R BESFRERREN
plant and equipment, development &N
of systems and networks
- contracted but not accounted for —BiIHNEXRAK 4,167 30,353
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HE_Z_=FHhA=1+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023
46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46. [
(a) Related party transactions (a)

(b)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

Al 7532 5

RS R 5%

PR EMBRERDEME D FAL
ZRZHN FEBRERER U

THRABM A ZEARS
2023 2022
—EBEC=F B2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Purchase of raw materials B—ENE A SREEE
from a company controlled AEEFIZz—HBARER
by senior management R4 #E

personnel of a subsidiary

Service and leasing income RE—RESZEF 2 —HEAF
from a company controlled ZRBERBERA
by a director

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules, and the Group has complied with the requirement
in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Details of
connected transaction are disclosed in “Connected
Transaction” section in the annual report.

Details of guarantees provided by related parties for bank
borrowings granted to the Group are as set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

- 276

- (859)

(b)

LR 5 R S M AGEM BT
HABE-+EMATEZHERS
REFERERZ MAEEBEE
TFTGEMEMRAUEZF+EEZR
EoRBIERZZHBENREREE
RZI—EHRIFE-

BBt ATt AERRE ZRTE
BRHZEFIBENGEEVH
HRFRMIFEIT ©
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HE_E_=FNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2023

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuvec)  46. BBt AR5 @

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

(c) XEEBEEABZHM

The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRESKRTEEEEHEMNE
management during the year was follows: ZEBHI S
2023 2022
== ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Short term benefits RERREF 1,651 1,522

(d) Amounts due from/(to) related parties

(d) F&EUR~ (1) BB 7S FRIR

Name of related party Relationship Terms 2023 2022
M AER, 4% & 1 —E-ZE “E-CH&
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Wu Xiachen Son of a director of Unsecured, interest-free 1,234 1,019
the Company and repayable
on demand
RER AR —HEENT T BIER - EEREREKR
EBig
Tang Xia Daughter-in-law of Unsecured, interest-free (1,093) (1,151)
a director of and repayable
the Company on demand
s KRB —REENRE BIER - EEREREK
EBig
FEBARERTIEERAT  Controlled by a director of  Unsecured, interest-free (3,486) (8,737)
the Company and repayable
on demand
HAAE]—BEE BER REREEX
EBig
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47. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

48.

Apart from as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, the Group did not have any other

significant contingent liabilities at 30 September 2023 (2022:

Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 30 November 2023, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
to dispose its leased motor vehicle at consideration of
HK$1,200,000.

On 19 December 2023, the Company and Leeds
Securities Investment Limited (“Placing Agent”) entered
into a placing agreement pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agent, on a best effort basis, up to 91,172,000 new
ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01 each (“Placing
Shares”) to not less than six (6) placees at the placing
price of HK$0.69 per Placing Share who and whose
ultimate beneficial owners shall be independent third
parties. The Placing Shares will be allotted and issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the directors
of the Company at the annual general meeting held
on 14 April 2023. None of the placees will become a
substantial shareholder of the Company immediately
upon completion of the placing. Details of the placing are
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 19
December 2023.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIXEIEEMB R AT

=FENB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2023

47.

48.

HARR

BzEREMBRREMEDOFIKE
BINNR_BZ=ZFNA=+H K&
ErEEAEMEARNAGRB (CF
—ZFimo

BEHRER

@ RIZEZ=F+—HB=+H'xXK
EEBE—2BUE=/IUEE
e UHEHEHBESRE  ER
1,200,000 7T °

b) RZEZ=%¢+ZB+hB>
KABEGERSEMERAR
(TeERIE)) TR E HE
Bt AR B RERREBE
EREBEEZNEEARLDIREO)
LEANERKREGZEBEAES
BYE - FTWAREARERS
91,172,000 & K EE0.018 7T
HHZEg (EERB)) BRE
EASKREERKH0.698 T B
ERGERBEARAEEEZZ
TZENA+INHBEMNKREE
FRE FERZ —RIEEETE
BT o MEAR ARNER
EEETHERARATNFEER
R-BREENFERARTH
HRa-Z2Z=fF+Z"A+nHHD

NERE-
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(©

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED BB R EB AR AT

On 26 December 2023, the Company announced that
it has come to the attention of the board of directors
of the Company that the Group’s 25% equity interest in
Yichang Biaodian, amounting to RMB14.70 million (the
“Frozen Equity”), is currently frozen by LLI7E & £4 T B 5
Z & (Shanxi Province Changzhi Municipal Supervision
Commission)* (the “Freeze Action”). The Group has
engaged a PRC legal counsel (the “PRC Legal Counsel”)
to provide relevant legal advice to the Group in relation to
the Freeze Action and the Frozen Equity.

As advised by the PRC Legal Counsel, the ordinary
course of business of Yichang Biaodian will not be
restricted or adversely affected by the Freeze Action.
During the period of the Freeze Action, however, the
Group is unable to undertake any filing related to changes
in ownership of the Frozen Equity or the registration of
any pledge of the Frozen Equity. The Group is advised
by the PRC Legal Counsel that the risk of impacting the
Group’s entitlement to dividends of Yichang Biaodian
is relatively low, given that Yichang Biaodian has
not received any notice or notification or other legal
documents explicitly freezing the dividends, bonuses and
other proceeds to which the Group is entitled. The Board
has instructed the PRC Legal Counsel to obtain further
information and relevant documents, enquire the reasons
for the Freeze Action and to advise on the potential legal
consequences for the Group in relation to the Freeze
Action.

As the Freeze Action is at the preliminary stage, the
directors cannot estimate the financial effect on the
Group.

On 27 December 2023, the Company entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding with £
BEERAR/AT (Hualing Energy Co., Ltd.), in relation
to potential cooperation for the development of electric
vehicle charging station business. Details are disclosed
in the Company’s announcements dated 27 December
2023.

48. JREHIEBEIE @)

(©
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EgRE (DRETTE))) - KAEH
BEFFEEZEEMR ((HREEE
BERL) PURAATTE R R4S IR
BAEEREEREEEERR

BRBEAREBSN EERA
WEHBEBITERRETHMR
FRBISAFFE - 28T IR

BITEBHE AEERERETE
o] £2 45 3R A5 IR 18 P 5 1 2 BB AR
B AN RURG REM
BEERELTFE PBERER
HMAER EREESREITR
WEIRRRESEEEREZEN
RS ALF R Eth i m By E AT i
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